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HIGHLAND CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Tuesday, January 19, 2021

Highland City Council Chambers, 5400 West Civic Center Drive, Highland Utah 84003
VIRTUAL PARTICIPATION
YouTube Live: http://bit.ly/HC-youtube
Zoom: Call 1-346-248-7799 Meeting ID: 840 1710 0635
Email comments prior to meeting: council@highlandcity.org

6:30 PM REGULAR SESSION
Call to Order – Mayor Rod Mann

1.

CLOSED SESSION

The Highland City Council may temporarily recess the City Council meeting to convene in a
closed session to discuss the sale of real property, as provided by Utah Code Annotated §524-205.

7:00 PM MEETING OPEN TO PUBLIC

Invocation – Council Member Timothy A. Ball
Pledge of Allegiance – Council Member Scott L. Smith

2.

UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES

3.

PRESENTATIONS

4.

CONSENT ITEMS (5 minutes)

Please limit comments to three minutes per person. Please state your name.

a.

FY2019-2020 Audit Report – Steve Rowley, Keddington & Christensen

Items on the consent agenda are of a routine nature or have been previously studied by the
City Council. They are intended to be acted upon in one motion. Council members may pull
items from consent if they would like them considered separately.
a.

Planning Commission Appointments Administrative
The Council will consider the Mayor’s request to ratify the appointment of Audrey
Moore, Chris Howden, and Mino Morgese to the Planning Commission, with Tyler
Standifird as an alternate commissioner. The Council will take appropriate action.

b.

Construction Contract: Culinary Well #2 and Well #3 Improvements
Administrative
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The City Council will consider a request to approve a contract with Rhino Pumps to
replace the pumps in Culinary Well #2 and Well #3. The Council will take appropriate
action.

5.

6.

c.

Construction Contract: Pressure Irrigation Pond Improvements Administrative
The City Council will consider a request to approve a contract with JLR Contractors to
complete improvements at both the upper and lower irrigation ponds, and authorize the
City Administrator and City Recorder to execute the necessary contract documents. The
Council will take appropriate action.

d.

Construction Contract: Electrical Modification at Pressure Irrigation Pump
Stations Administrative
The City Council will consider a request to approve a bid with ID Electric to make
electric modifications at two pressure irrigation pump stations, and authorize the City
Administrator and City Recorder to execute the necessary contract documents. The
Council will take appropriate action.

e.

Construction Contract: 11800 North Split-Case Pump Administrative
The City Council will consider a request to approve a contract with Rhino Pumps to
replace two small pumps with a larger split-case pump to the pressure irrigation pump
station at 11800 North. The Council will take appropriate action.

ORDINANCE: ADOPTION OF NEW IMPACT FEES Legislative (30 minutes)

City Council will consider adoption of new impact fees. The Council will take appropriate
action.

PUBLIC HEARING & RESOLUTION: FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 MID-YEAR
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS Legislative (30 minutes)

The City Council will consider the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Mid-Year Budget Adjustments.
The Council will take appropriate action.

7.

MAYOR/COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATION ITEMS

a.

Future Meetings
• January 26, Planning Commission Meeting, 7:00 pm, City Hall
• February 2, City Council Meeting, 7:00 pm, City Hall
• February 16, City Council Meeting, 7:00 pm, City Hall
• February 23, City Council Meeting, 7:00 pm, City Hall

ADJOURNMENT
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In accordance with Americans with Disabilities Act, Highland City will make reasonable accommodations to participate in the meeting. Requests
for assistance can be made by contacting the City Recorder at (801) 772-4505 at least three days in advance of the meeting.
ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION
Members of the City Council may participate electronically via telephone, Skype, or other electronic means during this meeting.
CERTIFICATE OF POSTING
I, Stephannie Cottle, the duly appointed City Recorder, certify that the foregoing agenda was posted at the principal office of the public body, at
the Lone Peak Fire Station and Lone Peak Police Station, on the Utah State website (http://pmn.utah.gov), and on Highland City’s website
(www.highlandcity.org).
Please note the order of agenda items are subject to change in order to accommodate the needs of the City Council, staff and the public.
Posted and dated this agenda on the 14th day of January, 2021.

Stephannie Cottle, City Recorder

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO PARTICIPATE IN ALL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS.
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FINANCIAL SECTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
Highland City
Highland City, Utah
Report on Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, the General Fund budgetary comparison schedule, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Highland City, Utah (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business type-activities, the General Fund budgetary comparison schedule,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Highland City, Utah as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes
in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Telephone (801) 590-2600
Fax (801) 265-9405
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis, schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension liability, schedule of contributions, and notes to
the required supplementary information, as noted in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements and the schedule of the expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 13, 2021 on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Keddington & Christensen, LLC
Salt Lake City, Utah
January 13, 2021
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
The management of Highland City presents the following narrative and analysis of the financial statements and
financial activities of Highland City as prescribed by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The
information and analysis pertains to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
Financial Highlights
The City created one new fund for fiscal year 2020: information technology (IT) internal service fund. The internal
service fund was created to manage the costs associated with computer and IT equipment across the departments and
funds of the City.
The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Highland City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at June 30, 2020 by $129,884,698 (net position). Of this amount $20,382,641 (unrestricted net position)
may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations.
Highland City's total net position increased by $4,073,301. The majority of the increase was the result of assets
contributed to the City from developers, and increases in charges for services.
Highland City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances at June 30, 2020 of $11,351,573, an
increase of $3,896,940 in comparison to the prior year. At June 30, 2020 unrestricted fund balance of the general fund
was $2,660,006, or 33.6% of total general fund expenditures for the year.
Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Highland City's basic financial statements.
Highland City's basic financial statements comprise three components; 1) government-wide financial statements; 2)
fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
Government-wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
financial position and changes in financial position, similar to consolidated financial statements in a private sector
business. The statements consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of Highland City’s assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows
of resources, with the difference between the three reported as net position. Increases or decreases over time in net
position gives an indicator as to whether the financial condition of the City is improving or declining.
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses reported in this statement for some items
will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., debt interest payment when the fiscal year ends between interest
payments).
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Highland City that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of Highland City include general government, public safety, streets and public improvements, parks and
recreation, cemetery, and garbage. The business-type activities of Highland City include services for water,
pressurized irrigation, sewer (sanitary), and storm sewer.
The government-wide financial statements include Highland City (known as the primary government) and a separate
legal entity (known as component unit). The financial information for the Highland Open Space Special Service
District is included in the financial statements. However, because the City's governing body is the same as the
governing board of this component unit and can substantially control it, their financial information is blended and
reported together with the financial information presented for the primary government.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
Fund Financial Statements
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. Highland City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and regulations. All of the funds of Highland City can be
divided into two categories; governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Governmental funds
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the near-term
financing requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for the governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the City's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
Highland City maintains eleven (11) individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balances for the general fund, debt service fund, and capital projects – parks fund which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other eight (8) governmental funds is provided in the form of individual and combining
statements elsewhere in this report.
Highland City adopts an annual budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for
the general fund to demonstrate compliance with the approved budget amounts.
Proprietary funds
Highland City maintains two types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and an internal service fund. Enterprise funds
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.
The City uses enterprise funds to account for water, pressurized irrigation, sewer, and storm sewer. The City created
the internal service fund to account for IT services purchased and used throughout the City’s departments and funds.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for water, sewer, secondary water and
storm sewer, and include a separate column for the internal service fund.
Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements.
Other Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents combining statements
referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds. They are presented immediately following the
notes to the financial statements.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position is an indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of Highland City, assets
and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $129,884,698 at the close of the fiscal year. The
largest portion (82%) of the City's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (land, buildings, machinery and
equipment) and infrastructure (roads, sidewalks, curb and gutter and various utility lines and storage facilities); less
any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment
in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay the debt must
be provided from other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City was able to report positive balances in all three categories of net position
for the government as a whole.

Current and other assets
Capital assets

Governmental
Activities
2020

Governmental
Activities
2019

Business-type
Activities
2020

Business-type
Activities
2019

Total
2020

Total
2019

$ 16,169,221
64,560,831

$ 12,183,383
68,010,833

$ 13,445,507
51,406,478

$ 12,448,936
49,840,874

$ 29,614,728
115,967,309

$ 24,632,319
117,851,707

80,730,052

80,194,216

64,851,985

62,289,810

145,582,037

142,484,026

415,033

605,573

84,117

166,166

499,150

771,739

$ 81,145,085

$ 80,799,789

$ 64,936,102

$ 62,455,976

$146,081,187

$143,255,765

$

$

$

$

$

$

Total Assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
Current and other liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities, deferred inflows
of Resources, and Net Position

2,785,914
7,631,526

2,778,729
8,688,384

569,266
2,873,280

406,655
3,490,682

3,355,180
10,504,806

3,185,384
12,179,066

10,417,440

11,467,113

3,442,546

3,897,337

13,859,986

15,364,450

2,250,271

2,068,153

86,232

11,765

2,336,503

2,079,918

57,706,042
1,697,839
9,073,493

60,216,471
92,294
6,955,758

48,829,685
1,268,491
11,309,148

46,802,261
1,025,470
10,719,143

106,535,727
2,966,330
20,382,641

107,018,732
1,117,764
17,674,901

68,477,374

67,264,523

61,407,324

58,546,874

129,884,698

125,811,397

$ 81,145,085

$ 80,799,789

$ 64,936,102

$ 62,455,976

$146,081,187

$143,255,765
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
Governmental
Activities
2020
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
$
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property and uniform vehicle taxes
Other Taxes
Other
Gain (Loss) on dispoal of assets
Total Revenues
Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Streets and public improvements
Parks and recreation
Cemetery
Garbage
Interest on long-term debt
Water
Pressurized irrigation
Storm sewer
Sewer
Total Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in net position
before transfers
Transfers
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning
Net Position - Ending

4,633,850
1,636,889
1,739,503
2,353,357
4,010,672
248,753
(519,543)

Governmental
Activities
2019

Business-type
Activities
2020

Business-type
Activities
2019

$

$

$

3,752,405
24,267
4,007,102

5,865,060
1,778,332

6,066,844
2,282,432

Total
2020

$ 10,498,910
1,636,889
3,517,835

Total
2019

$

9,819,249
24,267
6,289,534

2,299,073
3,520,143
193,680
486,640

245,458
10,757

283,490
14,295

14,103,481

14,283,310

7,899,607

8,647,061

22,003,088

22,930,371

2,805,221
4,371,573
3,579,912
1,075,016
193,682
795,389
177,837
12,998,630

2,358,483
3,675,666
4,772,101
845,937
160,896
843,248
220,100
12,876,431

1,025,185
1,411,249
498,826
1,995,897
4,931,157

1,013,827
1,394,696
418,399
2,096,932
4,923,854

2,805,221
4,371,573
3,579,912
1,075,016
193,682
795,389
177,837
1,025,185
1,411,249
498,826
1,995,897
17,929,787

2,358,483
3,675,666
4,772,101
845,937
160,896
843,248
220,100
1,013,827
1,394,696
418,399
2,096,932
17,800,285

1,104,851
108,000
1,212,851

1,406,879
1,406,879

2,968,450
(108,000)
2,860,450

3,723,207
3,723,207

4,073,301
4,073,301

5,130,086
5,130,086

2,353,357
4,010,672
494,211
(508,786)

2,299,073
3,520,143
477,170
500,935

67,264,523

65,857,644

58,546,874

54,823,667

125,811,397

120,681,311

$ 68,477,374

$ 67,264,523

$ 61,407,324

$ 58,546,874

$129,884,698

$125,811,397

Governmental activities. As noted in the table above, governmental activities increased the City's net position by
$1,212,851. The key element of the increase was assets contributed by developers. Some increases in property and
sales tax revenues, also contributed to the overall increase.
Business-type activities. As noted in the table above, business-type activities increased the City's net position by
$2,860,450. The key elements of the increase from the prior year were increases in charges for services, and
conservative spending.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
The following chart displays the governmental activities program revenues compared to expenses attributed to the
activity.

The following chart displays the governmental activities program revenues by type.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
Business-type Activities
The following chart displays the business-type activities revenues compared to program expenses attributed to the
activity. Traditionally business-type activities are self-supporting and the chart depicts the relationship of revenues to
expenses.

The following chart displays the business-type activities revenues by type.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.
Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance is a useful measure of the government’s net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
At June 30, 2020, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $11,351,573, which was
an increase of $3,896,940 in comparison with the prior year.
The general fund is the main operating fund of the City. At June 30, 2020, unrestricted fund balance of the general
fund was $2,660,006. A comparison of the unrestricted fund balance and total fund balance to total general fund
expenditures is a measure of liquidity. Unrestricted fund balance represented 33.6.% of total general fund
expenditures.
Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements in more detail.
Sewer fund-Unrestricted net position at June 30, 2020 amounted to $4,188,399, an increase of $575,167 from the
previous year. Operating revenues were $2,084,704 compared to the prior year’s $2,050,746. Operating expenses
decreased slightly to $1,996,735 compared to the prior year expenses of $2,096,932.
Pressurized Irrigation fund-Unrestricted net position at June 30, 2020 amounted to $3,484,475, an increase of
$489,560 from the previous year. Operating revenues were $2,314,430, a decrease from prior year’s operating revenue
of $2,620,064. Operating expenses were $1,363,557, an increase from last year’s $1,303,650.
Culinary Water Fund-Unrestricted net position at June 30, 2020 amounted to $2,283,424 a decrease of $508,301 from
the previous year. Operating revenues were $903,415, an increase from the prior year’s $871,108 operating revenues.
Operating expenses were $1,026,062, which was an increase from the prior year’s $1,013,827 operating expenses.
Storm sewer fund (nonmajor)- Unrestricted net position at June 30, 2020 amounted to $1,349,485 an increase of
$30,214 from the previous year. Operating revenues were $573,268, an increase from the prior year’s $524,926 and
operating expenses of $499,599 an increase from the prior year’s $418,399 of operating expenses.
IT internal service fund- As this is the first year of implementing an internal service fund, there is no comparison
information available. Unrestricted net position at June 30, 2020 amounted to $14,856. Operating revenues were
$20,000, and operating expenses of $14,856.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
During the fiscal year, the general funds original budgeted expenditures was amended from $7,789,677 to a final
budget total of $8,063,693, largely as the result of anticipated increases of General Government expenditures related
to the Coronavirus Relief Funds that were awarded to the City. Overall the City’s general fund was within budgeted
expenditures by $150,324, however, the General Government department was slightly over budget for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020 as a result of unexpected expenditures near year-end.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets. Highland City's investment in capital assets from governmental and business-type activities as of June
30, 2020 was $115,967,309 (net of accumulated depreciation). The investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and water stock. The total
decrease in the City's investment in capital assets for the current year was $1,884,398, which is primarily as a result
of asset disposals of $2,504,303 and depreciation of $4,003,846 offset by contributions from developers and other
asset additions during the year.
A summary of the City’s capital assets by category are shown in the table on the following page.
Highland City’s Capital Assets
Governmental
Activities
2020

Governmental
Activities
2019

Business-type
Activities
2020

Business-type
Activities
2019

Land
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Water shares
Total
Less accumulated depreciation

$ 37,029,600
14,385,608
76,525,787
2,290,487
581,836
130,813,318
(66,252,487)

$ 39,533,903
14,080,927
75,409,787
2,258,079
341,129
131,623,825
(63,612,992)

$

$

Total Capital Assets

$ 64,560,831

$ 68,010,833

$ 51,406,478

534,455
1,157,289
43,593,332
2,539,598
24,085,035
71,909,709
(20,503,231)

534,455
1,157,289
41,092,347
2,127,840
24,085,035
68,996,966
(19,156,092)

$ 49,840,874

Total
2020

Total
2019

$ 37,564,055
15,542,897
120,119,119
4,830,085
581,836
24,085,035
202,723,027
(86,755,718)

$ 40,068,358
15,238,216
116,502,134
4,385,919
341,129
24,085,035
200,620,791
(82,769,084)

$115,967,309

$117,851,707

Additional information on the City's capital assets is available in Note 6 to the financial statements.
Long-term debt. On June 30, 2020 the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $7,950,000.
Highland City’s Outstanding Debt
Governmental
Activities
2020

Governmental
Activities
2019

Business-type
Activities
2020

Business-type
Activities
2019

General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Notes payable
Compensated absences

$

$

$

822,000
1,754,793
109,854

$ 1,201,633
1,836,980
109,410

$

7,950,000
1,754,793
327,990

$ 1,201,633
7,892,000
1,836,980
314,819

Total

$ 7,346,136

$ 2,686,647

$ 3,148,023

$10,032,783

$11,245,432

7,128,000
218,136

7,892,000
205,409

$ 8,097,409

Total
2020

Total
2019

The Utah State Constitution limits the amount of general obligation debt a municipal government may issue at 4% of
its total taxable property value of $1,662,648,205, except cities of the fourth class (Highland City is classified as a
fourth class city) may issue debt up to an additional 8% of its total taxable property value for water systems, artificial
lighting systems or sewer systems. On June 30, 2020 the City’s limitation was $66,505,928 and the additional
limitation was $133,011,856. The City’s general obligation bonds were refunded in fiscal year 2020.
Additional information about the City’s long-term debt is available in Note 11 to the financial statements.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
The fiscal year 2020-2021 budget and rates are based on the forecast that the Utah economy will have been negatively
impacted from the global Coronavirus pandemic. Sales tax revenues are budgeted to decrease somewhat as job losses
and business closings continue. Permit and fee revenues are expected to increase slightly based on increase in new
construction in Highland. A slight increase in debt service expenditures was factored in as a result of the refunding
bonds issued in fiscal year 2019-2020. These factors and other factors were considered in preparing the fiscal year
2021 budget.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Highland City’s activities for those with an interest
in the City’s operations and position. Questions concerning the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to: Highland City, Finance Director, 5400 W. Civic Center Drive,
Suite #1, Highland, Utah 84003.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020
Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

$

$

Total

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Accounts
Taxes
Internal Balances
Prepaid expenses
Restricted amounts:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables - B & C road funds
Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets (net)
Net Pension Asset

23,833
2,756,752
(3,365)
813,773

Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred loss on refunding
Deferred outflows relating to pensions
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Developer and customer deposits
Unearned revenues
Payable from restricted assets
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Net pension liability

12,124,276

2,819,780
133,756

1,268,491

4,088,271
133,756

37,611,436
26,949,395
-

24,619,490
26,786,988
-

62,230,926
53,736,383
-

80,730,052

64,851,985

145,582,037

273,211
141,822

84,117

273,211
225,939

415,033

84,117

499,150
$ 146,081,187

$

64,936,102

$

1,227,143
105,402
38,281
746,448
545,260
123,380

$

520,544
30,056
18,666
-

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt Service / park construction
Impact fees
Open space
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
$

21,748,968
73,208
2,756,752
813,773

81,145,085

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned property tax revenue
Deferred inflows relating to pensions

$

49,375
3,365
-

$

Total Liabilities

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Net Position

9,624,692

$

1,747,687
135,458
56,947
746,448
545,260
123,380

939,889
6,406,247
285,390

544,307
2,142,340
186,633

1,484,196
8,548,587
472,023

10,417,440

3,442,546

13,859,986

2,058,524
191,747

86,232

2,058,524
277,979

2,250,271

86,232

2,336,503

12,667,711

3,528,778

16,196,489

57,706,042

48,829,685

106,535,727

1,396,906
157,853
9,073,493

30,132
1,238,359
11,309,148

30,132
2,635,265
157,853
20,382,641

68,477,374

61,407,324

129,884,698

64,936,102

$ 146,081,187

81,145,085

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020

Expenses
Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Streets and public works
Parks and recreation
Cemetery
Garbage
Interest on long term debt

$

Total Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities:
Sewer
Pressurized irrigation
Storm sewer
Water
Total Business-type Activities
Total Government

$

2,805,221
4,371,573
3,579,912
1,075,016
193,682
795,389
177,837

Program Revenues
Operating
Capital
Charges for
Grants and
Grants and
Services
Contributions
Contributions

$

2,177,335
214,431
1,111,578
9,998
220,410
900,098
-

$

10,833
839,718
786,338
-

$

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

$

$

(617,053)
(3,241,541)
(434,312)
(649,082)
26,728
104,709
(177,837)

2,084,704
2,314,430
562,511
903,415

-

525,746
472,281
342,161
438,144

-

614,553
1,375,462
405,846
316,374

614,553
1,375,462
405,846
316,374

4,931,157

5,865,060

-

1,778,332

-

2,712,235

2,712,235

(4,988,388)

2,712,235

(2,276,153)

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property
Vehicle
Sales
Franchise
Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain (Loss) on disposal of assets
Miscellaneous
Transfers

2,184,173
169,184
2,988,390
1,022,282
218,050
(519,543)
30,703
108,000

245,458
10,757
(108,000)

2,184,173
169,184
2,988,390
1,022,282
463,508
(508,786)
30,703
-

Total General Revenues

6,201,239

148,215

6,349,454

Changes in Net Position

1,212,851

2,860,450

4,073,301

Net Position, Beginning

67,264,523

58,546,874

125,811,397

61,407,324

$ 129,884,698

$

1,636,889

Net Position, Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

3,517,835

$

68,477,374

-

$

1,995,897
1,411,249
498,826
1,025,185

10,498,910

(4,988,388)

-

4,633,850

$

1,739,503

(617,053)
(3,241,541)
(434,312)
(649,082)
26,728
104,709
(177,837)

Total

12,998,630

17,929,787

1,636,889

75,883
1,247,684
415,936
-

Net (Expense) Revenue &
Changes in Net Position

$

(4,988,388)

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2020
General
Fund
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Accounts
Taxes
Prepaid expenses
Restricted amounts:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivable - B & C roads
Total Assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Developer bonds - payable from restricted
Unearned revenue
Payable from restricted assets

$ 3,119,688

$

10,898

12,462
2,480,808
813,773

-

1,299,494
133,756

-

104,558
-

1,415,728
-

2,819,780
133,756

$ 3,579,022

$ 4,707,829

$ 16,157,730

$

$

$

$ 7,859,981

$

10,898

$ 1,075,722
86,334
746,448
545,260
-

$

-

2,453,764

-

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned property tax revenue

1,789,358

-

1,789,358

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid expenses
Restricted for:
Impact fees
B & C roads
Assigned to:
Cemetery
Library
Debt service
Capital projects & open space funds
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources, and Fund Balance

Nonmajor
Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds
Funds

$ 3,474,464
-

Total Liabilities

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Capital
Projects
Parks

Debt
Service

104,558

11,371
275,944
-

23,833
2,756,752
813,773

151,421
19,068
18,822

$

9,609,836

1,227,143
105,402
746,448
545,260
123,380

189,311

2,747,633

-

269,166

2,058,524

-

-

269,166

2,058,524

813,773

-

-

143,080

-

1,396,906
-

1,396,906
143,080

2,660,006

10,898
-

3,474,464
-

13,992
37,735
2,800,719
-

13,992
37,735
10,898
6,275,183
2,660,006

3,616,859

10,898

3,474,464

4,249,352

11,351,573

10,898

$ 3,579,022

$ 4,707,829

$ 16,157,730

$ 7,859,981

$

104,558

$ 3,004,786

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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-

813,773

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:
Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

$

11,351,573

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

64,560,831

Deferred loss on refunding of debt is not a financial resource, and therefore,
is not reported in the funds.

273,211

Interest expense is not due and payable in the current period and therefore is
not recorded in the funds.

(38,281)

Net pension assets, net pension liabilities, Deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not current
financial resources, and therefore, are not reported in the governmental
funds.

(335,315)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds, capital leases, and notes are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore, are not reported in the funds.

(7,346,136)

Intnernal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of IT
services to to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal
service funds are included in the governmental activities in the statement of
net position.
Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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11,491
$

68,477,374

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
General
Fund
Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Impact fees
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions from other governments
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Streets and public works
Parks and recreation
Cemetery
Garbage
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Financing costs
Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Sale of capital assets
Bond proceeds - refunding bonds
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning
Fund Balances, Ending

$ 6,053,121
579,553
1,626,056
2,058,671
214,431
81,343
30,703

Capital
Projects
Parks

Debt
Service
$

-

$

372,886
57,164
-

Nonmajor
Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds
Funds
$

310,908
300,128
1,583,743
12,375
10,833
79,543
-

$

6,364,029
579,553
1,626,056
673,014
3,642,414
226,806
10,833
218,050
30,703

10,643,878

-

430,050

2,297,530

13,371,458

1,482,967
4,186,949
804,054
643,736
795,663
-

-

73,728
2,100

1,071,111
1,094,736
206,652
231,048

2,554,078
4,186,949
1,898,790
717,464
206,652
795,663
231,048

3,026
-

799,000
177,634
28,584

2,606,573

11,595,862

-

799,000
172,508
28,584

7,913,369

1,000,092

75,828

2,730,509

(1,000,092)

354,222

(309,043)

1,775,596

108,000
(1,642,000)

2,886,000
(2,857,416)
978,000
-

1,935,494
(300,000)

49,266
1,324,000
(360,000)

1,984,760
2,886,000
(2,857,416)
2,410,000
(2,302,000)

(1,534,000)

1,006,584

1,635,494

1,013,266

2,121,344

6,492

1,989,716

704,223

3,896,940

1,196,509
2,420,350
$ 3,616,859

$

4,406

1,484,748

3,545,129

7,454,633

10,898

$ 3,474,464

$ 4,249,352

$ 11,351,573

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
16

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

$

3,896,940

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 are
capitalized and the cost is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.
Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

644,514
(2,656,702)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net position.
Net book value of disposals

(2,504,303)

Contributed assets are not recorded in governmental funds due to no current
resources being expended in the acquisition of such assets. The Statement of
Activities will record these contributed assets at their estimated fair value on
the date of contribution.

1,066,489

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds by
issuing debt which increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net
Position. Repayments of bond principal are expenditures in the
governmental funds, but reduce liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Payment of bond principal
Issuance of bonds for refunding
Deposit of funds to refund debt

799,000
(2,886,000)
2,851,000

Pension expense resulting from the changes in net pension assets, net
pension liabilities, deferred outflows relating to pensions, and deferred
inflows relating to pensions are not the use of current financial resources,
and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

(964)

Expenses are recognized in the governmental funds when paid or due;
however, the Statement of Activities is presented on the accrual basis and
expenses and liabilities are reported when incurred, regardless of when
financial resources are available or expenses are paid or due. This
adjustment reflects the changes due to accrued interest on bonds payable,
amortization of the deferred loss on bond refunding, and change in
compensated absences.
Accrued interest
Amortization of deferred loss
Compensated absences

33,949
(29,836)
(12,727)

Intnernal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of IT
services to to individual funds. The net revenues of certain activities of
internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

11,491

Changes in net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

1,212,851

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
Budgeted Amounts
Original
Budget

Final
Budget

Actual
Amounts

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Miscellaneous

$ 5,871,078
376,497
801,500
1,984,323
155,000
50,000
20,000

$ 5,685,701
506,180
816,103
1,990,438
210,025
45,914
52,257

$ 6,053,121
579,553
1,626,056
2,058,671
214,431
81,343
30,703

Total Revenues

9,258,398

9,306,618

10,643,878

1,229,243
4,186,950
847,568
712,188
813,728

1,466,214
4,186,950
885,440
706,269
818,820

1,482,967
4,186,949
804,054
643,736
795,663

(16,753)
1
81,386
62,533
23,157

7,789,677

8,063,693

7,913,369

150,324

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
1,468,721

1,242,925

2,730,509

1,487,584

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Streets and public works
Parks and recreation
Garbage
Total Expenditures

Variance with
Final Budget
$

367,420
73,373
809,953
68,233
4,406
35,429
(21,554)
1,337,260

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

138,000
(1,681,072)

138,000
(1,642,000)

108,000
(1,642,000)

(30,000)
-

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

(1,543,072)

(1,504,000)

(1,534,000)

(30,000)

(74,351)

$ (261,075)

Net Change in Fund Balances

$

Fund Balance, Beginning
Fund Balance, Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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1,196,509
2,420,350
$ 3,616,859

$ 1,457,584

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2020

Sewer
Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

$

Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Water shares
Land
Depreciable
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows relating to pensions
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Notes payable
Bonds payable - current
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Notes payable
Bonds payable
Net pension liability
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows relating to pensions
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for impact fees
Impact fees
Debt service
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

4,473,340
486,057
18,398

Governmental
Activities

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Pressurized
Culinary
Storm
Irrigation
Water
Sewer

$

3,769,811
782,434
14,711

$

2,461,746
12,133

$

Total

1,419,379
4,133

$ 12,124,276
1,268,491
49,375

IT Internal
Service

$

14,856
-

4,977,795

4,566,956

2,473,879

1,423,512

13,442,142

14,856

26,540

22,447,186
277,450

1,637,849
107,132

123,333

24,085,035
534,455

-

11,937,901
346,667
(5,505,501)

663,667
15,493,173
295,923
(7,218,891)

493,622
10,910,966
1,582,541
(6,060,406)

5,251,292
314,467
(1,718,433)

1,157,289
43,593,332
2,539,598
(20,503,231)

-

6,805,607

31,958,508

8,671,704

3,970,659

51,406,478

-

11,783,402

36,525,464

11,145,583

5,394,171

64,848,620

14,856

28,441

12,352

21,786

21,538

84,117

198,969
9,963
11,259
-

$

209,600
7,353
18,666
14,455
86,791
410,000

$

104,899
8,090
12,647
-

$

7,076
4,650
9,155
-

$

520,544
30,056
18,666
47,516
86,791
410,000

-

$

-

220,191

746,865

125,636

20,881

1,113,573

-

23,589
60,733

11,569
1,668,002
412,000
30,120

15,852
46,818

11,328
48,962

62,338
1,668,002
412,000
186,633

-

84,322

2,121,691

62,670

60,290

2,328,973

-

304,513

2,868,556

188,306

81,171

3,442,546

-

27,267

20,636

23,935

14,394

86,232

-

6,805,607

29,381,715

8,671,704

3,970,659

48,829,685

-

486,057
4,188,399

752,302
30,132
3,484,475

2,283,424

1,349,485

1,238,359
30,132
11,305,783

14,856

$ 11,480,063

$ 33,648,624

$ 10,955,128

5,320,144

61,403,959

Adjustment to report the cumulative internal balance for the net effect of the activity between
the internal service fund and the enterprise funds over time
Net position of business-type activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

3,365
$ 61,407,324

$

14,856

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN
NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020

Sewer
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Connection fees
Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Operations
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

$

2,084,675
29
-

Governmental
Activities

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Pressurized
Culinary
Storm
Irrigation
Water
Sewer
$

2,222,657
91,773
-

$

845,934
50,616
6,865

$

562,511
10,757

Total
$

5,715,777
91,773
50,645
17,622

IT Internal
Service
$

20,000
-

2,084,704

2,314,430

903,415

573,268

5,875,817

20,000

224,728
1,385,300
386,707

254,178
676,357
433,022

247,978
423,129
354,955

165,156
161,989
172,454

892,040
2,646,775
1,347,138

5,144
-

1,996,735

1,363,557

1,026,062

499,599

4,885,953

5,144

87,969

950,873

(122,647)

73,669

989,864

14,856

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Impact fees
Interest income
Interest expense

211,179
86,330
-

242,483
77,764
(48,569)

55,165
-

26,199
-

453,662
245,458
(48,569)

-

Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses)

297,509

271,678

55,165

26,199

650,551

-

Income (Loss) Before Contributions
and transfers

385,478

1,222,551

(67,482)

99,868

1,640,415

14,856

Capital Contributions
Transfers out

314,567
-

229,798
(108,000)

438,144
-

342,161
-

1,324,670
(108,000)

-

Changes in Net Position

700,045

1,344,349

370,662

442,029

2,857,085

14,856

Net Position, Beginning
Net Position, Ending

10,780,018

32,304,275

10,584,466

$ 11,480,063

$ 33,648,624

$ 10,955,128

4,878,115
$

-

5,320,144

$

Adjustment for the net effect of the current year activity between the internal service fund
and the enterprise funds.
Changes in net position of business-type activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
20

3,365
$

2,860,450

14,856

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020

Sewer
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash receipts from interfund services provided
Cash received from other entities
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees

$

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

2,081,946
(1,432,467)
(222,343)

$

427,136

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Transfers to other funds
Net cash provided (used) by
non-capital financing activities
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing
Activities:
Principal payments on bonds and notes payable
Proceeds from bond issuance
Payments
Interest and fees paid on bonds and notes payable
Receipt of impact fees
Proceeds from sale of assets
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest on investments
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash
Cash at Beginning of Year

Governmental
Activities

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Pressurized
Storm
Irrigation
Water
Sewer
2,229,519
91,773
(473,441)
(252,545)

$

1,595,306

901,180
(407,826)
(247,391)

$

245,963

572,769
(165,134)
(163,837)
243,798

Total
$

5,785,414
91,773
(2,478,868)
(886,116)

IT Internal
Service
$

2,512,203

20,000
(5,144)
14,856

-

(108,000)

-

-

(108,000)

-

-

(108,000)

-

-

(108,000)

-

-

(1,267,187)
822,000

-

-

(1,267,187)
822,000

-

211,179

(75,488)
242,483

-

(447,363)

(795,774)

(75,488)
453,662
(1,588,072)

-

(102,827)

(242,108)

108,352

(725,555)

(795,774)

(242,108)

(1,655,085)

-

86,330

77,764

55,165

26,199

245,458

-

86,330

77,764

55,165

26,199

245,458

14,856

621,818

839,515

(494,646)

27,889

994,576

4,337,579

3,712,730

2,956,392

1,391,490

12,398,191

-

-

Cash at End of Year

$

4,959,397

$

4,552,245

$

2,461,746

$

1,419,379

$ 13,392,767

$

14,856

As reported on the Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

$

4,473,340
486,057

$

3,769,811
782,434

$

2,461,746
-

$

1,419,379
-

$ 12,124,276
1,268,491

$

14,856
-

$

4,959,397

$

4,552,245

$

2,461,746

$

1,419,379

$ 13,392,767

$

14,856

Total Cash at End of Year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020

Sewer

Governmental
Activities

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Pressurized
Storm
Irrigation
Water
Sewer

Total

IT Internal
Service

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash from (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Deferred outflows relating to pensions
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows relating to pensions

$

87,969

$

950,873

$

(122,647)

386,707

433,022

354,955

(2,758)
21,523

6,862
22,738

(2,235)
21,928

(47,167)
1,654
603
(40,930)
19,535

202,916
1,221
276
(43,238)
20,636

15,303
1,343
(887)
(41,699)
19,902

$

73,669

$

172,454

989,864

$

14,856

1,347,138

-

(499)
15,860

1,370
82,049

-

(3,145)
772
452
(30,159)
14,394

167,907
4,990
444
(156,026)
74,467

-

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$

427,136

$

1,595,306

$

245,963

$

243,798

$

2,512,203

$

14,856

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets

$

314,567

$

229,798

$

438,144

$

342,161

$

1,324,670

$

-

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Highland City, Utah (the City) was incorporated in 1977 and operates under a council-city manager form
of government. The governing body consists of five elected council members and a mayor. The heads of
the various departments, formed to provide various services, are under the direct supervision of the City
Manager. The City provides the following services: general administrative services, public safety, highway
and public works, parks and recreations, cemetery, garbage, and utilities (sewer, pressurized irrigation,
storm sewer, and culinary water).
The City’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP
for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). The
accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America as applicable to governmental units. The more significant accounting policies established in
GAAP and used by the City is discussed below.
(A) The Reporting Entity
In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity
was made by applying the criteria set forth in the related GASB pronouncement. The basic, but not
the only, criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing
body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is
financial interdependency and accountability. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight
responsibility include, but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of
management, the ability to significantly influence operations and accountability of fiscal matters. The
other criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting
entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the City is able to
exercise oversight responsibilities.
The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although
legally separate entities, are in substance, part of the government’s operations.
The Highland City Open Space Special Service District (the District) was established to provide
recreation services, including the operation and maintenance of parks, open space and trails within
certain areas of the City. The District is governed by a board of trustees composed of the City Mayor
and members of the City Council. Although it is legally separate entity from the City, the District is
reported as if it were part of the primary government because of the City’s ability to impose its will
upon the operations of the District. The District is included in these financial statements as the Open
Space Fund. Separate financial statements are not issued for the District.
The City is not a component unit of any other entity. The City’s basic financial statements include all
City operations.
(B) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The City’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole)
and fund financial statements (reporting the City’s major funds). Both the government-wide and fund
financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The City’s
general administrative services, public safety, highway and public works, parks and recreations,
cemetery, and garbage are classified as governmental activities. The City’s sewer, pressurized
irrigation, storm sewer, and water services are classified as business-type activities.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(B) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City and its component units.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges
for support.
The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those which are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they
become available. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
The use of financial resources to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the governmentwide financial statements, rather than reported as an expenditure. Proceeds of long-term debt are
recorded as a liability in the government-wide financial statements, rather than as another financing
source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term debt of the City are reported as a reduction of the related
liability, rather than an expenditure in the government-wide financial statements.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter (within 60 days) to pay liabilities of the
current period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt-service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
Sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest and earned but unreimbursed state and federal grants
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have
been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Property taxes are measurable as of the date
levied (assessed) and are recognized as revenues when they become available. Available means when
due, or past due, and received within the current period or collected soon enough thereafter (within 60
days) to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. All other revenues are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(B) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund balance, revenues, and expenditures or
expenses as appropriate.
The City reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those accounted for in another fund. Principal sources
of revenue are taxes, licenses and permits and intergovernmental revenues. Primary expenses are
for general government, public safety, streets and public works, parks and recreation, cemetery
and garbage.
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the expenditures required for the City’s debt service.
The Capital Projects – Parks Fund accounts for the City’s park impact fees and the use of those
funds.
The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s sewer treatment operations.
The Pressurized Irrigation Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s pressurized irrigation
distribution system.
The Water Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s water, treatment and distribution.
Activities of these three funds include administration, operations and maintenance of the sewer,
pressurized irrigation, and water systems, and billing and collection. The funds also account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal and interest for all
enterprise fund debt. All costs are financed through charges to utility customers with rates reviewed
regularly and adjusted, if necessary, to ensure the integrity of the funds.
The City reports a single internal service fund.
The Information Technology (IT) Internal Service Fund accounts for the City’s information
technology costs used by the City’s various departments and funds.
The effect of interfund activity has generally been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements in accordance with GAAP.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the enterprise funds are charges to customers of the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.
(C) Budgetary Data
Annual budgets are prepared and adopted, in accordance with State law, by the City Council on or
before June 22 for the following fiscal year, beginning July 1. Estimated revenues and appropriations
may be increased or decreased by resolution of the City Council at any time during the year. A public
hearing must be held prior to any proposed increase in a fund's appropriations. Budgets include
activities in several different funds, including the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Project Funds, Debt Service Fund, and Enterprise Funds. Annual budgets are also adopted for capital
projects which may include activities which overlap several fiscal years.
Utah State law prohibits the appropriation of unreserved General Fund balance until it exceeds 5% of
the General Fund revenues. Until the unreserved fund balance is greater than the above amount, it
cannot be budgeted, but is used to provide working capital until tax revenue is received, to meet
emergency expenditures, and to cover unanticipated deficits. When an unreserved fund balance is
greater than 25% of the next year's budgeted revenues, the excess must be appropriated within the
following two years.
Once adopted, the budget can be amended by subsequent City Council action. The City Council can
amend the budget to any extent, provided the total budgeted expenditures do not exceed budgeted
revenues and appropriated fund balance, in which case a public hearing must be held. The City
Administrator has the authority to transfer budget appropriations within and between any divisions of
any budgetary fund. The City Council has the authority to transfer budget appropriations between
individual budgetary funds by resolution.
Expenditures in the Capital Projects Fund are budgeted annually on a project-by-project basis.
Although it is the intention of the City that each project be funded by a specific revenue source, the
adopted budget reflects only total anticipated revenues by source.
(D) Tax Revenues
On or before June 22 of each year, the City sets the property tax rate for various municipal purposes.
If the City intends to increase property tax revenues above the tax rate of the previous year, state law
requires the City to provide public notice to property owners and hold public hearings. When these
special public hearings are necessary, the adoption of the final budget must be done before August 17.
All property taxes levied by the City are assessed and collected by Utah County. Taxes are levied as
of January 1 and are due November 30; any delinquent taxes are subject to a penalty. Unless the
delinquent taxes and penalties are paid before January 15, a lien is attached to the property, and the
amount of taxes and penalties bears interest from January 1 until paid. Tax liens are placed on a
property on January 1 following the due date of unpaid taxes. If after five years, delinquent taxes have
not been paid, the County sells the property at a tax sale. Tax collections are remitted to the City from
the County on a monthly basis.
Sales taxes and telephone franchise taxes are collected by the Utah State Tax Commission and remitted
to the City monthly.
Franchise taxes are collected by natural gas, electric utilities, and cable television companies and
remitted to the City periodically.
(E) Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments
The City considers all cash and investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
and cash equivalents. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are
defined as the cash and cash equivalent accounts and the restricted cash and cash equivalents balances.
Investments consist of accounts at the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Trust (the State Treasurer’s
Pool). Investments of the City are stated at cost, which approximates fair value in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(F) Restricted Assets
Assets whose use is restricted for construction, debt service or by other agreement are segregated on
the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. When both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
unrestricted resources as they are needed.
(G) Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
sidewalks, and similar items) are, reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government
as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated
useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost
if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of
donation. The government reports infrastructure assets on a network or subsystem basis. Accordingly,
the amounts spent for the construction or acquisition of infrastructure assets are capitalized and
reported in the government-wide financial statements.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized
as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is included
as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
Upon retirement or disposition of capital assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the respective accounts. Depreciation of capital assets is computed using the straightline method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Assets

Years

Buildings and structures
Improvements and infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

20 to 50
10 to 50
5 to 15

(H) Receivables and Payables
Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund
loans).
Receivables at June 30, 2020, consisted of property tax, franchise tax, sales tax, grants and utility
customer accounts (billings for user charged services). Taxes and grants are deemed collectible in full.
Utility charges have an allowance of $24,988.
(I) Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, businesstype activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the applicable debt. In the fund financial statements,
governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs,
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(J) Compensated Absences
Accumulated unpaid vacation is accrued as incurred based on the years of service for each employee.
Vacation is accumulated on a monthly basis. Proprietary funds expense all accrued vacation amounts
when incurred. Governmental funds report an expenditure as the vacation is paid. Employees may
accumulate up to 175% of their annual accrual. An employee who is separated from employment may
be compensated for all accrued vacation. Sick pay amounts are charged to expenditures when incurred.
Employees may accumulate up to 65 days of sick leave. Employees will not be paid for any
accumulated sick leave at separation from employment.
(K) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City currently reports deferred
outflows of resources relating to pensions, and deferred loss on refunding. The deferred outflows
relating to pensions are required to be reported as part of implementing GASB 68 Accounting and
Financial reporting for Pensions, and GASB 71 Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date. The City reports a deferred loss on refunding as part of the
advanced refunding of the 2015 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue bonds and the 2009 General
Obligation bonds, and will be amortized over the life of the refunding debt.
In addition to liabilities, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has two items which are reported under
this section: deferred property tax revenues, and deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions.
Deferred property tax revenue arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes. These amounts are deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. These amounts
account for property taxes levied on January 1, 2020 for the 2020-2021 fiscal year. The deferred
inflows relating to pensions are required to be reported as part of implementing of GASB 68, and
GASB 71, as mentioned before.
(L) Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plan (URS) and additions to/deductions from URS’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by URS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
(M) Equity Balance Classification
Fund balance is classified in the government-wide financial statements as net position and is displayed
in three components:
(1) Net investment in capital assets – consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets.
(2) Restricted net position – consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (a)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (b) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(3) Unrestricted net position – All other net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted”
or “Net investment in capital assets”.
In accordance with GASB No. 54, the City classifies fund balances in the governmental funds as
follows: Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned or Unassigned.
(1) Nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
(2) Restricted fund balance classifications are reported as restricted if, (a) externally imposed by
creditor, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
(3) Committed fund balance classification include those funds that can only be used for specific
purposed pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action (Ordinances and Resolutions) of the
City council, which is government’s highest level of decision making authority.
(4) Assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the government’s
intent to use the funds for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed, as
established by the Finance Director, City Council, or City Administrator. Also includes all
remaining amounts that are reported in governmental funds, other than the general fund that are
not classified as nonspendable, restricted nor committed or in the General Fund, that are intended
to be used for specific purposes. The assigned designation may be reversed by the Finance
Director, City Council, or City Administrator.
(5) Unassigned fund balance classification is the residual classification for the General Fund or funds
with deficit fund balances. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned
to other funds and that has not be restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within
the General Fund.
Proprietary Fund balance is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.
When restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned resources are available for use, it is the City’s
policy to use restricted resources first, followed by committed resources, then assigned resources, and
then unassigned resources as they are needed.
(N) Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
(A) Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations
The following funds incurred expenditures in excess of appropriations in the following amounts for
the year ended June 30, 2020:
Debt Service Fund
Financing costs
Payment to bond escrow agent

$

Special Revenue Fund
Open Space Fund
General government

28,584
2,857,416

107,111
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)
Capital Projects Funds
Capital Projects - Parks
Parks and recreation

37,628

Capital Projects - Roads
Streets and public works

210,614

Capital Projects - Buildings
Transfers out

25,000

Capital Projects – Town Center
Transfers out

300,000

(B) Deficit Fund Equity
As of June 30, 2020 none of the City’s funds had a deficit fund equity.
NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS
The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Cash includes amounts
in demand deposits as well as time deposits. Investments are stated at cost, which approximate fair value.
Each fund's portion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "cash and cash equivalents"
and “restricted cash and cash equivalents,” which includes cash accounts that are separately held by several
of the City's funds.
The State of Utah Money Management Council has the responsibility to advise the State Treasurer about
investment policies, promote measures and rules that will assist in strengthening the banking and credit
structure of the state, and review the rules adopted under the authority of the State of Utah Money
Management Act that relate to the deposit and investment of public funds.
The City’s deposit and investment policy is to follow the Utah Money Management Act (the Act) (Utah
Code, Title 51, Chapter 7) in handling its depository and investment transactions. The Act requires the
depositing of City funds in a qualified depository as any financial institution whose deposits are insured
by an agency of the Federal Government and which has been certified by the State Commissioner of
Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of the Act and adhering to the rules of the Utah Money
Management Council.
The Money Management Act defines the types of securities authorized as appropriate investments for the
City’s funds and the conditions for making investment transactions. Investment transactions may be
conducted only through qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers of the investment
securities.
Statutes authorize the City to invest in negotiable or nonnegotiable deposits of qualified depositories and
permitted negotiable depositories; repurchase and reverse purchase agreements; commercial paper that is
classified as “first tier” by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; bankers’ acceptances;
obligations of the United States Treasury including bills, notes, and bonds; obligations, other than mortgage
derivative products, issued by the U.S. government sponsored enterprises (U.S. Agencies) such as the
Federal Home Loan Bank System, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac), and Federal
National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae); bonds, notes, and other evidence of indebtedness of political
subdivisions of the State; fixed rate corporate obligations and variable rate securities rated “A” or higher,
or the equivalent of “A” or higher, by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; shares or
certificates in a money market mutual fund as defined in the Money Management Act; and the Utah State
Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund.

30

HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
The Utah State Treasurer’s Office operates the Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund (PTIF). The PTIF is
available for investment of funds administered by any Utah public treasurer and is not registered with the
SEC as an investment company. The PTIF is authorized and regulated by the Money Management Act
(Utah Code, Title 51, Chapter 7). The Act established the Money Management Council which oversees
the activities of the State Treasurer and PTIF and details the types of authorized investments. Deposits in
the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah, and participants share proportionally
in any realized gains or losses on investments.
The PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income, gains, and losses of
the PTIF, net of administration fees, are allocated based upon the participant’s average daily balance. The
fair value of the PTIF investment pool is approximately equal to the value of the pool shares.
Fair Value of Investments
The City measures its investments using fair value measurement guidelines, established by generally
accepted accounting principles. These guidelines recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy, as follows:
• Level 1: Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets;
• Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted market prices; and,
• Level 3: Unobservable inputs.
The City’s PTIF investment, whose fair value at June 30, 2020 was $25,250,537 was measured as a Level
2. The City maintained no other investments during the year.
The City’s cash and investments are summarized below:
Credit Rating
(1)

Weighted
Average Years
to Maturity (2)

648,376

N/A

N/A

25,250,537

25,188,863

N/A

39.84

$ 26,396,423

$ 25,837,239

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value
Cash on deposit
Investment (3):
Utah State Treasurer's Investment Pool
Total cash and cash equivalents

$

1,145,886

$

Portfolio weighted average maturity

N/A

(1) Ratings are provided where applicable to indicate associated Credit Risk. N/A indicates not applicable.
(2) Interest Rate Risk is estimated using the weighted average days to maturity.
(3) All investments are considered cash equivalents on the financial statements.

The City’s cash and cash equivalents and investments are exposed to certain risks as outlined below:
Cash Deposits
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be
returned to it. As of June 30, 2020, $895,886 of the City’s deposits was exposed to custodial credit
risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.
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Investments
The City invests in the Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund (PTIF) which is a voluntary external
Local Governmental Investment Pool managed by the Utah State Treasurer’s Office and is audited
by the Utah State Auditor. No separate report as an external investment pool has been issued for the
PTIF. The PTIF is not registered with the SEC as an investment company and is not rated. The PTIF
is authorized and regulated by the Utah Money Management Act, (Utah Code Title 51, Chapter 7).
The PTIF invests in high-grade securities which are delivered to the custody of the Utah State
Treasurer, assuring a perfected interest in the securities, and, therefore, there is very little credit risk
except in the most unusual and unforeseen circumstances. The maximum weighted average life of
the portfolio does not exceed 90 days.
Deposits in the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah, and participants
share proportionally in any realized gains or losses on investments. The PTIF operates and reports
to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income, gains, and losses, net of administration fees,
of the PTIF are allocated to participants on the ratio of the participant’s share to the total funds in
the PTIF based on the participant’s average daily balance. The PTIF allocates income and issues
statements on a monthly basis. Twice a year, at June 30 and December 31, which are the accounting
periods for public entities, the investments are valued at fair value and participants are informed of
the fair value valuation factor. Additional information is available at the Utah State Treasurer’s
Office.
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of a counterparty, the City will not be
able to recover the value of its investments that are in the possession of an outside party. The City’s
investment in the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund has no custodial credit risk.
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The City’s policy for limiting the credit risks of investments is to comply with the Utah
Money Management Act. The Act requires investment transactions to be conducted only through
qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers of the investment securities.
Permitted investments include deposits of qualified depositories; repurchase agreements;
commercial paper that is classified as “first tier” by two nationally recognized statistical rating
organizations, one of which must be Moody’s Investor Services or Standard and Poors; banker
acceptance obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. government sponsored enterprises; bonds and
notes of political subdivisions of the State of Utah; fixed rate corporate obligations and variable
rate securities rated “A” or higher by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations as
defined by the Act. The PTIF was unrated as of June 30, 2020.
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. The City manages its exposure by investing mainly in the Utah Public Treasurer’s
Investment Fund and by adhering to the Utah Money Management Act. The Act requires that the
remaining term to maturity may not exceed the period of availability of the funds to be invested.
The PTIF’s investment maturity is less than 1 year, which is among the required period of
availability of the Utah Money Management Act.
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s
investment in a single issuer. The City’s investment in the Utah Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund
has no concentration of credit risk.
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NOTE 4 INTERFUND TRANSFERS
The purpose of the transfers were to provide cash flows and pay operating expenses. Transfers were made
among the governmental funds to pay for debt service, and set aside funds for future capital projects. The
transfers among the funds for the year ended June 30, 2020 were as follows:

In
Governmental activities
General fund
Debt service fund
Capital projects - park fund
Nonmajor governmental funds

$

Out

108,000
978,000
1,324,000

Total governmental activities

$

2,410,000

1,642,000
300,000
360,000
2,302,000

Business activities
Pressurized irrigation
Total business activities
Total Transfers

$

-

108,000

-

108,000

2,410,000

$

2,410,000

NOTE 5 RESTRICTED ASSETS
Certain assets are restricted to use as follows as of June 30, 2020:

Restricted Cash
and Cash
Equivalents

Total
Restricted
Assets

Restricted
Receivables

Governmental activities
Construction bonds
Coronavirus relief funds
Exaction fee
Park construction
Road construction
B & C road

$

Total governmental activities

746,448
543,722
18,822
104,558
1,396,906
9,324

$

2,819,780

133,756

746,448
543,722
18,822
104,558
1,396,906
143,080

133,756

2,953,536

Business-type activities
Restricted for impact fees
Debt service
Total business-type activities
Total restricted assets

$

1,238,359
30,132

-

1,238,359
30,132

1,268,491

-

1,268,491

4,088,271
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NOTE 6 CAPITAL ASSETS
A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2020, is as follows:
Balance
June 30, 2019

Additions/
Transfers

Deletions/
Transfers

Balance
June 30, 2020

240,707

$ (2,504,303)
-

$37,029,600
581,836

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

$ 39,533,903
341,129

Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

39,875,032

240,707

(2,504,303)

37,611,436

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and structures
Improvements and infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

14,080,927
75,409,787
2,258,079

304,681
1,116,000
49,615

(17,207)

14,385,608
76,525,787
2,290,487

Total capital assets, being
depreciated

91,748,793

1,470,296

(17,207)

93,201,882

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures
Improvements and infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

(4,245,062)
(57,499,723)
(1,868,207)

(358,911)
(2,227,428)
(70,363)

17,207

(4,603,973)
(59,727,151)
(1,921,363)

Total accumulated depreciation (63,612,992)

(2,656,702)

17,207

(66,252,487)

28,135,801

(1,186,406)

-

26,949,395

$ 68,010,833

$ (945,699)

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation
Governmental activities capital
assets, net

$

$ (2,504,303)

$64,560,831

Governmental activities depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:
Governmental activities:
General government
Public Safety
Streets and Public Works
Parks and recreation
Cemetery

$

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities
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The Business-type activities property, plant and equipment consist of the following at June 30, 2020:
Balance
June 30, 2019

Additions/
Transfers

Deletions/
Transfers

Balance
June 30, 2020

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Water Shares
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

$

534,455
24,085,035

$

-

$

-

$

534,455
24,085,035

24,619,490

-

-

24,619,490

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and structures
Improvements and infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

1,157,289
41,092,343
2,127,839

2,500,989
411,759

-

1,157,289
43,593,332
2,539,598

Total capital assets, being
depreciated

44,377,471

2,912,748

-

47,290,219

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures
Improvements and infrastructure
Machinery, equipment and vehicles

(640,864)
(17,048,272)
(1,466,951)

(40,120)
(1,187,148)
(119,876)

-

(680,984)
(18,235,420)
(1,586,827)

Total accumulated depreciation (19,156,087)

(1,347,144)

-

(20,503,231)

25,221,384

1,565,604

-

26,786,988

$ 49,840,874

$ 1,565,604

-

$51,406,478

Total capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation
Business-type activities capital
assets, net

$

Business–type depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:
Business-type activities
Sewer
Pressurized Irrigation
Storm Drain
Water

$

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

386,707
433,022
172,454
354,961

$ 1,347,144

NOTE 7 GRANTS
The City receives financial assistance from federal and state governmental agencies in the form of grants.
The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and
conditions specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the City’s independent auditors and
other governmental auditors. Any disallowed claims resulting from such an audit could become a liability
of the General Fund or other applicable funds. Based on prior experience, the City administration believes
such disallowance, if any, would be immaterial.
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NOTE 8 DEVELOPER AND CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
Developer and customer deposits are principally deposits from customers that are held by the City for
water connections or for construction, or other projects until such time for refund is warranted.
NOTE 9 UNEARNED PROPERTY TAXES
In conjunction with GASB Statement No. 33, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Transactions” the City has accrued property tax receivable and unearned property tax revenue in the
General Fund and Library Fund in the amounts of $1,789,358, and $269,166 respectively.
Property taxes recorded in the governmental funds are recorded using the modified accrual basis of
accounting, wherein revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available (expected to be
received within 60 days). Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of the first day of
January. Property taxes are levied on October 1, and then are due and payable at November 30. Since the
property tax amounts are not expected to be received within 60 days after the year ended June 30, 2020
and are intended to fund operations of fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the City has recorded both a
receivable and deferred inflow of resources of the estimated amount of the total property tax to be levied
on October 1, 2020.
NOTE 10 JOINT VENTURE
The City and two other municipalities (the Members) entered into an interlocal agreement to create Lone
Peak Public Safety District (Lone Peak). Lone Peak was created to provide fire, emergency medical
services, and police services. Lone peak is funded by direct payments from the Member cities which is
allocated on a population basis. Lone Peak is governed by a Board of Public Safety Commissioners
composed of two elected or appointed officials from each of the Member cities.
Audited financial statements for Lone Peak are prepared annually and can be obtained from Lone Peak’s
finance director, Lone Peak Public Safety District, 5400 W Civic Center Blvd. Suite #1.
A summary of transactions between the City and Lone Peak is shown below:

2020
Payments to Lone Peak:
Administrative expenses
Grants awarded (Coronavirus Relief Funds)
Member payments for
Police
Fire / EMS
Total payments to Lone Peak
Receipts from Lone Peak:
Rent of office space
Reimbursement of employee wages
and office supplies used by Lone Peak
Total receipts from Lone Peak
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$

148,665
813,773
2,186,104
1,852,180

$

5,000,722

$

220,759
42,523

$

263,282
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NOTE 11 LONG-TERM DEBT
The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the year ended June 30, 2020:
June 30,
2019

Governmental Activities:
Direct Placement
Revenue Bonds, Series 2015
Revenue Bonds, Series 2016
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020

$ 3,215,000
4,677,000
-

Additions
$

June 30,
2020

Retirements

2,886,000

$ (3,215,000)
(435,000)
-

$

Due Within
One Year

4,242,000
2,886,000

$

445,000
395,000

Total bonds payable

7,892,000

2,886,000

(3,650,000)

7,128,000

840,000

Other long-term liabilities
Compensated absences
Net pension liability

205,409
590,975

92,107
-

(79,380)
(305,585)

218,136
285,390

99,889
-

796,384

92,107

(384,965)

503,526

99,889

8,688,384

$ 2,978,107

$ (4,034,965)

$ 7,631,526

Total other long-term liabilities
Governmental activities long-term
liabilities

$

$

939,889

Governmental Activities:
Revenue Bonds
Series 2015 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, original issue of
$3,970,000, principal due in annual installments beginning September 2017,
interest ranging from 1.00% to 3.30% due in semi-annual installments beginning
March 2015, with the final payment due September 2026. The bonds were issued
to partially refund the Series 2006 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds. These
bonds were refunded with the 2020 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds.

$

-

Series 2016 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, original issue of
$4,970,000, principal due in annual installments beginning September 2018,
interest at 2.095% due in semi-annual installments beginning March 2016, with
the final payment due September 2027. The bonds were issued to partially refund
the Series 2007 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds.

4,242,000

Series 2020 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, original issue of
$2,886,000, principal due in annual installments beginning September 2020,
interest at 1.08% due in semi-annual installments beginning September 2020, with
the final payment due September 2026. The bonds were issued to refund the Series
2015 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds.

2,886,000

Total Tax Revenue Bonds - Governmental Activities

$ 7,128,000

During the year, the City issued Series 2020 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue bonds. The net proceeds of
$2,857,416 (after issuance costs of $28,584) were used to advance refund the 2015 Sales and Franchise
Tax Revenue Bonds with remaining principal of $2,886,000 and interest rate ranging from 1.00% and
3.30%.
The net proceeds were placed in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for future debt service
payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refundable bonds are considered to be defeased, and the
related liability for the bonds has been removed from the City’s liabilities.
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The advance refunding was done to reduce debt service payments. The refunding decreases the City’s debt
service payments by $163,126. The transaction resulted in an economic gain (difference between the
present value of the debt service on the old and the new bonds) of $155,164. The deferred loss on refunding
of $107,035 will be amortized over the remaining life of the 2020 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds.
At June 30, 2020, $2,851,000 of defeased bonds were outstanding.
All of the City’s Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds (both Governmental and Business-type) are
payable solely by a pledge and assignment of their associated revenue sources. Total future sales tax of
$7,128,000 has been pledged through 2028. The current revenue recognized during the period for pledged
Franchise and Sales Tax Revenue bonds was $3,672,462 compared to principal and interest of $972,148
paid during the year which equals a coverage ratio of 3.78.
The Series 2020 and 2016 Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding bonds contain provisions that in the event
of default, the bondholders may force payment of the outstanding bonds whether through legal action or
through the appointment of a receiver.
The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest for the long-term debt,
as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Governmental Activities
Sales and Franchise Tax
Revenue Bonds
Principal
Interest

Year Ending
June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026-2028

June 30,
2019
Business-type Activities:
Direct Placement
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020
Notes payable

$

Other Bonds
General obligation bonds, Series 2009
Plus: unamortized premiums

Other long-term liabilites
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Total other long-term liabilities
$

840,000
851,000
863,000
879,000
894,000
2,801,000

$

97,196
101,747
87,967
73,818
59,535
85,156

$

7,128,000

$

505,418

Additions

$

1,185,000
16,633

Total bonds and notes payable

Business-type activities long-term
liabilities

1,836,980

$

822,000
-

June 30,
2020

Retirements

$

(82,187)
(1,185,000)
(16,633)

$

822,000
1,754,793

Due Within
One Year

$

-

410,000
86,791
-

3,038,613

822,000

(1,283,820)

2,576,793

496,791

109,410
342,659

41,927
-

(41,483)
(156,026)

109,854
186,633

47,516
-

452,069

41,927

(197,509)

296,487

47,516

863,927

$ (1,481,329)

$ 2,873,280

3,490,682
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Business-type Activities
General Obligation Bonds
Series 2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, original issue of $4,310,000,
principal payments due in annual installments beginning May 2010, interest at
2.75% to 4.125% due in semi-annual installments beginning November 2009 with
the final payment due May 2022. The bonds were issued to refund the outstanding
portion of the 1998 General Obligation Refunding Bonds. These bonds were
refunded with the Series 2020 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds.
Total General Obligation Bonds - Business-type Activities

$

-

$

-

$

822,000

$

822,000

$

368,884

Revenue Bonds
Series 2020 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, original issue of
$822,000, principal payments due in annual installments beginning September
2020, interest at 1.08% due in semi-annual installments beginning September
2020 with the final payment due September 2021. The bonds were issued to refund
the outstanding portion of the 2009 General Obligation Refunding Bonds.
Total Revenue Bonds - Business-type Activities
Notes Payable - Direct Borrowings
Note payable to the Provo River Users Association for the City’s portion of costs
relating to the Provo Reservoir Canal Enclosure Project. Original amount
$615,833, interest at 4.00%, approximately 22% of original principal is due in two
equal installments in July 2010 and March 2011 along with accrued interest.
Remaining principal and interest to be paid in annual installments beginning March
2012 with final payment due March 2035.
Assessment payable to the Highland Conservation District for the City’s portion of
costs relating to the Provo Reservoir Canal Enclosure Project. Original amount
$1,563,945, principal and interest at 2.65% due in installments beginning
November 2010 with final installment due November 2035.
Total Notes Payable - Business-type Activities

1,385,909
$ 1,754,793

The Series 2020 Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding bonds contain provisions that in the event of default,
the bondholders may force payment of the outstanding bonds whether through legal action or through the
appointment of a receiver.
No remedies for events of default were noted in the agreements for the above notes payables.
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest for the long-term debt,
as of June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Business-type Activities
Sales and Franchise Tax
Revenue Bond
Principal
Interest

Year Ending
June 30,
2021
2022

$

410,000
412,000

$

5,924
2,225

$

822,000

$

8,149

Business-type Activities
Notes Payable - Direct Borrowing
Principal
Interest

Year Ending
June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026-2030
2031-2035

$

86,791
108,124
109,648
111,220
112,835
589,700
636,475

$

26,565
25,340
23,811
22,244
20,638
77,658
30,877

$

1,754,793

$

227,133

During the year, the City issued Series 2020 Sales and Franchise Tax Revenue bonds. The net proceeds of
$813,964 and $391,000 of City-provided funds for a total of $1,204,964 (after issuance costs of $8,036)
were used to advance refund the 2009 General Obligation Bonds with remaining principal of $1,185,000
and interest rate ranging from 2.75% and 4.125%.
The net proceeds were placed in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for future debt service
payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refundable bonds are considered to be defeased, and the
related liability for the bonds has been removed from the City’s liabilities.
The advance refunding was done reduce debt service payments. The refunding decreases the City’s debt
service payments by $24,475. The transaction resulted in an economic gain (difference between the present
value of the debt service on the old and the new bonds) of $14,661. No deferred gain or loss on refunding
resulted from this transaction. At June 30, 2020, $822,000 of defeased bonds are still outstanding.
During fiscal year 2015, the City defeased $3,970,000 of the 2006 Sales and Franchise Tax revenue bonds
by placing new bond proceeds in an irrevocable trust to provide for the future debt service payments on
the defeased bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not
included in the government’s financial statements. At June 30, 2020, $2,725,000 of defeased bonds are
still outstanding.
During fiscal year 2016, the City defeased $4,600,000 of the 2007 Sales and Franchise Tax revenue bonds
by placing new bond proceeds in an irrevocable trust to provide for the future debt service payments on
the defeased bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not
included in the government’s financial statements. At June 30, 2020, $3,890,000 of defeased bonds are
still outstanding.
No interest was capitalized during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Total interest incurred and charged
to expense totaled $239,624.
Compensated absence balances are liquidated out of the funds from where the employees are allocated.
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NOTE 12 RISK MANAGEMENT
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial
insurance. This insurance covers all of these risks except natural disasters. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage, and no settlements or incidents have exceeded the City’s insurance
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
NOTE 13 PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS

Plan Description
Eligible plan participants are provided with pensions through the Utah Retirement Systems. The Utah
Retirement Systems are comprised of the following pension trust funds:
Defined Benefit Plans
•
•

Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System (Noncontributory System); is a multiple
employer, cost-sharing, public employee retirement system.
Tier 2 Public Employees Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Employees System) is a
multiple employer cost-sharing, public employee retirement system.

The Tier 2 Public Employees System became effective July 1, 2011. All eligible employees beginning on
or after July 1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any of the Utah Retirement Systems, are
members of the Tier 2 Retirement System.
The Utah Retirement Systems (Systems) are established and governed by the respective sections of Title
49 of the Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. The System’s defined benefit plans are amended
statutorily by the State Legislature. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Title 49 provides for the
administration of the Systems under the direction of the Utah State Retirement Board, whose members are
appointed by the Governor. The Systems are fiduciary funds defined as pension (and other employee
benefit) trust funds. URS is a component unit of the State of Utah. Title 49 of the Utah Code grants the
authority to establish and amend the benefit terms.
URS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained by writing Utah Retirement Systems,
560 E. 200 S. Salt Lake City, Utah 84102 or visiting the website: www.urs.org/general/publications.
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Summary of Benefits by System
Benefits Provided
URS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement benefits are as follows:

System
Noncontributory
System

Final Average
Salary
Highest 3
years

Tier 2 Public
Employees System

Highest 5
years

Years of Service
required and/or age
eligible for benefit
30 years any age
25 years any age*
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65
35 years any age
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

Benefit percent per
year of service
2.0% per year all years

COLA**
Up to 4%

1.5% per year all years

Up to 2.5%

* Actuarial reductions are applied.
** All post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the original benefit
except for Judges, which is a compounding benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments are also limited to the
actual Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase for the year, although unused CPI increases no met may be
carried forward to subsequent years.

Contribution Rate Summary
As a condition of participation in the Systems, employers and/or employees are required to contribute
certain percentages of salary and wages as authorized by statute and specified by the Utah State Retirement
Board. Contributions are actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee
contributions (where applicable), is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during
the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Contribution rates
as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Employee

Employer

Employer
401(k)

N/A

15.66%

1.03%

Noncontributory System
15 - Local Governmental Div - Tier 1

N/A

18.47%

N/A

Tier 2 DC Only
211 - Local Government

N/A

6.69%

10.00%

Utah Retirement Systems
Contributory System
111 - Local Government Div - Tier 2

Tier 2 rates include a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of
the Tier 1 plans.
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For fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the employer and employee contributions to the Systems were as
follows:

System
Noncontributory System
Tier 2 Public Employees System
Tier 2 DC Only System
Total Contributions

Employer
Contributions
$ 179,819
51,938
17,442

Employee
Contributions
N/A
N/A

$

$

249,199

-

Contributions reported are the URS Board-approved required contributions by System. Contributions in
the Tier 2 Systems are used to finance the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 Systems.
Combined Pension Assets, Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
Relating to Pensions
At June 30, 2020, we reported a net pension asset of $0 and a net pension liability of $472,023.

Noncontributory System
Tier 2 Public Employees System
Total Net Pension Asset / Liability

(Measurement Date): December 31, 2019
Net Pension
Net Pension Proportionate
Asset
Liability
Share
$
$ 466,508
0.1237794%
5,515
0.0245204%
$

-

$

Proportionate
Share 2018
0.1255408%
0.0214487%

Change
(Decrease)
-0.0017614%
0.0030717%

472,023

The net pension asset and liability was measured as of December 31, 2019, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension asset and liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January
1, 2018 and rolled-forward using generally accepted actuarial procedures. The proportion of the net pension
asset and liability is equal to the ratio of the employer’s actual contributions to the Systems during the plan
year over the total of all employer contributions to the System during the plan year.
For the year ended June 30, 2020 we recognized pension expense of $250,472.
At June 30, 2020 we reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources relating to
pensions from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual experience

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$
43,977

Changes in assumptions

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$
8,594

51,764

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

158

-

240,156

6,017

29,071

124,181
$

225,939

$

277,979

$124,181 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contributions made
by us prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31, 2019.
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These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming fiscal
year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter

Net Deferred Outflows
(inflows) of Resources
$
(33,440)
(62,314)
6,052
(90,811)
576
3,716

Noncontributory System Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
For the year ended June 30, 2020, we recognized pension expense of $219,447.
At June 30, 2020 we reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources relating to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$
42,434

Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$
6,701

49,409

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments

-

Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

972

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

235,917
28,776

88,784
$

181,599

$

271,394

$88,784 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contributions made by
us prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31, 2019.
These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming fiscal
year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions, will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter
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Net Deferred Outflows
(inflows) of Resources
$
(32,872)
(61,828)
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-
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Tier 2 Public Employees System Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
For the year ended June 30, 2020, we recognized pension expense of $31,025.
At June 30, 2020 we reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources relating to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$
1,543

Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$
1,893

2,355

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments

-

Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

4,239

5,045

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

158

295

35,397
$

44,340

$

6,585

$35,397 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from contributions made by
us prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31, 2019.
These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming fiscal
year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions, will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter

Net Deferred Outflows
(inflows) of Resources
$
(568)
(486)
239
(1,120)
576
3,717

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Inflation
Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return

2.50 Percent
3.25 – 9.75 percent, average, including inflation
6.95 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,
including inflation

Mortality rates were developed from actual experience and mortality tables, based on gender, occupation
and age, as appropriate, with adjustments for future improvement in mortality based on Scale AA, a model
developed by the Society of Actuaries.
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The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the five year period ending December 31, 2016.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method, in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class and is applied
consistently to each defined benefit pension plan. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Expected Return Arithmetic Basis
Long-Term
Real Return
expected
Target
Arithmetic
portfolio real
Allocation
Basis
rate of return
40.00%
6.15%
2.46%
20.00%
0.40%
0.08%
15.00%
5.75%
0.86%
9.00%
9.95%
0.89%
16.00%
2.85%
0.46%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
100.00%
4.75%
Inflation
2.50%
Expected arithmetic nominal return
7.25%

Asset Class
Equity securities
Debt securities
Real assets
Private equity
Absolute return
Cash and cash equivalents
Totals

The 6.95% assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation rate of 2.50%, a real return of
4.45% that is net of investment expense.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.95 percent. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate, and that contributions from all participating employers will be made at contractually
required rates that are actuarially determined and certified by the URS Board. Based on those assumptions,
the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current, active, and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments, to determine the total
pension liability. The discount rate does not use the Municipal Bond Index Rate. The discount rate
remained unchanged at 6.95 percent.
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Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset and Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate
The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 6.95 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (5.95 percent) or 1 percentage point higher
(7.95 percent) than the current rate:

System
Noncontributory System
Tier 2 Public Employees System
Total

1% Decrease
(5.95%)
$ 1,457,068
47,557

Discount Rate
(6.95%)
$ 466,508
5,515

1% Increase
(7.95%)
$ (359,608)
(26,976)

$ 1,504,625

$

$ (386,584)

472,023

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position of the pension plans is available in the
separately issued URS financial report.
Defined Contribution Savings Plans
The Defined Contribution Savings Plans are administered by the Utah Retirement Systems Board and are
generally supplemental plans to the basic retirement benefits of the Retirement Systems, but may also be
used as a primary retirement plan. These plans are voluntary tax-advantaged retirement savings programs
authorized under sections 401(k), 457(b) and 408 of the Internal Revenue Code. Detailed information
regarding plan provisions is available in the separately issued URS financial report.
Highland City participates in the following Defined Contribution Savings Plans with Utah Retirement
Systems:
•
•
•

401(k) Plan
457(b) Plan
Roth IRA Plan

Employee and Employer contributions to the Utah Retirement Defined Contribution Savings Plans for
fiscal year ended June 30, were as follows:

2020
401(k) Plan
Employer Contributions
Employee Contributions

$

226,075
57,483

2019
$

211,979
49,379

2018
$

207,313
43,608

457 Plan
Employer Contributions
Employee Contributions

168
31,315

8
30,073

32,279

Roth IRA Plan
Employer Contributions
Employee Contributions

N/A
25,168

N/A
22,486

N/A
19,382

NOTE 14 COMMITMENTS AND AGREEMENTS
The City has commitments to reimburse developers related to the Town Center project in the aggregate
amount of $203,342, which will be ultimately resolved after exaction fees are received by the Towne
Center fund.
47

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

HIGHLAND CITY
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
UTAH RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
June 30, 2020
Measurement Date of December 31, 2019
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

For the year ended December 31,
Noncontributory Retirement System
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014

Proportion of
the net
pension
liability
(asset)
0.1237794%
0.1255408%
0.1355806%
0.1344475%
0.1325309%
0.1363938%

Tier 2 Public Employees Retirement System
2019
0.0245204%
2018
0.0214487%
2017
0.0131953%
2016
0.0055885%
2015
0.0257634%
2014
0.0529626%

Proportionate
share of the
net pension
liability
(asset) as a
percentage of
its coveredemployee
payroll

Plan fiduciary
net position
as a
percentage of
the total
pension
liability
(asset)

$ 1,000,176
1,030,491
1,146,754
1,159,548
1,074,504
1,102,809

46.64%
89.71%
51.80%
74.45%
69.79%
53.70%

93.7%
87.0%
91.9%
87.3%
87.8%
90.2%

$

1.62%
3.68%
0.90%
1.36%
-0.03%
-0.62%

96.5%
90.8%
97.4%
95.1%
100.2%
103.5%

Proportionate
share of the
net pension
liability
(asset)
$

466,508
924,448
594,019
863,317
749,924
592,254

$

5,515
9,186
1,163
623
(56)
(1,605)

Covered
payroll

* This schedule will be built out prospectively to show a 10-year history.
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341,008
249,592
129,115
45,830
166,425
259,759

HIGHLAND CITY
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
UTAH RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

As of fiscal year ended June 30,
Nontributory System
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
Tier 2 Public Employees System*
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014

Actuarial
Determined
Contributions

Contributions
in relation to
the
contractually
required
contribution

Contribution
deficiency
(excess)

$

179,819
182,483
214,531
208,321
203,435
196,026
201,281

$

179,819
182,483
214,531
208,321
203,435
196,026
201,281

$

-

$

999,719
988,035
1,161,508
1,127,891
1,101,435
1,061,320
1,164,149

17.99%
18.47%
18.47%
18.47%
18.47%
18.47%
17.29%

$

51,938
51,028
25,881
12,716
15,233
32,860
29,672

$

51,938
51,028
25,881
12,716
15,233
32,860
29,672

$

-

$

331,660
328,367
171,285
85,288
102,166
219,947
212,094

15.66%
15.54%
15.11%
14.91%
14.91%
14.94%
13.99%

17,442
14,438
12,667
12,219
10,842
4,872
561

$

17,442
14,438
12,667
12,219
10,842
4,872
561

$

-

$

260,718
215,812
189,347
182,652
162,056
72,506
10,060

6.69%
6.69%
6.69%
6.69%
6.69%
6.72%
5.58%

Tier 2 Public Employees DC Only System*
2020
$
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014

Covered
payroll

Contributions
as a
percentage of
covered
payroll

* Contributions in Tier 2 include an amortization rate to help fund the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 systems.
** This schedule will be built out prospectively to show a 10-year history. Contributions as a percentage of
covered-payroll may be different than the board certified rate due to rounding and other administrative issues.
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Changes in Assumptions:
As a result of the passage of SB 129, the retirement rates for members in the Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter
Hybrid System have been modified to be the same as the assumption used to model the retirement pattern in the Tier
I Public Safety and Firefighter Systems, except for a 10% load at first eligibility for unreduced retirement prior to age
65.
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HIGHLAND CITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET – NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2020
Special Revenue

Open Space
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Accounts
Property taxes
Total Assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Payable from restricted assets

$

$

4,633
-

23,693
-

Road Fee
$

-

1,270,642
-

Library
$

6,738
-

34,872
-

Road
Building
Capital Project Capital Project
$

275,944

277,222
1,396,906

$

-

218,058

$

23,693

$

1,277,380

$

310,816

$

1,674,128

$

$

41,137
19,068
-

$

9,701
-

$

91,230
-

$

3,915
-

$

5,438
-

$

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned property tax revenue
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Impact fees
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
$

60,205

9,701

91,230

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,915

891,397
-

Northwest
Annexation

Total
Town Center
Nonmajor
Capital
Governmental
Projects
Funds

$

$

-

$

Total Liabilities

Total Liabilities, Deferred
Inflows, and Fund Balances

213,425
-

Cemetery
Perpetual Care

Capital Projects

891,397

-

114,292
-

$

$

114,292

-

179,243
18,822

$ 3,004,786
1,415,728

$

198,065

$

18,822

11,371
275,944
$ 4,707,829

$

151,421
19,068
18,822

5,438

-

-

18,822

189,311

269,166

-

-

-

-

269,166

269,166

-

-

-

-

269,166

157,853
-

13,992
-

1,186,150
-

37,735
-

1,396,906
271,784
-

891,397
-

114,292
-

179,243
-

1,396,906
2,852,446
-

157,853

13,992

1,186,150

37,735

1,668,690

891,397

114,292

179,243

4,249,352

198,065

$ 4,707,829

218,058

$

23,693

$

1,277,380

$
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310,816

$

1,674,128

$

891,397

$

114,292

$

HIGHLAND CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
Special Revenue

Open Space
Revenues:
Taxes
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Impact fees
Contributions from other governments
Interest income

$

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Streets and public works
Cemetery
Capital outlay
Debt service - bond fees
Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources:
Sale of capital assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning
Fund Balances, Ending

291,918
8,580

Cemetery
Perpetual Care
$

Road Fee
$

1,046,335
21,381

Library
$

310,908
25,160
12,375
10,833
976

Road
Building
Capital Project Capital Project
$

224,245
30,594

$

75,883
6,582

Northwest
Annexation

Total
Town Center
Nonmajor
Capital
Governmental
Projects
Funds

$

$

2,174

8,927

$

310,908
1,583,743
12,375
300,128
10,833
79,543

300,498

220,659

1,067,716

360,252

254,839

82,465

2,174

8,927

2,297,530

709,602
-

206,652
-

230,122
-

361,509
-

864,614
-

231,048
3,026

-

-

1,071,111
1,094,736
206,652
231,048
3,026

709,602

206,652

230,122

361,509

864,614

234,074

-

-

2,606,573

(409,104)

14,007

837,594

(1,257)

(609,775)

(151,609)

2,174

8,927

49,266
150,000
-

-

-

-

600,000
-

574,000
(60,000)

-

(300,000)

49,266
1,324,000
(360,000)

199,266

-

-

-

600,000

514,000

-

(300,000)

1,013,266

(209,838)

14,007

362,391

2,174

(291,073)

704,223

529,006

112,118

367,691
$

220,330
329

Capital Projects

157,853

(15)
$

13,992

$

837,594

(1,257)

348,556

38,992

1,186,150

$

52

37,735

(9,775)
1,678,465
$

1,668,690

$

891,397

$

114,292

$

(309,043)

470,316

3,545,129

179,243

$ 4,249,352

SUPPLEMENTAL REPORTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Highland City Corporation
Highland, Utah
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, the General Fund budgetary comparison schedule, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Highland City Corporation, Utah (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated January 13, 2021.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We
did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs as item 2020-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
City of Highland, Utah’s Response to the Finding
The City’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying corrective action plan. The
City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Telephone (801) 590-2600
Fax (801) 265-9405
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1455 West 2200 South, Suite 201
Salt Lake City, Utah 84119

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Keddington & Christensen, LLC
Salt Lake City, Utah
January 13, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the City Council
City of Highland, Utah
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited the City of Highland’s (the City) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal
awards applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal programs based on our
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the City Highland, Utah complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2020.
Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of the City, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

Telephone (801) 590-2600
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Keddington & Christensen, LLC
Salt Lake City, Utah
January 13, 2021
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HIGHLAND CITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements
1. Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements
audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:

Unmodified

2. Internal control over financial reporting:
a. Material weakness(es) identified?

Yes

b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

None reported

3. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

No

Federal Awards
1. Internal control over financial reporting:
a. Material weakness(es) identified?

No

b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

None reported

2. Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs:

Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

No

4. Identification of major federal program:
CFDA Number

Name of Federal
Program or Cluster

21.019

Coronavirus Relief Funds

5. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:

$750,000

6. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

No

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

2020-001: Financial Close and Reporting (Material Weakness)
Condition: During our audit, material adjustments were required to bring the City’s financial statements into
compliance with generally accepted accounting principles as it relates to governmental entities.
Criteria: Utah Code Annotated (UCA) 10-6-107 states: “The accounting records of cities shall be established
and maintained, and financial statements prepared from those records in conformance with generally
accepted accounting principles…”
Cause: As a result of the former finance director leaving prior to the fiscal year-end and the length of time
until the new finance director was hired, there was not sufficient time for the new finance director to
familiarize himself with the City’s accounting system to properly close-out and reconcile the City’s financial
statements prior to the audit.
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HIGHLAND CITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
2020-001: Financial Close and Reporting (Material Weakness) (Continued)
Effect: Several material audit adjustments were required to be made to correct the financial statements. These
adjustments impacted the following significant areas:
• Taxes receivable
• Intergovernmental receivables
• Prepaid expenses
• Accounts payable
• Unearned revenue
• Long-term debt
• Deferred inflows of resources relating to property taxes
• Tax revenues
• Intergovernmental revenues
• Transfers
• Other financing sources and uses
Recommendation: We recommend the City staff prepare reconciliations for all significant balance sheet
accounts in preparation of closing out the fiscal year. We also recommend the City implement policies and
procedures to ensure that the City’s records can be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
None
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HIGHLAND CITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/
Program Title/Program or Cluster Title
U.S. Department of the Treasury (USDT)
Utah County Government - Coronavirus Relief Fund
Total USDT

Federal
CFDA
Number

Pass
Through Entity
Identifying Number

21.019

None

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Passed
Through to
Subrecipients

Total Federal
Expenditures

$

813,773
813,773

$

823,614
823,614

$

813,773

$

823,614

$

823,614
802,442

$

1,626,056

Reconciliation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards to the Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Federal grant revenues
State and other local grants
Total intergovernmental revenues
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HIGHLAND CITY
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2020
NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of Highland City (the City) for the year ended June 30, 2020. The information in the Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 1. U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City,
it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net fund balance or net position,
or cash flows of the City.
NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE
The City has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimus indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.
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Highland City
5400 W Civic Center Dr., Ste 1
Highland, UT 84003
(801) 756‐5751
www.highlandcity.org

Corrective Action Plan – Finding 2020-001 – Financial Close and Reporting
Person(s) responsible for overseeing corrective action: Nathan Crane (City Administrator) and
Tyler Bahr (Finance Director)
We agree with the finding and the recommendation. We will prepare reconciliations for all
significant balance sheet accounts in preparation of closing out of fiscal year, and adjust the
financials as necessary to make sure the financial information is maintained in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.
Anticipated completion date: June 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE

Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council
Highland City Corporation
Highland, Utah
Report on Compliance
We have audited Highland City, Utah’s (the City) compliance with the applicable state compliance requirements
described in the State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the State Auditor, for the year ended June 30,
2020.
State compliance requirements were tested for the year ended June 30, 2020 in the following areas:
Budgetary Compliance
Fund Balance
Justice Courts
Restricted Taxes and Related Restricted Revenues
Open and Public Meetings Act
Fraud Risk Assessment
Cash Management
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the state requirements referred to above.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit of the state compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Compliance Audit Guide.
Those standards and the State Compliance Audit Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the state compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a state compliance requirement occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each state compliance
requirement referred to above. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance
with those requirements.
Basis for Qualified Opinion on Budgetary Compliance
As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and recommendations as required by the State Compliance
Audit Guide, the City did not comply with the requirements regarding Budgetary Compliance as the City exceeded
budgeted expenditures in several funds (see item 2020-004). Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our
opinion to comply with the requirements applicable to Budgetary Compliance.
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Qualified Opinion on Budgetary Compliance
In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the City
complied, in all material respects, with the state compliance requirements referred to above for the year ended June
30, 2020.
Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other State Compliance Areas
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the other state compliance requirements referred to
above for the year ended June 30, 2020.
Other Matters
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in
accordance with the State Compliance Audit Guide and which are described in the schedule of findings and
recommendations as required by the State Compliance Audit Guide as items 2020-002, and 2020-003. Our opinion on
compliance is not modified with respect to these matters.
The City’s response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and recommendations as required by the State Compliance Guide. The City’s response was not subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the state compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the state compliance requirements referred to above to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance with those state compliance requirements and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the State Compliance Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and
correct noncompliance with a state compliance requirement on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there
is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a state compliance requirement will not be prevented or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a state compliance requirement that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State Compliance Audit Guide.
Accordingly this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Keddington & Christensen, LLC
Salt Lake City, Utah
January 13, 2021
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HIGHLAND CITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
REQUIRED BY THE STATE COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
2020-002: Open and Public Meetings Act (Significant Deficiency)
Condition: During our testing of the Open and Public Meetings Act (the Act), it was noted that the May 5,
2020 council meeting minutes was approved on June 2, 2020 but was not uploaded to the Utah Public Notice
website until June 9, 2020, which was not within the three business days required by the Act.
Criteria: Utah Code Annotated (the UCA) section 52-4-203(4)(e)(ii) states: “A state public body shall: within
three business days after approving written minutes of an open meeting: post to the [Utah Public Notice
website] a copy of the approved minutes.”
Cause: Due to an oversight, the City did not upload a copy of the approved meeting minutes to the Utah
Public Notice website within the three business day requirement.
Effect: The City was not in compliance with the aforementioned portion of the Act.
Recommendation: We recommend the City develop policies and procedures to ensure that approved meeting
minutes are uploaded to the Utah Public Notice website in the required timeframe.
Management’s Response: We agree with the finding and will increase our efforts to ensure approved minutes
are uploaded as required.
2020-003: Cash Management – Utah Money Management Act (Significant Deficiency)
Condition: During our testing of State Compliance, it was noted that the City had not filed their Deposit &
Investment (D&I) report with the Money Management Council by the required due date.
Criteria: The UCA section 51-7-15(3)(a) states: “A public treasurer shall file a written report with the [Money
Management Council] on or before January 31 and July 31 of each year.”
Cause: Due to an oversight, the City did not file the D&I report with the Money Management Council until
after the deadline required by the UCA.
Effect: The City was not in compliance with the aforementioned portion of the Money Management Act.
Recommendation: We recommend the City develop policies and procedures to ensure that the D&I report is
filed in a timely manner.
Management’s Response: We agree with the finding and will improve our efforts to prepare the D&I report
and get it submitted before the deadline.
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HIGHLAND CITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
REQUIRED BY THE STATE COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
2020-004: Budgetary Compliance (Material Weakness)
Condition: During our testing of State Compliance, it was noted that the City had expenditures in excess of
approved appropriations in the following funds:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Debt Service
Capital Projects – Parks
Open Space
Capital Projects – Roads
Capital Projects – Buildings
Capital Projects – Town Center

Criteria: The UCA section 10-6-123 states: “City officers may not make or incur expenditures…in excess of
total appropriations for any department in the budget as adopted or as subsequently amended.”
Cause: Expenditures were not properly monitored and compared to the budget near year-end to determine
whether additional budget amendments would be necessary. In some cases, expenditures were unexpected
near year-end and budget amendments could not be made in time.
Effect: The City was not in compliance with the aforementioned portion of the UCA.
Recommendation: We recommend the City staff monitor more closely the expenditures of the City and make
the appropriate budget amendments as necessary.
Management’s Response: We agree with the finding. We will monitor more closely the expenditures and try
to better estimate costs near year-end in order to make the appropriate budget amendments to stay in
compliance with the State Code.
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT
ITEM #4a
DATE:

January 19, 2021

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM:

Rod Mann, Mayor

PREPARED BY:

Stephannie Cottle, City Recorder

SUBJECT:

PLANNING COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS: Audrey Moore, Chris
Howden, Mino Morgese, and Tyler Standifird. Administrative

PURPOSE:
The Council will consider the Mayor’s request to ratify the appointment of Audrey Moore,
Chris Howden, and Mino Morgese to the Planning Commission, with Tyler Standifird as
an alternate commissioner. The Council will take appropriate action.
BACKGROUND:
The Planning Commission is made of seven members appointed by the Mayor with the
advice and consent of the City Council. Commissioners serve four year terms beginning
February first of each year. The Commission provides recommendations to the City
Council on land use matters.
With the resignation of Christopher Kemp, one seat needed to be filled, as well as one
alternate. Audrey Moore will be filling the duration of Christopher Kemp’s term and Tyler
Standifird will be filling the alternate seat. In addition, there are two seats in which the
terms have expired. The Mayor interviewed interested residents and is recommending the
following be appointed:
Seat
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Name
Audrey Moore
Claude Jones
Sherry Carruth
Chris Howden
Mino Morgese
Jerry Abbott
Seth Barrus

Alternate Tyler Standifird
FISCAL IMPACT:
None
PROPOSED MOTION:

Term
Expiration
2023
2023
2022
2025
2025
2024
2024
2025

Notes
Formerly Christopher Kemp’s seat

Replacing Audry Moore as alternate

I move that the City Council ratify the Mayor’s appointment of Audrey Moore to serve a
two-year term, Chris Howden to serve a four-year term, Mino Morgese to serve a four-year
term, and Tyler Standifird (alternate) to serve a four-year term on the Planning
Commission.
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Tyler Standifird Volunteer Statement
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT
ITEM 4b
DATE:

January 19, 2021

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM:

Todd Trane, PE
City Engineer

SUBJECT: Construction Contract: Culinary Well #2 and Well #3 Improvements.
Administrative

PURPOSE:
The City Council will consider a request to approve a contract with Rhino Pumps to
replace the pumps in Culinary Well #2 and Well #3. The Council will take appropriate
action.
BACKGROUND:
Highland City has five wells within the culinary water system. Over the last several
years ground water levels have lowered so much that two of the five (#4 and #5) wells have
been rendered almost unusable.
Well #1 is a small well and is used strictly to supplement low flows when needed. City
staff almost exclusively rely on wells #2 and #3 to supply drinking water to the residents
of Highland. During the summer months we run both of these wells together to keep up
with demand. If one of these wells were to fail, we would need to put the City on water
restrictions or try to use one of the unreliable wells that produce milky looking water (not
dirty, just entrained air).

This is what entrained air looks like. It goes away over time.

Culinary well #3 started to have pumping problems in the spring of 2020. The well has
slowly declined for the last 8 months in pumping capacity. This is not usual for a well to
slowly decline, it is almost always a significant drop when something goes wrong. As soon
as we made it through summer, and could afford to completely take #3 off line, we started
trouble shooting the well. We sent the meter away to be tested and it came back fine. We
had Rhino Pumps (a local pump contractor) look at the problem and they said they had
seen this a couple of times with this pump manufacturer. The pump can wear a hole
which will pump water back into the aquafer. The hole would increase in size overtime
which would cause the slow decline.
A few weeks ago, our culinary water staff noticed some vibrations in the piping in well
house #2. This usually indicates that the pump is starting to go out. With the pump
issues that we were already experiencing at well #3, the situation quickly became an
emergency. We immediately contacted a Rhino Pumps to start repairs on well #3 even
though we had not received a final approval through City Council. We are hoping that
well #2 holds on for a few more weeks until we can get well #3 functioning. Once we have
well #3 working properly, we will complete the repairs on well #2.
We received bids from two contractors (Rhino Pumps and Nickerson) to pull the pump.
Rhino Pumps was a little cheaper to pull the pump and they were the only contractor that
could immediately provide a crew to do the work. The Rhino bid for the work on well #3 is
$36,880.00.
Rhino Pumps is the contractor currently working on well #3 and to make this process as
quick and seamless as possible, staff is recommending that City Council award them the
well #2 contract as well. They have been great to work with and have been so good to free
up a crew to help us out in an emergency. They have also been very proactive in helping us
find solutions to make our water systems better.
The cost for well #2 is $61,070.90. Since we have not pulled this pump in years, we
anticipate that we will need to replace some tube and shaft. This is usually the case when
working on a pump that has been in for a while. Staff recommends that both projects be
awarded to Rhino Pumps.
FISCAL IMPACT:
This action will commit $97,950.00 of Highland City Culinary funds.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council APPROVE the contract with Rhino Pumps to
replace the pump in both well #2 and well #3, and AUTHORIZE the City Administrator
to execute the necessary contract documents for the project.

PROPOSED MOTION:
I move that the City Council APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the City Administrator to
sign a contract with Rhino Pumps for $97,950.00 to make replace the pumps in well #2
and well #3.
ALTERNATIVE MOTION:
I move that the City Council REJECT the bids. (The Council should draft appropriate
findings).
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bids

Rhino Pumps
453 W. 700 S.
Pleasant Grove, UT 84062
8013218242
sales@rhinopumps.com
http://rhinopumps.com/

ADDRESS
Highland City
Highland City

Estimate 2020-757
DATE 12/11/2020

LOCATION
Well #3 Repair

ACTIVITY

QTY

RATE

AMOUNT

Pull Pump

1

5,635.00

5,635.00

1

6,375.00

6,375.00

1

1,200.00

1,200.00

1

14,813.00

14,813.00

1

7,907.00

7,907.00

1

950.00

950.00

Pull 375' of 8" Oil Lube Pump and 100' of Suction Pipe
- Mobilization and Demobilization of Equipment.
- Field Crew with Necessary Tools to Pull Pump.
- Transport Equipment to Rhino Pumps to be Inspected for Necessary Repairs.
Set Pump
Set 375' of 8" Oil Lube and 100' of Suction Pipe
- Transport Equipment Back to Well.
- Mobilization and Demobilization of Equipment.
- Field Crew with Necessary Tools to Install Pump.
- Oil Lube well pump alignment
Rush Fee
Rush Fee for pulling pump within 5 days of PO being issued.
Replacement Pump
Replace existing bowl assembly
- American Marsh 11MC - 12 Stage pump
- 416 SS pump shaft
- 416 SS impeller collets
- Cast Iron/Bronze construction
Estimated lead-time is 3-4 weeks ARO
Standard Inbound Freight Included
Discharge Head
10" Fabricated Steel Discharge Head
- Epoxy Coated
- Heavy Duty Hanger Flange
Includes inbound freight
Sounder Pipe
1-1/4" PVC flush thread sounder pipe

Thank you for choosing Rhino Pumps!

TOTAL

Accepted By

Accepted Date

$36,880.00

Nickerson Company, Inc.
P.O. Box 25425
2301 West Indiana Ave.
Salt Lake City, UT 84125

Quote
Customer:
Attention:
Phone Number:
Email Address:
Quote Number:
Nickerson Job:
Estimate Number:
Notes:
Qty
Item

1

B-T ENGINEERING
TAVIS TIMOTHY
(801) 319-1288
TAVIS@B-T-ENG.COM
BJM201216
N/A
1
QUOTE TO PULL HIGHLAND CITY WELL #3 PUMP ASSEMBLY
Description

LABOR

TRAVEL TIME AND MILEAGE TO AND FROM JOBSITE
3 MEN WITH 40 TON CRANE AND SERVICE TRUCK TO PULL WELL

TOTAL

TOTAL

Unit

$

Extension

7,520.00 $

7,520.00

* ESTIMATE 2 DAYS TO PULL WELL BASED ON PREVIOUS WORK
* WE TYPICALLY REQUIRE A 4-WEEK NOTICE FOR SCHEDULING

Quoted lead times are estimates based on current product
availability. Product availability, workforce shortages, and
other unforseeable problems may alter quoted lead times.
Freight:
Tax:
Total Price:
12/16/2020
Terms: Net 30 Days
Quoted By: Brian McWhorter

INCLUDED
N/A
$
7,520.00
Estimate Good For 30 Days

Phone: 801-973-8888
Fax: 801-973-8267

NICKERSON COMPANY, INC. WARRANTY, TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE.
PURCHASER:_____________________________________________________________P.O.#___________________________________________
DESCRIPTION____________________________________________________________________________________________________________
All orders shall be made out to Nickerson Company, Inc. at P.O. Box 25425, Salt Lake City, Utah 84125 and shall be subject to acceptance by Nickerson Company, Inc.
1. CONSTRUCTION AND LEGAL EFFECT. Our sale to you will be solely upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. They supersede and reject any conflicting terms and conditions of yours,
any statement in yours to the contrary notwithstanding. Exceptions to any of our terms and conditions must be contained in a written or typed (not printed) statement received from you; we shall not
be deemed to have waived any of our terms and conditions or to have assented to any modification or alteration of such terms and conditions unless such waiver or assent is in writing and signed by
an authorized officer. No representation of any kind has been made by us except as set forth herein; this agreement conclusively supersedes all prior writings and negotiations with respect thereto
and we will fumish only the quantities and items specifically listed on the face hereof; we assume no responsibility for furnishing other equipment or material shown in any plans and/or specification
for a project to which the goods ordered herein pertain. Any action for breach of contract must be commenced within one year after the cause of action has accrued Our quoted prices, discounts,
terms and conditions are subject to change without notice.
2. PRICES. Unless otherwise noted on the face hereof, prices are net F.O.B. Point of Origin. Service time of a factory-trained service man is not included and may be charged extra. The amount of
any applicable present or future tax or other government charge upon the production, sale, shipment or use of goods ordered or sold will be added to billing unless you provide us with an appropriate
exemption certificate.
3. DEFECTIVE EQUIPMENT AND LIMITATION OF WARRANTIES. Providing purchaser notifies us promptly, if within one year from date of shipment equipment sold by Nickerson
Company, Inc. fails to function properly under normal, proper and rated use and service because of defects in material or workmanship demonstrated to our satisfaction to have existed
at the time of delivery, the company reserving the right to either inspect them in your hands or request their return to us will at our option repair or replace at our expense F.O.B. our
Salt Lake City plant, or give you proper credit for such equipment or parts determined by us to be defective, if returned transportation prepaid by purchaser. The foregoing shall not
apply to equipment that shall have been altered or repaired after shipment to you by anyone except our authorized employees, and the company will not be liable in an y event for
alterations or repairs except those made with its written consent. Purchaser shall be solely responsible for determining suitability for use and the company shall in no event be liable in
this respect. The equipment or parts manufactured by others but furnished by us will be repaired or replaced only to the extent of the original manufacturer's guarantee. Our obligations
and liabilities hereunder shall not be enforceable until such equipment has been fully paid for. Purchaser agrees that if the products sold hereunder are resold by purchaser, he will
include in the contract for resale, provisions which limit recoveries against us in accordance with this section. In case of our failure to fulfill any performance representation, it is agreed
that we may at our option remove and reclaim the equipment covered by this agreement at our own expense and discharge all liability by repayment to the purchaser of all sums
received on account of the purchase price. (The foregoing obligations are in lieu of all other obligations and liabilities including negligence and all warranties, or merchantability or
fitness for a particular purpose or otherwise, express or implied by connection with the sale or furnishing of goods or parts, their design, suitability for u se, installation or operation.)
We will in no event be liable for any direct, indirect, special or consequential damages or delay resulting from any defect whatsoever, and our liability under no circumstances will
exceed the contract price for the goods for which liability is claimed.
4. DELIVERY. Delivery, shipment and installation dates are estimated dates only, and unless otherwise specified, are figured from date of receipt of complete technical data and approved drawings
as such may be necessary. In estimating such dates, no allowance has been made, nor shall we be liable directly or indirectly for delays of carriers or delays from labor difficulties, shortages, strikes
or stoppages of any sort, fires, accidents, failure or delay in obtaining materials or manufacturing facilities, acts of govemment affecting us directly or indirectly, bad weather, or any causes beyond our
control or causes designated Acts of God or force majeure by any court of law, and the estimated delivery date shall be extended acco rdingly. We will not be liable for any damages or penalties
whatsoever, whether direct, indirect, special consequential, resulting from our failure to perform or delay in performing unless otherwise agreed in writing by an authorized officer.
5. OPERATING CONDITIONS AND ACCEPTANCE. Recommendations and quotations are made upon the basis of operating conditions specified by the Purchaser. If actual conditions are different
than those specified and performance of the equipment is adversely affected thereby, Purchaser will be responsible for the cost of all expenses incurred in, and reasonable profit for, performance of
the equipment is adversely affected thereby, Purchaser will be responsible for the cost of all changes in the equipment required to accommodate such conditions, and we reserve the right to cancel
this order and Purchaser shall reimburse us for all costs and expenses incurred in, and reasonable profit for, performance hereunder. We reserve the right to refuse any order based upon a quotation
containing an error. The provisions in any specification or char issued by Nickerson Co. are descriptive only and are not warranties or representations; Nickerson Co. will certify to a rated capacity in
any particular product upon request. Capacity head and efficiency certifications are based on shop tests and when handling clear, fresh water at a temperature not over 85° F. Certifications are at this
specified rating only and do not cover sustained performance over any period of time nor under conditions varying from these.
6. SHIPPING. Unless you specify otherwise in writing, (a) goods will be boxed or crated as we may deem proper for protection against normal handling, and extra charge will be made for
preservation, waterproofing, export boxing and similar added protection of goods; (b) routing and manner of shipment will be at our discretion, and may be insured at your expense, value to be
stated at order price. On all shipment F.O.B. our plant, delivery of goods to the initial carrier will constitute delivery to you and all goods will be shipped at your risk. A claim for loss of damage in
transit must be entered with the carrier and prosecuted by you. Acceptance of material from a common carrier constitutes a waiver of any claims against us for delay or damage or loss.
7. CANCELLATION AND RETURNED EQUIPMENT. Orders may be cancelled only with our written consent and upon payment or reasonable and proper cancellation charges. Goods may be
returned only when specifically authorized and you will be charged for placing returned goods in saleable condition, any sales expenses then incurred by us, plus a restocking charge and any
outgoing and incoming transportation costs which we pay.
8. CREDIT AND PAYMENT. Payment for products shall be 30 days net. Pro-rata payments shall become due with partial shipments. A late charge of 2 percent per month or the maximum permitted
by law, which ever is less, will be imposed on all past due invoices. We reserve the right at any time to alter, suspend, credit, or to change c redit terms provided herein, when in our sale opinion your
financial condition so warrants. In such case, in addition to any other remedies herein or by law provided. Failure to pay invoices at maturity date at our election makes all. subsequent invoices
immediately due and payable irrespective of terms, and we may withhold all subsequent deliveries until the full account is settled, and we may terminate this agreement. Acceptance by us of less
than full payment shall not be a waiver of any of our rights. You represent by sending each purchase order to us that you are not insolvent as that term is defined in applicable state or federal
statutes. In the event you become insolvent before delivery of any products purchased hereunder, you will notify us in writi ng. A failure to notify us of insolvency at the time of delivery shall be
construed as a reaffirmation of your solvency at that time. Irrespective of whether the products purchased hereunder are delivered directly to you, or to a customer of yours, and irr espective of the
size of shipment, we shall have the right to withhold or reclaim goods under the applicable state and federal statutes. Where youCare responsible for any delay in shipment the date of completion of
goods may be treated by us as the date of shipment for purposes of payment. Completed goods shall be held at your cost and risk and we shall have the right to bill you for reasonable storage and
insurance expenses. Regardless of price quoted, all orders will be invoiced in the minimum amount of $50.00 net.
9. INSPECTION. Inspection of goods in our plant by you or your representative will be permitted insofar as this does not unduly interfere with our workflow, provided that complete details of the
inspection you desire are submitted to us in writing in advance.
10. RECORDS, AUDITS AND PROPRIETARY DATA. Unless otherwise specifically agreed in writing signed by an authorized officer, neither you nor any representative of yours, nor any other
person, shall have any right to examine or audit our cost accounts, books or records of any kind or on any matter, or be entitled to, or have control over, any engineering or production prints, drawings
or technical data which we, in our sale discretion, may consider in whole or part proprietary to ourselves.
The undersigned accepts this quotation and agrees to the warranty terms and conditions printed on this sheet, and acknowledges that he and, or she is bound thereby and it is fully understood and
agreed that ownership, title and right of unrestricted repossession of property, shall remain with the Nickerson Company, Inc., until paid for in full. The signers hereof agree that if any default of this
contract occurs, they will retum all above merchandise in good order upon demand, and all payments previously made are to be forfeited for rental and use thereof, plus an additional sum for any
legal or attorney fees incurred in the enforcement of above provisions.

SIGNED____________________________________ ______TITLE_____________________________________ DATE________________________
Please sign and return to Nickerson Co. with order.
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CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT
ITEM #4c
DATE:

January 19, 2021

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM:

Todd Trane, PE
City Engineer

SUBJECT: Construction Contract: Pressure Irrigation Pond Improvements.
Administrative

PURPOSE:
The City Council will consider a request to approve a contract with JLR Contractors to
complete improvements at both the upper and lower irrigation ponds, and authorize the
City Administrator and City Recorder to execute the necessary contract documents. The
Council will take appropriate action.
BACKGROUND:
The Highland City pressure irrigation system has three ponds that we utilize for water
storage. These ponds are continuously fluctuating in water levels throughout the day
depending on usage and water availability. It is a constant shuffle of water sources to keep
ponds at or near full and use the least expensive options at the time. This can be a very
stressful and time consuming endeavor especially since two of our ponds do not have a
very good option for an overflow.
Our Upper Pond (Near the mouth of AF Canyon) has always had the overflow to the Lehi
Irrigation ditch. If this pond overflows, a good portion of water makes it into the ditch and
has a potential to flood homes. Staff is constantly monitoring and adjusting this pond to
keep from spilling to the irrigation ditch. The Lower Pond (in the Canterbury
Development north of 10400 North) currently has some potential to flood homes if the
pond overflows. We have had it overflow a couple of times that I am aware of and we were
fortunate to have caught it in time. In those couple instances, fortunately we only filled
the surrounding streets with water and did not get high enough to get into homes. In the
images below we show some small modifications to both ponds that allow us to better
control overflow of these two ponds.

Upper Pond

This modification to the Upper Pond allows us the option to overflow to the American Fork
Irrigation Channel. The water would ultimately end up back into the American Fork
River Channel without a chance to flood homes. This modification would allow staff to
keep the water levels higher and utilize the water sources more efficiently.
Lower Pond

This modification to the Lower Pond allows us to send a larger amount of water down the

existing overflow system. This still does not 100% solve the problem, but it gives staff a
much bigger window of time to react to overflow emergencies. We are currently working
on ways to increase water flow into this pond and ways to pump more out of it. This
modification is important to be able to better utilize the pond at the highest levels.
Staff received bids from four contractors (see the bid tabulation).

JLR Contractors is the low bid at $116,956.00. This price includes both pond projects.
After evaluating the bids with our design consultant, staff recommends that the project be
awarded to JLR Contractors.
FISCAL IMPACT:
This action will commit $116,956.00 of Highland City Pressurized Irrigation funds.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council APPROVE the contract with JLR Contractors to
make the PI Pond modifications and AUTHORIZE the City Administrator to execute the
necessary contract documents for the project.
PROPOSED MOTION:
I move that the City Council APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the City Administrator to
sign a contract with JLR Contractors for $116,956.00 to make modifications to two
pressure irrigation ponds.
ALTERNATIVE MOTION:

I move that the City Council REJECT the bids. (The Council should draft appropriate
findings).
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bid Results
2. Plan Set

Highland City - Irrigation Pond Improvements
Bid Tabulation
Printed: January 6, 2021
UNIT PRICE SCHEDULE - BASE BID
Item #
Description

VanCon
Unit

Quantity

Unit Price

Amount

Unit Price

Fox Construction
Amount

Unit Price

ProBuild Construction

Amount

Unit Price

Amount

JLR Contractors
Unit Price

Amount

SCHEDULE A
Upper Pond Spillway
A1

Mobilization

LS

1

$17,000.00

$

17,000.00

$11,300.00

$

11,300.00

$15,000.00

$

15,000.00

$6,775.00

$

6,775.00

A2

Materials Testing

LS

1

$3,870.00

$

3,870.00

$1,225.00

$

1,225.00

$3,500.00

$

3,500.00

$1,765.00

$

1,765.00

A3

5' x 3' Cast-in-Place Concrete Channel

LF

27

$700.00

$

18,900.00

$1,050.00

$

28,350.00

$2,000.00

$

54,000.00

$880.00

$

23,760.00

A4

5' x 3' Pre-cast Box Culvert

LF

16

$1,200.00

$

19,200.00

$1,520.00

$

24,320.00

$2,000.00

$

32,000.00

$1,080.00

$

17,280.00

A5

Riprap Channel

LF

70

$250.00

$

17,500.00

$500.00

$

35,000.00

$650.00

$

45,500.00

$356.00

$

24,920.00

$

76,470.00

$

100,195.00

$

150,000.00

$

74,500.00

SCHEDULE A TOTAL
SCHEDULE B
Lower Pond Overflow
B1

Mobilization

LS

1

$10,000.00

$

10,000.00

$11,300.00

$

11,300.00

$15,000.00

$

15,000.00

$8,100.00

$

8,100.00

B2

Materials Testing

LS

1

$2,000.00

$

2,000.00

$1,225.00

$

1,225.00

$3,500.00

$

3,500.00

$1,765.00

$

1,765.00

B3

3' x 3' Concreet Overflow Box

LS

1

$17,000.00

$

17,000.00

$20,800.00

$

20,800.00

$25,000.00

$

25,000.00

$7,645.00

$

7,645.00

B4

18" RCP From Overflow Box to Manhole

LF

25

$340.00

$

8,500.00

$210.00

$

5,250.00

$300.00

$

7,500.00

$91.00

$

2,275.00

B5

Core Into Existing Manhole for 18" RCP

LS

1

$600.00

$

600.00

$2,300.00

$

2,300.00

$2,500.00

$

2,500.00

$1,350.00

$

1,350.00

B6

5' Dia. Junction Manhole

LS

1

$7,300.00

$

7,300.00

$13,400.00

$

13,400.00

$20,000.00

$

20,000.00

$6,480.00

$

6,480.00

B7

15" ADS Pipe

LF

91

$123.00

$

11,193.00

$200.00

$

18,200.00

$250.00

$

22,750.00

$101.00

$

9,191.00

B8

4' x 4' Sump Catch Basin

LS

1

$4,600.00

$

4,600.00

$7,500.00

$

7,500.00

$10,000.00

$

10,000.00

$5,650.00

$

5,650.00

$

61,193.00

$

79,975.00

$

106,250.00

$

42,456.00

$

137,663.00

$

180,170.00

$

256,250.00

$

116,956.00

SCHEDULE B TOTAL
TOTAL SCHEDULE A AND B

$21,100.00

BT Engineering
FOR:
HIGHLAND CITY
5400 W CIVIC CENTER DR
HIGHLAND, UT 84003
CONTACT:
TODD TRANE
801-772-4508

HIGHLAND CITY
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IRRIGATION POND IMPROVEMENTS
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BIDDING DRAWINGS

NO. DATE

PROJECT NO.:
001.20.004
DRAWN BY:
JB

REVISION

DATE:
DECEMBER 2020
CHECKED BY:
TT

PROJECT MANAGER:
T. TIMOTHY

BT Engineering

BY

COVER SHEET

BT Engineering
FOR:
HIGHLAND CITY
5400 W CIVIC CENTER DR
HIGHLAND, UT 84003

HIGHLAND CITY
IRRIGATION POND IMPROVEMENTS

CONTACT:
TODD TRANE
801-772-4508

NO. DATE

PROJECT NO.:
001.20.004
DRAWN BY:
JB

REVISION

BY

DATE:
DECEMBER 2020
CHECKED BY:
TT

PROJECT MANAGER:
T. TIMOTHY

GENERAL NOTES

BT Engineering
FOR:
HIGHLAND CITY
5400 W CIVIC CENTER DR
HIGHLAND, UT 84003

HIGHLAND CITY
IRRIGATION POND IMPROVEMENTS

CONTACT:
TODD TRANE
801-772-4508

NO. DATE

PROJECT NO.:
001.20.004
DRAWN BY:
JB

REVISION

BY

DATE:
DECEMBER 2020
CHECKED BY:
TT

PROJECT MANAGER:
T. TIMOTHY

SITE PLAN

BT Engineering
FOR:
HIGHLAND CITY
5400 W CIVIC CENTER DR
HIGHLAND, UT 84003

HIGHLAND CITY
IRRIGATION POND IMPROVEMENTS

CONTACT:
TODD TRANE
801-772-4508

NO. DATE

REVISION

PROJECT NO.:
001.20.004
DRAWN BY:
JB

BY

DATE:
DECEMBER 2020
CHECKED BY:
TT

PROJECT MANAGER:
T. TIMOTHY

DETAILS

BT Engineering
FOR:
HIGHLAND CITY
5400 W CIVIC CENTER DR
HIGHLAND, UT 84003

SD

HIGHLAND CITY
IRRIGATION POND IMPROVEMENTS

CONTACT:
TODD TRANE
801-772-4508

NO. DATE

PROJECT NO.:
001.20.003
DRAWN BY:
JB

REVISION

BY

DATE:
DECEMBER 2020
CHECKED BY:
TT

PROJECT MANAGER:
T. TIMOTHY

LOWER POND SITE PLAN

BT Engineering
FOR:
HIGHLAND CITY
5400 W CIVIC CENTER DR
HIGHLAND, UT 84003

HIGHLAND CITY
IRRIGATION POND IMPROVEMENTS

CONTACT:
TODD TRANE
801-772-4508

12.14.2020

NO. DATE

PROJECT NO.:
001.20.003
DRAWN BY:
JB

REVISION

BY

DATE:
DECEMBER 2020
CHECKED BY:
TT

PROJECT MANAGER:
T. TIMOTHY

LOWER POND
OVERFLOW BOX

BT Engineering

96

47
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4796

HIGHLAND CITY
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48

4812

8

4814

48
02

8

480

06

04
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48

48
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12.11.2020

NO. DATE
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AGENDA

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT
ITEM #4d
DATE:

January 19, 2021

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM:

Todd Trane, PE
City Engineer

SUBJECT: Construction Contract: Electrical Modification at Pressure Irrigation
Pump Stations. Administrative

PURPOSE:
The City Council will consider a request to approve a bid with ID Electric to make electric
modifications at two pressure irrigation pump stations, and authorize the City
Administrator and City Recorder to execute the necessary contract documents. The
Council will take appropriate action.
BACKGROUND:
The City Council approved an additional pump at the Canterbury pump station at the
January 5, 2021 Council Meeting which allows the City to access water from the Murdock
Canal.
Staff is proposing to add an additional split-case pump at the 11800 North pressure
irrigation pump station which provides irrigation water to higher elevations in the
northwest area.
With the addition of these two pumps to the system, we need to add electrical equipment
and make the necessary modifications to existing equipment to properly incorporate these
pumps into our overall system. The addition of these pumps along with and these
necessary electrical modifications will improve the pressure irrigation system and better
serve our residents.
Staff received bids from three contractors (See the bid tabulation below). After evaluating
the bids with our design consultant, staff recommends that the project be awarded to ID
Electric.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This action will commit $53,580.00 of Highland City Pressurized Irrigation funds.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council APPROVE the contract with ID Electric to make
electrical modifications to two pressure irrigation pump stations and AUTHORIZE the
City Administrator to execute the necessary contract documents for the project.
PROPOSED MOTION:
I move that the City Council APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the City Administrator to
sign a contract with ID Electric for $53,580.00 to make electrical modification to two
pressure irrigation pump stations.
ALTERNATIVE MOTION:
I move that the City Council REJECT the bids. (The Council should draft appropriate
findings).

NEXT

AGENDA

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT
ITEM #4e
DATE:

January 19, 2021

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM:

Todd Trane, PE
City Engineer

SUBJECT: Construction Contract: 11800 North Split-Case Pump. Administrative

PURPOSE:
The City Council will consider a request to approve a contract with Rhino Pumps to
replace two small pumps with a larger split-case pump to the pressure irrigation pump
station at 11800 North. The Council will take appropriate action.
BACKGROUND:
The 11800 North pressure irrigation pump station currently provides irrigation water to
higher elevations in the northwest area. The pump station currently has two smaller
pumps (250 gals/min a piece) and two larger pumps (1100 gals/min a piece). We are
proposing to replace the two smaller pumps with a larger split-case pump (1250 gals/min)
to provide more pumping capacity as well as some redundancy. This will allow us to have
more breathing room in an emergency if one of the pumps breaks down. We as staff are
trying to be more proactive in having reliable systems and this is a step in the right
direction.
Staff received bids from two contractors that provide this type of pump. Sadly, the bids
received are not comparing apples to apples. Nickerson only provided a bid for the pump.
Their bid does not include all the labor and piping for a complete project. Rhino Pumps
included a complete bid with labor and materials. Due to the lead time on the pump, we
do not have time to bid out labor to a third party contractor. If we wait much longer to
award this contract, we will not have this operational prior to the spring start up. We
quickly looked at other similar projects and estimate that we could spend up to $30,000 in
labor to get a contract.
Rhino Pumps bid is for $34,851.00. After evaluating the bids with our design consultant,
staff recommends that the project be awarded to Rhino Pumps.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This action will commit $34,851.00 of Highland City Pressurized Irrigation funds.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council APPROVE the contract with Rhino Pumps to
install a split-case pump at the 11800 North pump station and AUTHORIZE the City
Administrator to execute the necessary contract documents for the project.
PROPOSED MOTION:
I move that the City Council APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the City Administrator to
sign a contract with Rhino Pumps for $34,851.00 to install a split-case pump at the 11800
North pump station.
ALTERNATIVE MOTION:
I move that the City Council REJECT the bids. (The Council should draft appropriate
findings).
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bids

Rhino Pumps
453 W. 700 S.
Pleasant Grove, UT 84062
8013218242
sales@rhinopumps.com
http://rhinopumps.com/

Estimate 2020-528

ADDRESS
Highland City
Highland City

DATE 09/16/2020

LOCATION
11800 N Pump House - Splitcase

ACTIVITY

QTY

RATE

AMOUNT

Pull Pump

1

1,200.00

1,200.00

1

6,500.00

6,500.00

1

25,276.00

25,276.00

1

1,875.00

1,875.00

- Pull Existing Pump and Piping
- Labor Included
Pipe Allowance
Piping and Baseplate Change Allowance
Pump
Crane - Deming Series 5602 Split Case Pump
- Deming 8x6x9 Pump End, Bronze Fitted, Bronze Case Ring, SS shaft sleeve, Mechanical Seals, SS
gland seals
- GE P.E.3600 RPM TEFC 125 HP w/ Motor and Base
- Faulk Wrapflex Coupling
- Base Plate w/ Coupling Guard
Freight Included
Install Pump
- Set and Install Pump
- Laser alignment
- Start-Up
Current pump lead-time is 10 Weeks ARO.
Thank you for choosing Rhino Pumps!

TOTAL

Accepted By

Accepted Date

$34,851.00

Nickerson Company, Inc.
P.O. Box 25425
2301 West Indiana Ave.
Salt Lake City, UT 84125

Quote
Customer:
Attention:
Phone Number:
Email Address:
Quote Number:
Nickerson Job:
Estimate Number:
Notes:
Qty
Item

1

B-T ENGINEERING
TAVIS TIMOTHY
(801) 319-1288
TAVIS@B-T-ENG.COM
BJM201215
N/A
1
QUOTE FOR HORIZONTAL SPLIT CASE PUMP
Description

PUMP

AURORA, HORIZONTAL SPLIT CASE PUMP, 411A-BF, 5X6X17
RATED FOR 1800 GPM @ 206 FT, 1775 RPM, 15.31" IMP. DIA.
STANDARD CONSTRUCTION FOR NON-POTABLE WATER

OPTIONS

MECHANICAL SEAL: JOHN CRANE TYPE 21, 225 DEGREE MAX
BUNA-N, CARBON, CERAMIC, 18-8 SS
BASE: BENT STEEL FOR 444TS FRAME
COUPLING: RUBBER-IN-SHEAR FOR 444TS FRAME
FLUSH LINES: .25" BRONZE, FROM VOLUTE TO STUFFING BOX

MOTOR

US MOTORS, 125 HP, 1790 RPM, 3/60/460, 1.15 S.F.
444TS FRAME, TEFC ENCLOSURE, HOSTILE DUTY

FREIGHT

INCOMING FREIGHT

TOTAL

TOTAL

Unit

$

Extension

15,546.89 $

15,546.89

* LEAD TIME ESTIMATED AT 10 WEEKS PLUS TRANSIT TIME
* PLEASE SEE THE ATTACHED SUBMITTALS

Quoted lead times are estimates based on current product
availability. Product availability, workforce shortages, and
other unforseeable problems may alter quoted lead times.
Freight:
Tax:
Total Price:
12/15/2020
Terms: Net 30 Days
Quoted By: Brian McWhorter

INCLUDED
N/A
$
15,546.89
Estimate Good For 30 Days

Phone: 801-973-8888
Fax: 801-973-8267

NICKERSON COMPANY, INC. WARRANTY, TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE.
PURCHASER:_____________________________________________________________P.O.#___________________________________________
DESCRIPTION____________________________________________________________________________________________________________
All orders shall be made out to Nickerson Company, Inc. at P.O. Box 25425, Salt Lake City, Utah 84125 and shall be subject to acceptance by Nickerson Company, Inc.
1. CONSTRUCTION AND LEGAL EFFECT. Our sale to you will be solely upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. They supersede and reject any conflicting terms and conditions of yours,
any statement in yours to the contrary notwithstanding. Exceptions to any of our terms and conditions must be contained in a written or typed (not printed) statement received from you; we shall not
be deemed to have waived any of our terms and conditions or to have assented to any modification or alteration of such terms and conditions unless such waiver or assent is in writing and signed by
an authorized officer. No representation of any kind has been made by us except as set forth herein; this agreement conclusively supersedes all prior writings and negotiations with respect thereto
and we will fumish only the quantities and items specifically listed on the face hereof; we assume no responsibility for furnishing other equipment or material shown in any plans and/or specification
for a project to which the goods ordered herein pertain. Any action for breach of contract must be commenced within one year after the cause of action has accrued Our quoted prices, discounts,
terms and conditions are subject to change without notice.
2. PRICES. Unless otherwise noted on the face hereof, prices are net F.O.B. Point of Origin. Service time of a factory-trained service man is not included and may be charged extra. The amount of
any applicable present or future tax or other government charge upon the production, sale, shipment or use of goods ordered or sold will be added to billing unless you provide us with an appropriate
exemption certificate.
3. DEFECTIVE EQUIPMENT AND LIMITATION OF WARRANTIES. Providing purchaser notifies us promptly, if within one year from date of shipment equipment sold by Nickerson
Company, Inc. fails to function properly under normal, proper and rated use and service because of defects in material or workmanship demonstrated to our satisfaction to have existed
at the time of delivery, the company reserving the right to either inspect them in your hands or request their return to us will at our option repair or replace at our expense F.O.B. our
Salt Lake City plant, or give you proper credit for such equipment or parts determined by us to be defective, if returned transportation prepaid by purchaser. The foregoing shall not
apply to equipment that shall have been altered or repaired after shipment to you by anyone except our authorized employees, and the company will not be liable in an y event for
alterations or repairs except those made with its written consent. Purchaser shall be solely responsible for determining suitability for use and the company shall in no event be liable in
this respect. The equipment or parts manufactured by others but furnished by us will be repaired or replaced only to the extent of the original manufacturer's guarantee. Our obligations
and liabilities hereunder shall not be enforceable until such equipment has been fully paid for. Purchaser agrees that if the products sold hereunder are resold by purchaser, he will
include in the contract for resale, provisions which limit recoveries against us in accordance with this section. In case of our failure to fulfill any performance representation, it is agreed
that we may at our option remove and reclaim the equipment covered by this agreement at our own expense and discharge all liability by repayment to the purchaser of all sums
received on account of the purchase price. (The foregoing obligations are in lieu of all other obligations and liabilities including negligence and all warranties, or merchantability or
fitness for a particular purpose or otherwise, express or implied by connection with the sale or furnishing of goods or parts, their design, suitability for u se, installation or operation.)
We will in no event be liable for any direct, indirect, special or consequential damages or delay resulting from any defect whatsoever, and our liability under no circumstances will
exceed the contract price for the goods for which liability is claimed.
4. DELIVERY. Delivery, shipment and installation dates are estimated dates only, and unless otherwise specified, are figured from date of receipt of complete technical data and approved drawings
as such may be necessary. In estimating such dates, no allowance has been made, nor shall we be liable directly or indirectly for delays of carriers or delays from labor difficulties, shortages, strikes
or stoppages of any sort, fires, accidents, failure or delay in obtaining materials or manufacturing facilities, acts of govemment affecting us directly or indirectly, bad weather, or any causes beyond our
control or causes designated Acts of God or force majeure by any court of law, and the estimated delivery date shall be extended acco rdingly. We will not be liable for any damages or penalties
whatsoever, whether direct, indirect, special consequential, resulting from our failure to perform or delay in performing unless otherwise agreed in writing by an authorized officer.
5. OPERATING CONDITIONS AND ACCEPTANCE. Recommendations and quotations are made upon the basis of operating conditions specified by the Purchaser. If actual conditions are different
than those specified and performance of the equipment is adversely affected thereby, Purchaser will be responsible for the cost of all expenses incurred in, and reasonable profit for, performance of
the equipment is adversely affected thereby, Purchaser will be responsible for the cost of all changes in the equipment required to accommodate such conditions, and we reserve the right to cancel
this order and Purchaser shall reimburse us for all costs and expenses incurred in, and reasonable profit for, performance hereunder. We reserve the right to refuse any order based upon a quotation
containing an error. The provisions in any specification or char issued by Nickerson Co. are descriptive only and are not warranties or representations; Nickerson Co. will certify to a rated capacity in
any particular product upon request. Capacity head and efficiency certifications are based on shop tests and when handling clear, fresh water at a temperature not over 85° F. Certifications are at this
specified rating only and do not cover sustained performance over any period of time nor under conditions varying from these.
6. SHIPPING. Unless you specify otherwise in writing, (a) goods will be boxed or crated as we may deem proper for protection against normal handling, and extra charge will be made for
preservation, waterproofing, export boxing and similar added protection of goods; (b) routing and manner of shipment will be at our discretion, and may be insured at your expense, value to be
stated at order price. On all shipment F.O.B. our plant, delivery of goods to the initial carrier will constitute delivery to you and all goods will be shipped at your risk. A claim for loss of damage in
transit must be entered with the carrier and prosecuted by you. Acceptance of material from a common carrier constitutes a waiver of any claims against us for delay or damage or loss.
7. CANCELLATION AND RETURNED EQUIPMENT. Orders may be cancelled only with our written consent and upon payment or reasonable and proper cancellation charges. Goods may be
returned only when specifically authorized and you will be charged for placing returned goods in saleable condition, any sales expenses then incurred by us, plus a restocking charge and any
outgoing and incoming transportation costs which we pay.
8. CREDIT AND PAYMENT. Payment for products shall be 30 days net. Pro-rata payments shall become due with partial shipments. A late charge of 2 percent per month or the maximum permitted
by law, which ever is less, will be imposed on all past due invoices. We reserve the right at any time to alter, suspend, credit, or to change c redit terms provided herein, when in our sale opinion your
financial condition so warrants. In such case, in addition to any other remedies herein or by law provided. Failure to pay invoices at maturity date at our election makes all. subsequent invoices
immediately due and payable irrespective of terms, and we may withhold all subsequent deliveries until the full account is settled, and we may terminate this agreement. Acceptance by us of less
than full payment shall not be a waiver of any of our rights. You represent by sending each purchase order to us that you are not insolvent as that term is defined in applicable state or federal
statutes. In the event you become insolvent before delivery of any products purchased hereunder, you will notify us in writi ng. A failure to notify us of insolvency at the time of delivery shall be
construed as a reaffirmation of your solvency at that time. Irrespective of whether the products purchased hereunder are delivered directly to you, or to a customer of yours, and irr espective of the
size of shipment, we shall have the right to withhold or reclaim goods under the applicable state and federal statutes. Where youCare responsible for any delay in shipment the date of completion of
goods may be treated by us as the date of shipment for purposes of payment. Completed goods shall be held at your cost and risk and we shall have the right to bill you for reasonable storage and
insurance expenses. Regardless of price quoted, all orders will be invoiced in the minimum amount of $50.00 net.
9. INSPECTION. Inspection of goods in our plant by you or your representative will be permitted insofar as this does not unduly interfere with our workflow, provided that complete details of the
inspection you desire are submitted to us in writing in advance.
10. RECORDS, AUDITS AND PROPRIETARY DATA. Unless otherwise specifically agreed in writing signed by an authorized officer, neither you nor any representative of yours, nor any other
person, shall have any right to examine or audit our cost accounts, books or records of any kind or on any matter, or be entitled to, or have control over, any engineering or production prints, drawings
or technical data which we, in our sale discretion, may consider in whole or part proprietary to ourselves.
The undersigned accepts this quotation and agrees to the warranty terms and conditions printed on this sheet, and acknowledges that he and, or she is bound thereby and it is fully understood and
agreed that ownership, title and right of unrestricted repossession of property, shall remain with the Nickerson Company, Inc., until paid for in full. The signers hereof agree that if any default of this
contract occurs, they will retum all above merchandise in good order upon demand, and all payments previously made are to be forfeited for rental and use thereof, plus an additional sum for any
legal or attorney fees incurred in the enforcement of above provisions.

SIGNED____________________________________ ______TITLE_____________________________________ DATE________________________
Please sign and return to Nickerson Co. with order.

NEXT

AGENDA

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT
ITEM #5
DATE:

January 19, 2021

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM:

Tyler Bahr, CSM, DLSSBB, Finance Director

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE: Adoption of Impact Fees. Legislative
PURPOSE:
City Council will consider adoption of new impact fees. The Council will take appropriate
action.
BACKGROUND:
State Law regarding impact fees focus on a level of service. Future capital projects are
limited to a six-to-ten-year horizon. Capital projects are also limited to projects or potions
of projects needed to accommodate new growth which are funded by the City using
historical costs. Impact fees are required to be encumbered within six years. Where there
are proposed increases over current fees, the new fees will be effective 90 days from
adoption. Otherwise, the new fees will be effective upon adoption.
Council authorized engagement consultants to complete the Highland City Impact Fee
Study in January 2020. The impact fee study included public safety, pressurized
irrigation, wastewater, and parks and recreation, as well as an impact fee analysis
amendment for transportation and culinary water. The impact fee study also includes
impact fee facility plans for public safety, pressurized irrigation, wastewater, and parks
and recreation. The culinary water fee applies to the southeast area of the city only. The
impact fee study did not include impact fee facility plans for storm drain.
Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. and Hansen, Allen, & Luce collaborated with
City staff on this project beginning in early 2020. Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham
is responsible for all aspects of the project from initiation to adoption as required by State
Law. The Council discussed the impact fees at the November 10, 2020 work session.

PREPARATION OF THE IMPACT FEE PROCESS:
The following process was used to prepare each fee:
• Analysis of Infrastructure Master Plans
• Analysis of Growth Projections
• Defining the Level of Service
• Analysis of Existing Capital Projects
• Identification of Future Capital Projects to Serve New Growth
• Proportionate Share Analysis
• Calculation of the Impact Fee
PROPOSED FEES:
The following table shows compares the proposed fees with existing fees:
Impact Fee Comparison
Fee
Existing
Proposed
Change
Culinary Water (Southeast Area Only)*
$1,653
$603
($1,050)
Pressurized Irrigation
$886
$1,881
$995
Transportation
$2,861
$538
($2,323)
Sanitary Sewer (Central Area)**
$2,126
$1,155
($971)
Sanitary Sewer (Southeast Area)**
$2,175
$2,108
($67)
Parks and Recreation
$4,378
$5,854
$1,476
Public Safety
$1,116
$761
($355)
*The southeast area for culinary water only includes the area south of Lone Peak
High School. The central area is the remainder of the City.
**The southeast area for sanitary sewer includes the area south of Lone Peak High
School and area around the Greens on the Highlands and Wild Rose subdivisions.
The Central Area is the remainder of the City.
The proposed changes above result in a net reduction of $207-$1,324, for a single family
home and the location of the home. Fees were also reduced for attached single family and
multi-family products as identified in the studies.
The reduction in the fees is primarily due to the funding of Canal Boulevard by other
sources and the reduction in density of the Ridgeview Development. The reduction in
density eliminated the need for some of the previously planned water, sewer and
pressurized irrigation projects that were needed to serve the previously provided master
plan.
The next step, which is underway, will be to update the City’s Utility Rate studies to
include the changes in the capital projects. It is anticipated that this will completed over
the next few months.

PUBLIC NOTICE:
All required public notice has been provided as follows:
Notice of intention to prepare impact fee facilities plans and impact fee analyses March 5,
2020 and invited all interested parties to participate in the impact fee preparation process,
consistent with UCA Section 11-36a-501
On January 4, 2021, the City posted notice of a public hearing in the local paper, the Daily
Herald, Utah’s Public Notice Website and on the City website to consider the assumptions
and conclusions of the Impact Fee Facilities Plans, the Impact Fee Analyses, and the
Impact Fee Ordinance
On January 4, 2021, a copy of the Impact Fee Analyses and Impact Fee Facilities Plans
and the proposed Impact Fee Ordinance, along with a summary of the analyses that was
designated to be understood by a lay person, were made available to the public and
deposited at Highland City Hall, Highland Public Library, and the Highland Lone Peak
Fire District Station and on the public notice website.
RECOMMENDATION AND PROPOSED MOTION:
Staff recommends the City Council adopt the ordinance amending the impact fees.
FISCAL IMPACT:
Reduction in Impact Fee Revenues of approximately $207-$1,324 per unit, depending on
location. The total fiscal impact will depend on economic factors that influence
development in the coming years.
ATTACHMENTS:
•
•

Proposed Ordinance
Impact Fee Facility Plans and Impact Fee Analyses

IMPACT FEE ORDINANCE
Highland City, Utah
ORDINANCE ADOPTING AN IMPACT FEE FACILITIES PLAN AND
IMPACT FEE ANALYSES AND IMPOSING IMPACT FEES FOR
TRANSPORTATION, CULINARY WATER, PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION,
PARKS AND RECREATION, WASTEWATER, AND PUBLIC SAFETY;
PROVIDING FOR THE CALCULATION AND COLLECTION OF SUCH FEES;
PROVIDING FOR APPEAL, ACCOUNTING AND SEVERABILITY OF THE
SAME, AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS
WHEREAS, Highland City, Utah (the "City") posted notice of its intention to prepare impact
fee facilities plans ("Impact Fee Facilities Plans") and impact fee analyses ("Impact Fee Analyses")
for Transportation, Pressurized Irrigation, Parks and Recreation, Wastewater, and Public Safety, and
Culinary Water on March 5, 2020and invited all interested parties to participate in the impact fee
preparation process, consistent with UCA Section ll-36a-501;
WHEREAS, Highland City is a municipality in the State of Utah, authorized and
organized under the provisions of Utah law and is authorized pursuant to the Impact Fees Act, Utah
Code Ann. l l -36a-101 et seq. to adopt impact fees; and
WHEREAS, on January 4, 2021, the City posted notice of a public hearing in the local
paper, the Daily Herald, Utah's Public Notice Website and on the City website to consider the
assumptions and conclusions of the Impact Fee Facilities Plans, the Impact Fee Analyses, and the Impact
Fee Ordinance;
WHEREAS, the Impact Fee Facilities Plan Consultants have certified their work under
UCA section 11-36a-306(1);
WHEREAS, the Impact Fee Analysis Consultant certifies its work under UCA Section
11-36a-306(2);
WHEREAS, on January 4, 2021, a copy of the Impact Fee Analyses and Impact Fee
Facilities Plans and the proposed Impact Fee Ordinance, along with a summary of the analyses that
was designated to be understood by a lay person, were made available to the public and deposited at
Highland City Hall, Highland Public Library, and the Highland Lone Peak Fire District Station and
on the public notice website; and
WHEREAS, the Highland City Council (the "Council") met in regular session on January
19, 2021, to convene a public hearing and to consider adopting the Impact Fee Facilities Plans, the
Impact Fee Analyses, and the Impact Fee Ordinance, imposing updated Transportation, Culinary
Water, Pressurized Irrigation, Parks and Recreation, Wastewater, and Public Safety impact fees,
providing for the calculation and collection of such fees, and providing for an appeal process,
accounting and reporting method and other related matters; and
WHEREAS, on January 19, 2021 considering the input of the public and stakeholders
and relying on the professional advice and certification of the Impact Fee Facilities Plan
Consultants, Highland City adopted the findings, conclusions, and recommendations of the

Impact Fee Analyses prepared by Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. ("Consultant"),
a copy of which is attached hereto; and
WHEREAS, after careful consideration and review of the comments at the public
hearing, the Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare
of the inhabitants of Highland City to adopt the findings and recommendations of the Impact
Fee Facilities Plans and Impact Fee Analyses to address the impacts of development upon the
fire, police, transportation, culinary water, pressurized irrigation, parks and recreation, and
wastewater utilities, to adopt the Impact Fee Facilities Plans as proposed, to approve the Impact
Fee Analyses as proposed, to adopt Transportation, Culinary Water, Pressurized Irrigation,
Parks and Recreation, Wastewater, and Public Safety impact fees, to provide for the calculation
and collection of such fees, and to provide for an appeal process, and an accounting and
reporting method of the same.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Highland City Council as follows:

Section 1. Findings. The Council finds and determines as follows:
1.1.
All required notices have been given and made and public hearings
conducted as requested by the Impact Fees Act with respect to the Impact Fee Facilities Plans,
the Impact Fee Analyses, and this Impact Fee Ordinance (this "Ordinance").
1.2.
Growth and development activities in Highland City will create
additional demands on its infrastructure. The facility improvement requirements which are
analyzed in the Impact Fee Facilities Plans and the Impact Fee Analyses are the direct result of
the additional facility needs caused by future development activities. The persons responsible
for growth and development activities should pay a proportionate share of the costs of the
facilities needed to serve the growth and development activity.
1.3.
Impact fees are necessary to achieve an equitable allocation to the costs
borne in the past and to be borne in the future, in comparison with the benefits already received
and yet to be received.
1.4.
In enacting and approving the Impact Fee Analyses and this Ordinance,
the Council has taken into consideration, and in certain situations will consider on a case-bycase basis in the future, the future capital facilities and needs of Highland City, the capital
financial

needs of Highland City which are the result of Highland City's future facilities' needs, the
distribution of the burden of costs to different properties within Highland City based on the use of
water, secondary, sewer, police/fire and park facilities of Highland City by such properties, the
financial contribution of those properties and other properties similarly situated in Highland City
at the time of computation of the required fee and prior to the enactment of this Ordinance, all
revenue sources available to Highland City, and the impact on future facilities that will be required
by growth and new development activities in Highland City.
The provisions of this Ordinance shall be liberally construed in order to
1.5.
carry out the purpose and intent of the Council in establishing the impact fee program.
Section 2. Definitions.
2.1.
Except as provided below, words and phrases that are defined in the Impact
Fees Act shall have the same meaning in this Ordinance.
2.2.
"Service Area" shall mean geographic areas designated within the City's
boundaries as exhibited in the appendix of the Impact Fee Analyses.
2.3.
"Project Improvement" does not mean system improvement and includes,
but is not limited to, those projects identified in the plans for the benefit of growth.
2.4. "Utah State Impact Fees Act" shall mean Title 11, Chapter 36a, Utah Code
Annotated or its successor state statute if that title and chapter is renumbered, recodified,
or amended.
Section 3. Adoption.
The Council hereby approves and adopts the Impact Fee Analyses, the Impact Fee
Facilities Plans, corresponding fee schedules and the analyses reflected therein. The Impact Fee
Facilities Plans and the Impact Fee Analyses are incorporated herein by reference and adopted as
though fully set forth herein. Enactment of fees to be increased shall take effect no sooner than 90
days after adoption of this ordinance.
Section 4. Impact Fee Calculations.
4.1. Impact Fees. The impact fees imposed by this Ordinance shall have two
components; a future facilities impact fee as well as a buy in fee for excess capacity in
existing facilities. The Impact Fee shall be calculated as set forth below.
4.2.
Developer Credits/Developer Reimbursements. A developer, including a
school district or charter school, may be allowed a credit against or proportionate
reimbursement of impact fees if the developer dedicates land for a system improvement,
builds and dedicates some or all of a system improvement, or dedicates a public facility
that Highland City and the developer agree will reduce the need for a system improvement.
A credit against impact fees shall be granted for any dedication of land for,

improvement to, or new construction of, any system improvements provided by the
developer if the facilities are system improvements to the respective utilities, or are
dedicated to the public and offset the need for an identified future improvement.
4.3.
Adjustment of Fees. The Council may adjust either up (but not above the
maximum allowable fee) or down the standard impact fees at the time the fee is charged in
order to respond to an unusual circumstance in specific cases and to ensure that the fees are
imposed fairly. The Council may adjust the amount of the fees to be imposed if the fee
payer submits studies and data clearly showing that the payment of an adjusted impact fee
is more consistent with the true impact being placed on the system. The Council may also
adjust an impact fee pursuant to a request for a prompt and individualized impact fee review
for the development activity of the state, a school district, or a charter school and an offset
or credit for a public facility for which an impact fee has been or will be collected.
4.4.
Impact Fee Accounting. Highland City shall establish a separate interestbearing ledger account for the cash impact fees collected pursuant to this Ordinance.
Interest earned on such account shall be allocated to that account.
(a) Reporting. At the end of each fiscal year, Highland City shall prepare a
report generally showing the source and amount of all monies collected, earned and
received by the fund or account and of each expenditure from the fund or account. The
report shall also identify impact fee revenues by the year in which they were received, the
project from which the funds were collected, the capital projects from which the funds were
budgeted, and the projected schedule for expenditure and be provided to the State Auditor
on the appropriate form found on the State Auditor's Website.
(b) Impact Fee Expenditures. Funds collected pursuant to the impact fees
shall be deposited in such account and only be used by the City to construct and upgrade
the respective facilities to adequately service development activity or used as otherwise
approved by law.
4.5.

Refunds. The City shall refund any impact fee paid when:

(a) the fee payer has not proceeded with the development activity and has
filed a written request with the Council for a refund within one year after
the impact fee was paid;
(b) the fees have not been spent or encumbered within six years of the
payment date; and
(c) no impact has resulted.
Section 5. Applicability to Fees Paid Prior to Enactment.
5.1. Any person who paid an impact fee prior to the enactment of this ordinance
shall owe the fee in the amount that was then existing at the time of payment, and such fee
shall not be affected by this ordinance. The City shall not refund any

difference between the fee paid prior to the enactment of this ordinance in cases where
the fee has decreased hereunder; neither shall the City charge the difference in the event
the fee has increased hereunder.
Section 6. Appeal.
6.1.
Any person required to pay an impact fee who believes the fee does not
meet the requirements of the law may file a written request for information with the City
Council.
6.2.
Within two weeks of the receipt of the request for information the City
shall provide the person or entity with a copy of the reports and with any other relevant
information relating to the impact fee.
6.3.
Any person or entity required to pay an impact fee imposed under this
article, who believes the fee does not meet the requirements of law may request and be
granted a full administrative appeal of that grievance. An appeal shall be made to the
Council within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of the action complained of, or the
date when the complaining person reasonably should have become aware of the action.
6.4
The notice of the administrative appeal to the Council shall be filed and
shall contain the following information:
1. The person's name, mailing address, and daytime telephone number;
2. A copy of the written request for information and a brief summary of
the grounds for appeal;
3. The relief sought.
6.5
The City shall schedule the appeal before the Council no sooner than five
(5) days and no later than fifteen (15) days from the date of the filing of the appeal. The
written decision of the Council shall be made no later than thirty (30) days after the date
the challenge to the fee is filed with the City and shall, when necessary, be forwarded to
the appropriate officials for action.

This Ordinance shall be effective January 20, 2021.

Rodney W. Mann, Mayor

ATTEST:

Stephannie Cottle, City Recorder
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HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
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IMPACT FEE CERTIFICATION
IFFP CERTIFICATION

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. and Highland City jointly certify that the Impact Fee Facilities Plan (“IFFP”) prepared
for fire/EMS, police, pressurized irrigation, wastewater, and parks and recreation services:
1.

Includes only the costs of public facilities that are:
a. allowed under the Impact Fees Act; and
b. actually incurred; or
c. projected to be incurred or encumbered within six years after the day on which each impact fee is paid;

2.

Does not include:
a. costs of operation and maintenance of public facilities;
b. costs for qualifying public facilities that will raise the level of service for the facilities, through impact fees, above
the level of service that is supported by existing residents;
c. any expense for overhead, unless the expense is calculated pursuant to a methodology that is consistent with
generally accepted cost accounting practices and the methodological standards set forth by the federal Office of
Management and Budget for federal grant reimbursement; and

3.

Complies in each and every relevant respect with the Impact Fees Act.

LEWIS YOUNG ROBERTSON & BURNINGHAM, INC.
HIGHLAND CITY

IFA CERTIFICATION
Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. certifies that the Impact Fee Analysis (“IFA”) prepared for fire/EMS, police, pressurized
irrigation, wastewater, and parks and recreation services:
1.

Includes only the costs of public facilities that are:
a. allowed under the Impact Fees Act; and
b. actually incurred; or
c. projected to be incurred or encumbered within six years after the day on which each impact fee is paid;

2.

Does not include:
a. costs of operation and maintenance of public facilities;
b. costs for qualifying public facilities that will raise the level of service for the facilities, through impact fees, above
the level of service that is supported by existing residents;
c. any expense for overhead, unless the expense is calculated pursuant to a methodology that is consistent with
generally accepted cost accounting practices and the methodological standards set forth by the federal Office of
Management and Budget for federal grant reimbursement;

3.

Offsets costs with grants or other alternate sources of payment; and

4.

Complies in each and every relevant respect with the Impact Fees Act.

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. makes this certification with the following caveats:
1.

All of the recommendations for implementation of the IFFP made in the IFFP documents or in the IFA documents are
followed by City Staff and elected officials.

2.

If all or a portion of the IFFP or IFA are modified or amended, this certification is no longer valid.

3.

All information provided to LYRB is assumed to be correct, complete, and accurate. This includes information provided
by the City as well as outside sources.

LEWIS YOUNG ROBERTSON & BURNINGHAM, INC.

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc.
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DECEMBER 2020

DEFINITIONS
The following acronyms or abbreviations are used in this document:
AAGR: Average Annual Growth Rate
BO:

Buildout

ERC:

Equivalent Residential Connection

HH:

Households

IFA:

Impact Fee Analysis

IFFP:

Impact Fee Facilities Plan

LOS:

Level of Service

LYRB:

Lewis Young Robertson and Burningham, Inc.

SF:

Square Feet

SFR:

Single Family Residential

MFR:

Multi-family Residential

TSSD:

Timpanogos Special Service District

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc.
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IFFP AND IFA
HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
DECEMBER 2020

SECTION 1: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The purpose of this IFFP, with supporting IFA, is to fulfill the requirements established in Utah Code Title 11 Chapter 36a, the
“Impact Fees Act,” and help Highland City (the “City”) fund necessary capital improvements for future growth. This document will
address the future Fire/EMS, Police, Pressurized Irrigation, Wastewater, and Parks and Recreation infrastructure needed to serve
the City. While the focus of this study considers growth over the next ten years, the City is looking beyond that time frame at a 20year time horizon and through build-out as well. For purposes of the impact fees, this analysis includes the appropriate fees the
City may charge to new growth to maintain the established levels of service (“LOS”) over the ten-year IFFP time horizon.
Service Area: The impact fees identified in this document will be assessed within all areas of the City, including all
annexation areas, as shown in FIGURE 3.1. Wastewater has two service areas, the Central Service area and Southeast
Service Area. These will be described in the wastewater section of the analysis.
Demand Analysis: The demand units utilized in this analysis include calls for service, irrigated acres, equivalent
residential connections, and population. As new development occurs within the City, it generates increased demand on
all City infrastructure. The system improvements identified in this study are designed to meet the demands of any new
development or redeveloped property within the City.
Level of Service: The existing LOS for each utility or service is defined in detail in each section of this document.
Through an inventory of existing facilities combined with existing development, this analysis identifies the LOS provided
to the City’s existing development and ensures that future facilities maintain these standards.
Existing Facilities and Excess Capacity: The demand analysis and LOS analysis allow for the development of a list
of capital facilities necessary to serve new growth and maintain the existing LOS. This list includes any excess capacity
of existing facilities, as well as future system improvements necessary to maintain the LOS. The inclusion of excess
capacity is known as a “buy-in.” Any demand generated from new development that overburdens the existing system
beyond the existing capacity justifies the construction of new facilities.
Outstanding Debt: The City has three sources of outstanding debt. The first bond is a parks bond originally issued in
2007 and refunded in 2016. The second bond is a public safety bond originally issued in 2006 and refinanced in 2015.
This was then refunded on April 1st, 2020. The third bond is a revenue refunding bond from 2009, which was used for
pressurized irrigation.
Future Capital Facilities Analysis: The following chapters in this analysis identify the capital facilities needed to
maintain the LOS based on the demand analysis specific to Fire/EMS, Police, Pressurized Irrigation, Wastewater and
Parks and Recreation. The plans consider a ten-year time horizon, and growth projections are considered over a tenyear and build-out horizon. The impact fee calculations, however, consider a ten-year time horizon and the improvements
necessary to serve the anticipated development over that time frame.
Funding of Future Facilities: This analysis assumes future growth-related facilities will be funded through a combination
of General Fund revenues, grant monies, other governmental revenues, and impact fee revenues. Where applicable,
interest costs can be included in the total cost to fund proposed system improvements.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED IMPACT FEES

The impact fees proposed in this analysis will be assessed within the City-wide Service Area, with the exception of wastewater.
The tables below illustrate the calculated impact fee for fire/EMS, police, pressurized irrigation, wastewater, and parks and
recreation.
TABLE 1.1: FIRE IMPACT FEE PER UNIT SUMMARY
COST PER CALL
Single Family Residential (per dwelling unit)
Multi-Family Residential (per dwelling unit)
Assisted Living/Senior Living (per dwelling unit)
Non-Residential (per 1,000 square feet)

$6,356
$6,356
$6,356
$6,356

CALLS PER UNIT
0.081
0.064
0.452
0.055

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc.

PROPOSED
IMPACT FEE PER
UNIT
$515.67
$409.05
$2,870.45
$347.71

CURRENT IMPACT
FEE PER UNIT
$581.88
$90.01
$365.94
$365.94

% CHANGE
-11%
354%
684%
-5%
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TABLE 1.2: POLICE IMPACT FEE PER UNIT SUMMARY
COST PER CALL
Single Family Residential (per dwelling unit)
Multi-Family Residential (per dwelling unit)
Non-Residential (per 1,000 square feet)

CALLS PER UNIT

$292
$292
$292

PROPOSED
IMPACT FEE PER
UNIT

0.839
0.473
0.889

$245.02
$138.05
$259.58

CURRENT IMPACT
FEE PER UNIT

% CHANGE

$533.79
$75.32
$336.24

-54%
83%
-23%

TABLE 1.3: PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION IMPACT FEE PER UNIT SUMMARY

Future 10 Year Capital Projects
Existing Infrastructure
Existing Irrigation Debt - Interest Only

$5,597,328
$11,476,847
$1,207,487

% THAT WILL
SERVE 10
YR. DEMAND
86%
24%
24%

Pressurized Irrigation Subtotal
Professional Services/Credits
IFFP/IFA

$18,281,662

43%

$7,846,802

416

$18,855.74

$10,850

100%

$10,850

416

$26.07

$10,850

100%

$10,850

416

$26.07

$18,292,512

43%

$7,857,652

416

$18,881.82

COMPONENT

Professional Services/Credits Subtotal
Total Impact Fee

TOTAL COST

TABLE 1.4: CENTRAL SERVICE AREA WASTEWATER IMPACT FEE PER UNIT SUMMARY
UNIT OF MEASURE
PROPOSED
CURRENT
Per ERC
$1,155.12
$2,125.98
Per Fixture Units (26 per ERC)
$44.43
$81.77
Per Gallon
$3.30
$6.07

DOLLAR AMOUNT THAT
WILL SERVE 10 YR.
DEMAND
$4,825,871
$2,733,353
$287,578

10 YR. DEMAND
(IRRIGATED
ACRES)
416
416
416

COST PER IRRIGATED
ACRE
$11,596.49
$6,568.20
$691.05

% CHANGE
-46%
-46%
-46%

TABLE 1.5: SOUTHEAST SERVICE AREA WASTEWATER IMPACT FEE PER UNIT SUMMARY
UNIT OF MEASURE
PROPOSED
CURRENT
% CHANGE
Per ERC
$2,108
$2,175.14
-3%
Per Fixture Units (26 per ERC)
$81.09
$83.66
-3%
Per Gallon
$6.02
$6.21
-3%
TABLE 1.6: PARKS AND RECREATION IMPACT FEE PER UNIT SUMMARY
IMPACT FEE PER HH
Single Family
Multi-Family (Including Mobile Homes)

PERSONS PER HH
4.24
3.48

PROPOSED FEE PER
HH
$5,854
$4,804

EXISTING FEE PER HH
$4,378
$4,239

% CHANGE
34%
13%

NON-STANDARD IMPACT FEES
The City reserves the right under the Impact Fees Act to assess an adjusted fee that more closely matches the true impact that a
specific land use will have upon public facilities.1 This adjustment could result in a different impact fee than what is standard for its
land use. An adjustment can be made if the developer can provide documentation, evidence, or other credible analysis that the
proposed impact will be different than what is proposed in this analysis.

1

11-36a-402(1)(c)
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SECTION 2: GENERAL IMPACT FEE METHODOLOGY
FIGURE 2.1: IMPACT FEE METHODOLOGY

DEMAND ANALYSIS

EXISTING FACILITIES
ANALYSIS

The purpose of this study is to fulfill the requirements of the Impact Fees Act regarding the
establishment of an IFFP and IFA. The IFFP identifies the demands placed upon the City’s
existing facilities by future development and evaluates how these demands will be met by
the City. The IFFP is also intended to outline the improvements which are intended to be
funded by impact fees. The purpose of the IFA is to allocate the cost of the new facilities
and any excess capacity to new development, while ensuring that all methods of financing
are considered. The Impact Fees Act requires that the IFFP and IFA consider the historic
LOS provided to existing development and ensure that the proposed impact fees maintain
the existing LOS. The following elements are important considerations when completing
an IFFP and IFA.

DEMAND ANALYSIS
LOS ANALYSIS

CAPACITY/FUTURE
FACILITIES ANALYSIS

FINANCING STRATEGY

The demand analysis serves as the foundation for the IFFP. This element focuses on a
specific demand unit related to each public service – the existing demand on public
facilities and the future demand as a result of new development that will affect system
facilities.

EXISTING FACILITIES ANALYSIS
In order to quantify the demands placed upon existing public facilities by new development
activity, to the extent possible the IFFP provides an inventory of the City’s existing system
facilities. The inventory valuation should include the original construction cost and
estimated useful life of each facility. The inventory of existing facilities is important to
determine the excess capacity of existing facilities and the utilization of excess capacity by
new development.

LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS
PROPORTIONATE SHARE
ANALYSIS

"Level of service" or “LOS” means the defined performance standard or unit of demand for
each capital component of a public facility within a service area. Through the inventory of
existing facilities, combined with the growth assumptions, this analysis identifies the
existing LOS that is provided to a community’s existing residents and ensures that future
facilities maintain these standards.

EXCESS CAPACITY AND FUTURE CAPITAL FACILITIES ANALYSIS

The demand analysis, existing facility inventory and LOS analysis allow for the development of a list of capital projects necessary
to serve new growth and to maintain the existing system. This list includes any excess capacity of existing facilities as well as
future system improvements necessary to maintain the LOS. Any excess capacity identified within existing facilities can be
apportioned to new development. Any demand generated from new development that overburdens the existing system beyond
the existing capacity justifies the construction of new facilities.

FINANCING STRATEGY
This analysis must also include a consideration of all revenue sources, including impact fees, future debt costs, alternative funding
sources and the dedication of system improvements, which may be used to finance system improvements. 2 In conjunction with
this revenue analysis, there must be a determination that impact fees are necessary to achieve an equitable allocation of the costs
of new facilities between the new and existing users.3

PROPORTIONATE SHARE ANALYSIS
The written impact fee analysis is required under the Impact Fees Act and must identify the impacts placed on the facilities by
development activity and how these impacts are reasonably related to the new development. The written impact fee analysis must
include a proportionate share analysis, clearly detailing each cost component and the methodology used to calculate each impact
fee. A local political subdivision or private entity may only impose impact fees on development activities when its plan for financing

2
3

11-36a-302(2)
11-36a-302(3)
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system improvements establishes that impact fees are necessary to achieve an equitable allocation of the costs borne in the past
and to be borne in the future (UCA 11-36a-302).

IMPACT FEE METHODOLOGIES

There are two methods employed in this analysis to determine the maximum allowable impact fees: the Growth-Driven Approach
and the Plan Based Approach.

GROWTH-DRIVEN (PERPETUATION OF EXISTING LOS)

The growth-driven method utilizes the existing level of service and perpetuates that level of service into the future. Impact fees are
then calculated to provide sufficient funds for the entity to expand or provide additional facilities as growth occurs within the
community. Under this methodology, impact fees are calculated to ensure new development provides sufficient investment to
maintain the current LOS standards in the community. This approach is often used for public facilities that are not governed by
specific capacity limitations and do not need to be built before development occurs (i.e. park facilities).

NEW FACILITY – PLAN BASED (FEE BASED ON DEFINED CIP)
Impact fees can also be calculated based on a defined set of capital costs specified for future development. The improvements
are identified in a capital plan or impact fee facilities plan as growth-related system improvements. The total cost is divided by the
total demand units the improvements are designed to serve. Under this methodology, it is important to identify the existing level of
service and determine any excess capacity in existing facilities that could serve new growth. Impact fees are then calculated based
on many variables centered on proportionality and level of service.

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc.
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SECTION 3: OVERVIEW OF SERVICE AREA & GENERAL DEMAND FIGURES
SERVICE AREA
Utah Code requires the impact fee enactment to establish one or more service areas within which impact fees will be imposed.4
The Service Area for all impact fees except wastewater includes all areas within the current municipal boundaries of the City and
future annexation areas as they are annexed into the City, as shown in FIGURE 3.1. Wastewater impact fees will be assessed within
two distinct service areas, as shown in FIGURE 3.2. This document identifies the future system improvements for the Service Area(s)
necessary to maintain the existing LOS into the future.
FIGURE 3.1: SERVICE AREA

4

UC 11-36a-402(1)(a)
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FIGURE 3.2: WASTEWATER SERVICE AREAS

DEMAND ANALYSIS

The demand units utilized in this analysis include fire/EMS calls, police calls, population, irrigated acres, and equivalent residential
connections (ERCs). As new development occurs within the City, it generates increased demand on City infrastructure. The system
improvements identified in this study are designed to maintain the existing LOS for any new property within the City. TABLES 3.1 –
3.2 identify the existing development conditions within the City, as well as the anticipated new development forecasted to occur
within the planning horizon, along with the growth in demand units anticipated over a 10-year and 20-year time horizon.
TABLE 3.1: PROJECTED GROWTH IN DEMAND UNITS
YEAR
POPULATION
FIRE/EMS CALLS
2020
19,392
619
2030
25,120
667

POLICE CALLS
9,283
10,123

IRRIGATED ACRES
1,430
1,808

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc.

CENTRAL ERCS
4,374
4,885

SOUTHEAST ERCS
242
942
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SECTION 4: FIRE IFFP AND IFA
This section will address the Fire IFFP and supporting IFA, to help the City plan for the necessary capital improvements for future
growth. This will address the fire infrastructure and apparatus, both existing and future, needed to serve the City through the next
ten years, as well as address the appropriate fire impact fees the City may charge to new growth to maintain the existing LOS.

DEMAND
The primary demand unit related to the fire IFA is growth in calls for service. It is anticipated that the City will experience an increase
of 48 calls for service in the next ten years.

EXISTING FACILITIES INVENTORY

TABLE 4.1: PROJECTED GROWTH IN FIRE/EMS CALLS
YEAR
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2040
2050
IFFP Growth
Buildout

619
623
627
632
637
642
647
652
657
662
667
717
768
48
768

TABLE 4.2: EXISTING PUBLIC SAFETY FACILITIES
FIRE FACILITIES
FACILITY SQUARE FEET
Fire SF
16,998
Total Fire
POLICE FACILITIES
Police SF
Holding Cells/Courthouse
Total Police

The City currently has one fire station to consider in the
IFFP and IFA. The Impact Fees Act allows Cities to
include in the calculation of the impact fee: a building
constructed or leased to house police, fire, or other
public safety entities; or a fire suppression vehicle
costing in excess of $500,000.5 The methodology that
has been determined to allocate the facility costs most
fairly in the case of the fire impact fee considers 100%
of the existing facilities and impact fee eligible
apparatus. These public safety facilities are shown
below in TABLE 4.2. It should be noted that the impact
fee eligible apparatus costs can only be recovered by
non-residential development.

PROJECTED CALLS

LEVEL OF SERVICE

% IFA ELIGIBLE
100%

16,998
FACILITY SQUARE FEET
13,710
2,590

% IFA ELIGIBLE
84%
16%

16,300

100%

Level of service for fire facilities focuses on the specific
demand unit related to fire services – calls for service.
The demand analysis identifies the existing demand on
public facilities and the anticipated future demand
generated from new development, based on historic
trends. The demand analysis considers growth in
demand units over the planning horizon of the IFFP and
ultimate build-out. Call data used to determine the
average calls for residential and non-residential
development is from 2017-2019.

The annual call volume for the City for 2019 was 443 private calls for service. TABLE 4.3 illustrates the call ratio per developed unit.
The call ratio analysis establishes the existing LOS for residential and non-residential land uses. A review of existing non-residential
land uses in the City shows a mix of business types. This suggests the call data is based on a variety of businesses that reflect a
cross-section of the types of business that will likely continue to develop in the City.
TABLE 4.3: HISTORIC & PROJECTED FIRE CALL DATA BY LAND USE CATEGORY
CALL RATIOS
EXISTING UNITS
AVERAGE CALLS
4,351
353
Single Family (per Unit)
404
26
Multi Family Dwelling (per Unit)
62
28
Assisted Living/Senior Living
658
36
Commercial (per 1K SF)

CALLS PER UNIT
0.081
0.064
0.452
0.055

BUILDOUT UNITS
5,570
927
763

Subtotal Private Calls
Estimate of Other Calls
Total Calls

5

BUILDOUT CALLS
452
60
42
553
215
768

11-36a-102(17)(a)
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In addition to the call ratio LOS, this analysis evaluates a building square footage LOS, based on existing building square footage
and total annual fire calls. It has been determined that the existing station is adequate to serve the City through build-out. With the
current building square footage of 16,998 and projected annual calls at build-out of 768, this produces a square footage LOS of
22.13 SF/call, which will be maintained through build-out, assuming development occurs as anticipated.
To determine the demand placed upon existing public facilities by new development, this analysis estimates the additional call
volume that undeveloped land uses will generate. The call ratios per developed unit have been projected across the undeveloped
residential and non-residential land uses, and TABLE 4.3 illustrates the projected future fire calls based upon the historic data
collected from each land use category.
As shown in TABLE 4.3, the City anticipates a total 768 annual calls through build-out, of which 553 are expected to be calls to
private development.6 The private development calls for service represent approximately 72 percent of the buildout calls for service.
This percentage will be used to determine the proportionate share of fire facilities to include in the impact fee calculation.

EXCESS CAPACITY

The fire impact fee will be calculated considering existing facilities and calls from existing and future development. In order to
equitably share the demands placed upon public facilities by existing and new development activity, the IFFP provides an inventory
of the City’s existing facilities and the future planned facilities along with the development the City will be able to serve while
maintaining the current LOS. The inventory of existing facilities (above) is important as there is a buy-in component to the fire
impact fee. As TABLE 4.2 shows, the City maintains 16,998 square feet of fire facility space. The original cost of these facilities
(including the apparatus) to be included in the impact fee calculations totals $3,286,781. These facilities and costs will be spread
across all development within the service area.

MANNER OF FINANCING EXISTING PUBLIC FACILITIES
The existing facilities have been paid for through a combination of General Fund monies, Federal HUD Grant monies, and impact
fees. It is anticipated that the additional burden placed on the fire department by new development will be funded through impact
fee revenues.
The City contributes to the repayment of a 2006 sales and franchise tax revenue bonds. This bond was refinanced in 2015 and
refunded on April 1st, 2020. The City’s portion of the interest expense of this loan is included in the calculation of the impact fee
and shown in TABLE 4.4.
TABLE 4.4: SUMMARY OF FIRE STATION FINANCING
CATEGORY
Total Police and Fire Facility Cost
Interest Related to Police and Fire Facilities

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY
BUILDING COST
$6,072,768
$2,604,035

Total Cost

% OF TOTAL
70%
30%

$8,676,803

ALLOCATION TO FIRE
$3,286,781
$1,409,389
$4,696,170

FIRE IFA
ELIGIBLE
100%
100%

FIRE IFA COST
$3,286,781
$1,409,389
$4,696,170

FUTURE CAPITAL FACILITIES ANALYSIS

It is anticipated that the existing facilities will be sufficient to provide for services through buildout. No additional fire facilities or
apparatus are considered in this analysis. It is anticipated that the existing facilities will serve a total of 768 calls, based on the SF
LOS of 22.13 SF/call.

PROPOSED FIRE IMPACT FEE
The fire impact fees proposed in this analysis will be assessed within the entire service area. The fire impact fee utilizes the Plan
Based Approach, which is based on a defined set of capital costs specified for future development. The City’s existing facilities are
proportionately allocated to all calls for service, providing an equitable distribution of the City’s facilities. It is anticipated that the
existing facilities will be used to respond to calls for service from new development activity. The cost per call is based on the
existing facilities buy-in, as shown in TABLE 4.5, and is the basis for the maximum impact fees per land use category, as shown in
TABLE 4.6.

6

The IFFP and IFA should be updated regularly to account for changes in growth assumptions.
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IMPACT FEE CALCULATIONS

TABLE 4.5: ESTIMATE OF IMPACT FEE COST PER CALL
ESTIMATED
COST
$3,286,781
$1,409,389
$11,630

Existing Facilities
Financing Costs
Impact Fee Analysis
Total Impact Fee Cost

COST TO IMPACT
FEE
$205,393
$88,074
$11,630
$305,096

IF ELIGIBLE
6%
6%
100%

DEMAND SERVED
48
48
48

COST PER CALL
$4,279
$1,835
$242
$6,356

FIRE IMPACT FEE BY LAND USE TYPE
The cost per call is then multiplied by the actual demand unit of measurement or calls per unit for each development type as shown
in TABLE 4.6. The total cost per call includes the cost per call for facilities and professional expense.
TABLE 4.6: RECOMMENDED FIRE IMPACT FEE SCHEDULE
COST PER CALL
Single Family Residential (per dwelling unit)
Multi-Family Residential (per dwelling unit)
Assisted Living/Senior Living (per dwelling unit)
Non-Residential (per 1,000 square feet)

$6,356
$6,356
$6,356
$6,356

CALLS PER UNIT
0.081
0.064
0.452
0.055

PROPOSED
IMPACT FEE PER
UNIT
$515.67
$409.05
$2,870.45
$347.71

CURRENT IMPACT
FEE PER UNIT
$581.88
$90.01
$365.94
$365.94

% CHANGE
-11%
354%
684%
-5%

The fees for public safety service are changing due to fluctuations in the calls per unit by land use type, the City recently refinancing
applicable debt service, updates to original cost assumptions, and changes in build-out land-use information.

NON-STANDARD FIRE IMPACT FEES

The City reserves the right under the Impact Fees Act to assess an adjusted fee that more closely matches the true impact that
the land use will have upon fire facilities.7 This adjustment could result in a different impact fee if the City determines that a particular
user may create a different impact than what is standard for its land use. The City may adjust the impact fee if the developer can
provide documentation, evidence, or other credible analysis that the proposed impact will be different than what is proposed in this
analysis. The formula for determining a non-standard impact fee is found below.
FORMULA FOR NON-STANDARD FIRE IMPACT FEES:

Estimate of Annual Call Volume per Unit x $6,356 = Impact Fee per Unit

7

UC 11-36a-402(1)(c)
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SECTION 5: POLICE IFFP AND IFA
The purpose of this section is to address the Police IFFP, with supporting IFA, and to help the City plan for the necessary capital
improvements for future growth. This section will address the future police infrastructure needed to serve the City through the next
ten years, as well as address the appropriate police impact fees the City may charge to new growth to maintain the existing LOS.
TABLE 5.1: POLICE CALL PROJECTIONS
YEAR

PROJECTED CALLS
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2040
2050

IFFP Growth
Buildout

9,283
9,364
9,445
9,527
9,610
9,694
9,778
9,863
9,949
10,036
10,123
11,039
12,037

DEMAND
This element focuses on the specific demand unit related to police services – calls for
service.8 The demand analysis identifies the existing demand on public facilities and the
future demand generated from new development. The demand analysis also provides
projected annual growth in demand units over the planning horizon of the IFFP. Call data
used to determine the average calls for residential and non-residential development is
from 2017-2019.
The annual call volume for the City for 2019 was 9,203 calls for service. TABLE 5.2
illustrates the call ratio per developed unit. The call ratio analysis establishes the existing
LOS for residential and non-residential land-uses. A review of existing businesses in the
City shows a mix of business types. This suggests the call data is based on a variety of
businesses that reflect a cross-section of the types of businesses that will likely continue
to develop in the City.

840
12,037

In order to determine the demand placed upon existing public facilities by new
development, this analysis projects the additional call volume that undeveloped land uses
will generate. An in-depth analysis has been prepared to determine the number of
developed units or building square footage in each zoning category, and the number of calls per unit or 1,000 square feet of building
square footage and has been assigned to each land use category. Table 5.2 illustrates the projected future police calls based
upon the number of historic calls by land use category.
TABLE 5.2: HISTORIC & PROJECTED POLICE CALL DATA BY LAND USE CATEGORY
CALL RATIOS
Single Family (per Unit)
Multi-Family Dwelling (per Unit)
Private Non-Residential (per 1000 square feet)

EXISTING
UNITS
4,351
404
658

AVERAGE
CALLS
3,651
191
585

CURRENT
CALLS PER
UNIT
0.84
0.47
0.89

BUILDOUT UNITS

BUILDOUT CALLS

5,570
927
763

4,674
438
678

Subtotal Private Calls
Estimate of Other Calls
Total Calls

5,790
6,247
12,037

As shown in Table 5.1, the City anticipates an additional 2,834 annual calls through buildout. The total annual calls at buildout are
expected to be approximately 12,037.

EXISTING FACILITIES INVENTORY

To quantify the demands placed upon existing public facilities by new development activity, the IFFP provides an inventory of the
City’s existing facilities. The inventory of existing facilities is important to properly determine the excess capacity of existing facilities
and the utilization of excess capacity by new development. As shown in TABLE 5.3, there is a total of 16,300 building square feet
attributed to police.

LEVEL OF SERVICE

The LOS for purposes of this analysis is calls per development type. TABLE 5.2 illustrates the existing level of service expressed
in calls per development type.

8 Police

call means a call that initiates the deployment of an officer to a location within the City.
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EXCESS CAPACITY

The City has indicated that the existing facility is sufficient to serve all police calls through the time horizon of this analysis. Thus,
the impact fees in this analysis are calculated based on an equitable distribution of the portion of the existing facility that will serve
development. The Impact Fees Act does not allow for the inclusion of holding cells or courthouses in the calculation of the impact
fee, therefore, the portion of the building used for these purposes has been excluded from the fee calculations.

MANNER OF FINANCING EXISTING PUBLIC FACILITIES

The existing facilities have been paid for through a combination of General Fund monies and impact fees. It is anticipated that the
additional burden placed on the police department by new development will be funded through impact fee revenues.
The City contributes to the repayment of a 2006 sales and franchise tax revenue bonds. This bond was refinanced in 2015 and
refunded on April 1st, 2020. The City’s portion of the interest expense on this loan is included in the calculation of the impact fee
and shown in TABLE 5.4.
TABLE 5.3: EXISTING POLICE FACILITIES
FIRE FACILITIES
Fire SF
Total Fire
POLICE FACILITIES
Police SF
Holding Cells/Courthouse
Total Police

FACILITY SQUARE FEET

% IFA ELIGIBLE
16,998
16,998

100%

FACILITY SQUARE FEET

% IFA ELIGIBLE
13,710
2,590
16,300

84%
16%
100%

TABLE 5.4: COST OF EXISTING POLICE FACILITIES
CATEGORY
Total Police and Fire Facility Cost
Interest Related to Police and Fire Facilities

TOTAL PUBLIC
SAFETY
BUILDING COST
$6,072,768
$2,604,035

% OF
TOTAL

ALLOCATION TO POLICE

70%
30%

POLICE IFA
ELIGIBLE*

$2,785,987
$1,194,646

84%
84%

Total Cost
$8,676,803
$3,980,633
*Approximately 16 percent of the police SF dedicated to Holding cells and the Courthouse is removed from the analysis

POLICE IFA COST
$2,343,306
$1,004,822
$3,348,128

FUTURE CAPITAL FACILITIES ANALYSIS

The City has indicated that the existing facility will be sufficient to serve all police calls through the horizon of this analysis.

PROPOSED POLICE IMPACT FEE

The police impact fee is based on the plan-based methodology. Using this approach, impact fees are calculated based on a defined
set of capital costs specified for future development. The improvements are identified in a capital plan or impact fee facilities plan
as growth-related system improvements. The City’s existing and proposed future facilities are then proportionately allocated to the
new development calls for service, providing an equitable distribution of the existing and proposed facilities that will serve
development. The total cost is divided by the total demand units the improvements are designed to serve. Under this methodology,
it is important to identify the existing level of service and determine any excess capacity in existing facilities that could serve new
growth. Impact fees are then calculated based on many variables centered on proportionality and level of service.
Highland City does not anticipate any new facilities at this time; thus, the impact fee analysis only considers a buy-in to existing
facilities. The police impact fees proposed in this analysis will be assessed throughout the entire service area.

IMPACT FEE CALCULATIONS

TABLE 5.5: ESTIMATE OF IMPACT FEE COST PER CALL
ESTIMATED COST
Existing Facilities
$2,343,306
Financing Costs
$1,004,822
Future Facilities (Land and Building)
$0
Impact Fee Analysis
$11,630
Impact Fee Fund Balance
$0

IF ELIGIBLE
7%
7%
0%
100%
100%

Total Impact Fee Cost

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc.

DEMAND SERVED
840
840
840
840
840

COST TO IMPACT FEE
$163,524
$70,120
$0
$11,630
$0

COST PER CALL
$195
$83
$0
$14
$0

$245,275

$292
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POLICE IMPACT FEE BY LAND USE TYPE
The cost per call is then multiplied by the actual demand unit of measurement, or calls per unit for each development type, as
shown in TABLE 5.6. The total cost per call includes the cost per call for facilities and professional expense.
TABLE 5.6: RECOMMENDED POLICE IMPACT FEE SCHEDULE
COST PER CALL
Single Family Residential (per dwelling unit)
Multi-Family Residential (per dwelling unit)
Private Non-Residential (per 1,000 square
feet)

CALLS PER UNIT

PROPOSED
IMPACT FEE PER
UNIT

CURRENT IMPACT
FEE PER UNIT

% CHANGE

$292
$292

0.839
0.473

$245.02
$138.05

$533.79
$75.32

-54%
83%

$292

0.889

$259.58

$336.24

-23%

The fees for public safety service are changing due to fluctuations in the calls per unit by land use type, the City recently refinancing
applicable debt service, updates to original cost assumptions, and changes in build-out land-use information.

NON-STANDARD POLICE IMPACT FEES

The City reserves the right under the Impact Fees Act to assess an adjusted fee that more closely matches the true impact that
the land use will have upon police facilities.9 This adjustment could result in a different fee if the City determines that a particular
user may create a different impact than what is standard for its land use. The City may adjust the impact fee if the developer can
provide documentation, evidence, or other credible analysis that the proposed impact will be different than what is proposed in this
analysis. The formula for determining a non-standard impact fee, assuming the fair share approach, is found below.
FORMULA FOR NON-STANDARD POLICE IMPACT FEES:

Estimate of Annual Call Volume per Unit x $292 = Impact Fee per Unit

9

UC 11-36a-402(1)(c)
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SECTION 6: PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION IFA
Impact fees are calculated based on many variables centered on proportionality and LOS. Future demands were identified
previously in this document, and this section will discuss the existing and proposed level of service, the availability of excess
capacity, the needed future facilities to serve new development, and the appropriate impact fee to be assessed to new development
to maintain the existing LOS. This section of the analysis deals with the City’s pressurized irrigation system. The information utilized
in this analysis is based off the Highland City Pressurized Irrigation IFFP completed in November 2020, which is based on the
Pressurized Irrigation Master Plan completed by Hansen Allen & Luce in 2019. Following is a review of the information from the
IFFP and the IFA. If any changes are made to the IFFP this analysis should be updated to reflect the changes.

DEMAND
The demand unit related to pressurized irrigation is irrigated acres. The increase in irrigated acres is calculated using the increase
in population to determine growth in total irrigated acres. According to the IFFP, an average of 50% of each developed acre will be
irrigated and counted in this analysis. TABLE 6.1 shows the demand for pressurized irrigation.
TABLE 6.1: PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION DEMAND
GROWTH IN TOTAL
YEAR
POPULATION
ACRES
2019
20,114
2,783
2020
20,516
2,861
2021
20,926
2,939
2022
21,345
3,017
2023
21,772
3,094
2024
22,207
3,174
2025
22,651
3,259
2026
23,104
3,345
2027
23,566
3,433
2028
24,038
3,523
2029
24,518
3,615
2050
37,162
3,730
Source: 2020 Pressurized Irrigation IFFP Pg. 2

LEVEL OF SERVICE

IRRIGATED ACRES

The IFFP defines the level of service for the
pressurized irrigation system. The IFA cannot increase
the level of service in the system, but only maintain
existing conditions. Below in TABLE 6.2 is the defined
level of service for the pressurized irrigation system.

1,392
1,430
1,470
1,508
1,547
1,587
1,630
1,673
1,716
1,761
1,808
1,865

EXISTING FACILITIES INVENTORY

Highland City owns and operates the pressurized
irrigation system. This system is used to water outdoor
landscaped areas. The original system was built in
1997. Some of the costs of this system can be
attributed to new growth since the growth will benefit
from the existing system. This process is called buy-in
and the value attributable to new growth was identified
and can be found in TABLE 6.3. Approximately $2.7 million of original cost is considered impact fee qualifying.
TABLE 6.2: PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION LEVEL OF SERVICE
ATTRIBUTE
LOS
Peak Day Demand
10 (gpm)/Irrigated acre
Peak Instantaneous Demand
20 (gpm)/Irrigated acre
Minimum Storage
8500 gallons/Irrigated acre
Water Connection Pressure Range
50 psi - 120 psi
Maximum Connection Pressure Range
30 psi
Source: 2020 Pressurized Irrigation IFFP Pg. 3

TABLE 6.3: EXCESS STORAGE SUMMARY
EXISTING VOLUME (ACSERVICE ZONE
FT)
Upper/Lower
31.4
Northwest
19.0
Total
50.4
Source: 2020 Pressurized Irrigation IFFP Pg. 4

EXCESS CAPACITY
The existing system has excess capacity within storage
and distribution to serve new growth. The total storage
capacity is 50.4 acre-feet, and all ponds are in good
condition. As shown in TABLE 6.3, the Upper/Lower
storage ponds do not have existing capacity, but the
northwest pond has sufficient excess capacity to build out
conditions.

31.4
6.8

0.0
12.4

39.6
8.5

BUILDOUT STORAGE
DEMAND
40.1
8.5

38.1

NA

48.1

48.6

2020 STORAGE DEMAND

EXISTING EXCESS
CAPACITY

2029 STORAGE DEMAND

The IFFP determined that source does not have any excess capacity, especially during the late seasons of the year. A deficit of
about 17 cfs exists to maintain the existing level of service. All pipes in the distribution system are in good condition as they were
constructed in 1997. Every zone in the system has excess capacity in the distribution system except for the upper zone. Two
additional lines have been considered in this analysis from the IFFP to maintain the level of service.

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc.
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The City’s Upper & 11800 North booster stations no longer have excess capacity for growth projected in the next ten years. The
booster station capacities is shown in TABLE 6.4.
TABLE 6.4: EXISTING PUMP AND BOOSTER STATION CAPACITY SUMMARY
PUMP STATION
PRESSURE ZONES SERVED
Upper
Upper Pressure Zone
11800 North
Northwest Area
Hog Hollow
Hog Hollow above Northeast Zone
Source: 2020 Pressurized Irrigation IFFP Pg. 4

CAPACITY (GPM)
6,000
2,500
690

EXISTING (GPM)
5,610
2,502
508

FUTURE (GPM)
6,615
3,274
508

A summary of the excess capacity calculation is found in TABLE 6.5.
TABLE 6.5: PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION EXISTING FACILITIES INVENTORY

Storage
NW Pond
Pump Stations
11800 PS & Well
Lower PS
Hogs Hollow PS
Source
11800 Enhanced Well Capacity
(MP#2a)
Original System
System Less Upper Pond & Canterbury
Upper Pond (No Capacity)
Pipeline
18" Transmission Line - 6000 West
12" Canal Blvd Transmission Line
(MP#9)
Total

IMPACT FEE
QUALIFYING BEYOND
10 YEARS

NON-IMPACT
FEE QUALIFYING

131,068

248

456,152

1,427,049
206,336
231,556

318,385
-

43,828
-

1,064,836
206,336
231,556

13%

333,800

289,942

43,858

-

22%
0%

3%
0%

7,662,529
598,471

1,709,566
-

235,333
-

5,717,631
598,471

75%

22%

3%

137,562

30,691

4,225

102,646

0%

87%

13%

292,076

253,700

38,376

-

$11,476,847

$2,733,353

$365,866

$8,377,628

ORIGINAL
COST

EXISTING

10 YEAR

BUILDOUT

78%

22%

0%

587,468

75%
100%
100%

22%
0%
0%

3%
0%
0%

0%

87%

75%
100%

IMPACT FEE
QUALIFYING
COST

MANNER OF FINANCING EXISTING PUBLIC FACILITIES

The City’s existing pressurized irrigation infrastructure has been funded through a combination of utility rate revenues and other
governmental funds. The City issued the Series 2009 Revenue Refunding Bonds to fund upgrades to the system. The interest
associated with this bond is included in the calculation of the impact fee. According to the City’s financial records, a total of
$1,207,487.12 in interest expense is associated with this debt.

FUTURE CAPITAL FACILITIES ANALYSIS

The City’s staff and consultants have completed a review and analysis of the current pressurized irrigation system, evaluated future
development within the service area, and detailed the improvements necessary in the next ten years to maintain and expand the
collection system in order to serve the entire service area through ultimate build-out. Improvements needed beyond the ten-year
time horizon will not be considered in this analysis.
This analysis will consider only projects that will be constructed in the next ten years. TABLE 6.8 summarizes the City’s plans to
expand the existing pressurized irrigation system and create additional capacity within the system to address the City’s projected
needs. The estimated costs shown include only the cost to new growth.
TABLE 6.8: FUTURE FACILITIES
TYPE & MASTER
PLAN ID

YEAR TO BE
CONSTRUCTED

2020 COST

CONSTRUCTION
COST WITH
INFLATION

MP #2 Source
MP #3 Pumping
MP #8
Distribution

2021
2021

54,000
120,960

55,620
124,589

73%
0%

24%
87%

3%
13%

13,349
108,195

IMPACT FEE
QUALIFYING
BEYOND 10
YEARS
1,669
16,394

2027

58,320

71,726

0%

87%

13%

62,288

9,438

% TO
EXISTING

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc.

%
IMPACT
FEE

% TO
BUILDOUT

IMPACT FEE
QUALIFYING
COST

NON-IMPACT
FEE
QUALIFYING
40,603
-
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TYPE & MASTER
PLAN ID

YEAR TO BE
CONSTRUCTED

2020 COST

Rev MP #12
2021
1,708,000
Storage
MP #13
2027
145,800
Pumping
MP #14 Source
2021
1,115,640
MP #15 Source
2024
1,823,040
MP #16
2027
167,400
Distribution
Total
$5,193,160
Source: 2020 Pressurized Irrigation IFFP Pg. 7

CONSTRUCTION
COST WITH
INFLATION

% TO

%

% TO

IMPACT FEE
QUALIFYING
BEYOND 10
YEARS

IMPACT FEE
QUALIFYING
COST

NON-IMPACT
FEE
QUALIFYING

EXISTING

IMPACT
FEE

1,759,240

0%

87%

13%

1,527,757

231,483

-

179,316

0%

87%

13%

155,721

23,595

-

1,149,109
2,051,848

0%
0%

87%
87%

13%
13%

997,908
1,781,862

151,201
269,985

-

205,881

0%

87%

13%

178,791

27,090

-

$4,825,871

$730,855

$40,603

BUILDOUT

$5,597,328

PROPOSED PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION IMPACT FEE

The pressurized irrigation impact fee is based on the plan-based methodology. Using this approach, impact fees are calculated
based on a defined set of capital costs specified for future development. The improvements are identified in a capital plan or impact
fee facilities plan as growth-related system improvements. The City’s existing and proposed future facilities are then proportionately
allocated to the new development irrigated acres, providing an equitable distribution of the existing and proposed facilities that will
serve development. The total cost is divided by the total demand units the improvements are designed to serve. Under this
methodology, it is important to identify the existing level of service and determine any excess capacity in existing facilities that
could serve new growth. Impact fees are then calculated based on many variables centered on proportionality and level of service.
The pressurized irrigation impact fees proposed in this analysis will be assessed within the entire Service Area. The tables below
illustrate the appropriate impact fee to maintain the existing level or service, based on the assumptions within this document and
the IFFP. The fees below represent the maximum allowable impact fee assignable to new development. The total fee per irrigated
acre is $18,882.

IMPACT FEE CALCULATIONS

TABLE 6.10: IMPACT FEE PER IRRIGABLE ACRE
COMPONENT

TOTAL COST

% THAT WILL
SERVE 10
YR. DEMAND

DOLLAR AMOUNT THAT
WILL SERVE 10 YR.
DEMAND

10 YR. DEMAND
(IRRIGATED
ACRES)

COST PER IRRIGATED
ACRE

Future 10 Year Capital Projects
Existing Infrastructure
Existing Irrigation Debt - Interest Only

$5,597,328
$11,476,847
$1,207,487

86%
24%
24%

$4,825,871
$2,733,353
$287,578

416
416
416

$11,596.49
$6,568.20
$691.05

Pressurized Irrigation Subtotal
Professional Services/Credits
IFFP/IFA

$18,281,662

43%

$7,846,802

416

$18,855.74

$10,850

100%

$10,850

416

$26.07

$10,850

100%

$10,850

416

$26.07

$18,292,512

43%

$7,857,652

416

$18,881.82

Professional Services/Credits Subtotal
Total Impact Fee

NON-STANDARD IMPACT FEE
The City reserves the right under the Impact Fees Act10 to assess an adjusted fee that more closely matches the true impact that
the land use will have upon the wastewater system. This adjustment could result in a lower impact fee if evidence suggests a
particular user will create a different impact than what is standard for its category. The formula for a non-standard impact fee
calculation is shown below.
NON-STANDARD IMPACT FEE FORMULA

Estimated Irrigated Acres x $18,882.82 = Impact Fee

10

11-36a-402(1)(c)
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SECTION 7: WASTEWATER IFA
Impact fees are calculated based on many variables centered on proportionality and LOS. Future demands were identified
previously in this document, and this section will discuss the existing and proposed level of service, the availability of excess
capacity, the needed future facilities to serve new development, and the appropriate impact fee to be assessed to new development
to maintain the existing LOS. This analysis deals solely with the City’s wastewater collection system. The information utilized in
this analysis is based on the IFFP completed November 2020. The following contains a summary of the information contained in
the IFFP and the IFA.

DEMAND AND SERVICE AREAS
Wastewater services in the City are assessed in two separate service areas. The collection system was divided into these two
separate service areas to reflect the different growth patterns in each area. The Central Service Area serves most of the City and
reflects average annual growth rates. The Southeast Service Area is expected to grow at a more rapid pace. The impact fees for
wastewater will be calculated for each of the areas, as shown in the map in SECTION 3.
The demand unit for this analysis is equivalent residential connections (ERCs). It is anticipated that the City will experience a
growth of 511 ERCs in the Central Service Area and 700 ERCs in the Southeast Service Area. A summary of the growth in demand
can be found in TABLE 7.1.
TABLE 7.1: ERC DEMAND PROJECTIONS
CENTRAL SOUTHEAST
YEAR
ERCS
ERCS
2020
4,374
242
Year 10
4,885
942
Buildout
5,500
997
Source: 2020 Wastewater IFFP Pg. 2-1

EXISTING FACILITIES INVENTORY

TOTAL ERCS

Highland City provides wastewater collection services to
approximately 8.6 square miles and approximately 20,000
residents in northeastern Utah County, Utah. The wastewater
collection system contains over 60 miles of wastewater pipe
ranging between 8 and 15 inches in diameter, and over 1,600
manholes. Highland City has 5 wastewater pumping stations
that help convey all of the wastewater collected by the system to the Timpanogos Special Service District (TSSD) trunk lines and
to the TSSD treatment plant. Hansen, Allen, & Luce Inc. completed the initial Wastewater Collection System Master Plan for
Highland City in 2007. An update to the Master Plan was completed in 2020 that reviewed current growth projections and system
capacity. Information from the master plan was used in conjunction with data from Highland City to create the impact fee facility
plan11. This analysis attributes a portion of the existing system to new development, referred to as buy-in. Approximately $1.1
million is attributed to new growth in the 10-year horizon between the two service areas, as shown in TABLE 7.2.
TABLE 7.2: EXISTING FACILITY INVENTORY
EXISTING FACILITY
% TO 10 YR.
% EXISTING
COSTS
GROWTH
Southeast Area
Existing Trunk
24%
70%
Lines
Total
Central Area
Existing Trunk
80%
9%
Lines
Dry Creek LS
80%
9%

4,616
5,827
6,497

% TO
BUILDOUT
6%

11%
11%

ORIGINAL INSTALL
COST

COST TO EXISTING

COST TO 10 YR.
GROWTH

COST TO
BUILDOUT

1,055,010

253,202

738,507

63,301

$1,055,010

$253,202

$738,507

$63,301

3,042,726

1,204,076

311,135

380,276

531,997

425,500

49,734

56,763

Total

$3,574,723

$1,629,576

$360,869

$437,038

Combined Total

$4,629,733

$1,882,778

$1,099,376

$500,339

LEVEL OF SERVICE
Impact fees cannot be used to finance an increase in the level of service (LOS) to current or future users of capital improvements.
Therefore, it is important to identify the wastewater LOS to ensure that the new capacities of projects financed through impact fees
do not exceed the established standard. This analysis considers a level of service based on actual flows contributing to the
wastewater system. The following table from the IFFP defines the LOS for this analysis.

11

Paragraph excerpt IFFP Pg. 2-1
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TABLE 7.3: WASTEWATER LEVEL OF SERVICE
CATEGORY
LOS

2020

Average Day Flow
350 gpd/ERC
Peak Day Flow
Maximum Depth Ratio
Minimum Velocity
Source: 2020 Wastewater IFFP Pg. 2-3

2029

BUILDOUT

1.62 MGD
2.04 MGD
2.27 MGD
Ave Day Flow x 2.1517 x (ERCs x 350 / 1,000,0000) ^-0.156
70% for 15+" pipes, 50% for pipes smaller than 15"
2 fps

EXCESS CAPACITY
The IFFP analyzed the current system based on the LOS to see if any additional capacity exists to serve new growth. Future
projects can only be considered if they are needed to maintain the LOS and the need cannot be fulfilled by existing capacity. TABLE
7.2 above shows the amount of capacity in the existing system, by service area, along with the costs attributable to the capacity,
available to serve development over the 10 year horizon and through ultimate build-out. TABLE 7.4 below shows the summary of
the City owned pump station and the amount of capacity available for new growth, as determined in the IFFP.
TABLE 7.4: PUMP STATION EXCESS CAPACITY
PUMP STATION

CAPACITY

BUILDOUT
PEAK FLOW

Dry Creek Bench
850 gpm
Source: 2020 Wastewater IFFP Pg. 2-3

850 gpm

EXISTING 2020
ERC
%
871
80%

10 YR. GROWTH
ERC
%
102
9.40%

GROWTH BEYOND 10 YR.
ERC
%
116
10.60%

MANNER OF FINANCING EXISTING PUBLIC FACILITIES
The City’s existing sewer infrastructure has been funded through a combination of utility rate revenues and other governmental
funds. No outstanding debt exists to include in the wastewater IFA.

FUTURE CAPITAL FACILITIES ANALYSIS

The City’s staff and consultants have completed a review and analysis of the current collection system, evaluated future
development within the service areas, and detailed the improvements necessary in the next ten years to maintain and expand the
collection system in order to serve both service areas through ultimate build-out. Improvements needed beyond the ten-year time
horizon will not be considered in this analysis.
This analysis will consider only projects that will be constructed in the next ten years. TABLE 7.5 summarizes the City’s plans to
expand the existing wastewater system and create additional capacity within the system to address the City’s projected needs.
The estimated costs shown include only the cost to new growth.
TABLE 7.5: WASTEWATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN
ANTICIPATED
DESCRIPTION
PROJECT COST
YEAR

CONSTRUCTION
YEAR COST

Central Service Area
12" Pipe Replacement in 10480
North (MP#1)
12" Pipe Replacement in County
Club Drive (MP#2)
12" Pipe Replacement in Dry
Creek Circle (MP#3)

Existing

2020-2029

2029 –
Buildout

2025

$419,000

$485,736

72%

13%

16%

$63,146

2022

$1,050,000

$1,113,945

78%

10%

12%

$111,395

2022

$398,000

$422,238

72%

12%

15%

$50,669

2029 –
Buildout
6%

$732,976

Southeast Service Area
12" Pipe Replacement (MP#4)
Source: 2020 Wastewater IFFP Pg. 2-5

COST DUE TO 10
YR. GROWTH

ERC UTILIZATION

2022

$987,000

$1,047,108

Existing

2020-2029

24%

70%

PROPOSED WASTEWATER IMPACT FEE
Impact fees can be calculated based on a defined set of costs specified for future development, usually defined within the Master
Plan, Capital Improvement Plan and/or IFFP. The total project costs are divided by the total demand units the projects are designed
to serve. Under this methodology, it is important to identify the existing level of service and determine any excess capacity in
existing facilities that could serve new growth. Impact fees are then calculated based on many variables centered on proportionate
share and level of service.
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The wastewater impact fees proposed in this analysis will be assessed within each of the Service Areas. The tables below illustrate
the appropriate impact fee to maintain the existing level or service, based on the assumptions within this document. The fees in
TABLES 7.6-7.7 represent the maximum allowable impact fee assignable to new development. The total fee per ERC in the central
areas is $1,155, and the total fee in the southeast area is $2,108.

WASTEWATER IMPACT FEE CALCULATIONS
TABLE 7.6: IMPACT FEE PER ERC – CENTRAL SERVICE AREA

IFFP Projects
Buy-in Existing Assets
Professional Services/Credits
IFA

$2,021,919
$3,574,723

% IMPACT FEE
QUALIFYING
11%
10%

$8,850

50%

$4,425

Total

$5,605,492

11%

$590,503

CENTRAL SERVICE AREA

UNIT OF MEASURE
Per ERC
Per Fixture Units (26 per ERC)
Per Gallon

COST

PROPOSED
$1,155.12
$44.43
$3.30

CURRENT
$2,125.98
$81.77
$6.07

IMPACT FEE
QUALIFYING COST
$225,209
$360,869

ERCS TO BE SERVED

COST PER ERC

511
511

$441
$706

511

$9
$1,155

% CHANGE
-46%
-46%
-46%

TABLE 7.7: IMPACT FEE PER ERC – SOUTHEAST SERVICE AREA

IFFP Projects

$1,047,108

% IMPACT FEE
QUALIFYING
70%

Buy-in Existing Assets

$1,055,010

70%

$8,850

50%

$4,425

$2,102,118

70%

$1,475,908

SOUTHEAST SERVICE AREA

COST

IMPACT FEE
QUALIFYING COST
$732,976

700

$1,047

$738,507

700

$1,055

700

ERCS TO BE SERVED

COST PER ERC

Professional Services/Credits
IFA
Total
UNIT OF MEASURE
Per ERC
Per Fixture Units (26 per ERC)
Per Gallon

PROPOSED
$2,108
$81.09
$6.02

CURRENT
$2,175.14
$83.66
$6.21

$6
$2,108

% CHANGE
-3%
-3%
-3%

NON-STANDARD IMPACT FEE
The City reserves the right under the Impact Fees Act12 to assess an adjusted fee that more closely matches the true impact that
the land use will have upon the wastewater system. This adjustment could result in a lower impact fee if evidence suggests a
particular user will create a different impact than what is standard for its category. The formula for a non-standard impact fee
calculation is shown below.
NON-STANDARD IMPACT FEE FORMULA

Central Service Area: Estimated ERCs x $1,155 = Impact Fee
Southeast Service Area: Estimated ERCs x $2,108 = Impact Fee

12

11-36a-402(1)(c)
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SECTION 8: PARK IFFP AND IFA
Parks impact fees are typically calculated using the growth driven approach. This method calculates a level of service based on
existing conditions within the service area, with the intent to perpetuate that level of service into the future. Impact fees are then
calculated to provide the revenue necessary for the entity to provide sufficient facilities to future development as growth occurs
within the community. This chapter will establish a LOS based on the existing park facilities and amenities provided to development
within the service area.

DEMAND

The primary demand unit related to the park IFA is population growth. It is anticipated that the City’s population will increase by
4,405 people in the next ten years.

EXISTING FACILITIES INVENTORY

TABLE 8.1: PROJECTED GROWTH IN DEMAND UNITS
YEAR
POPULATION
2019
18,876
2020
19,392
2021
19,903
2022
20,412
2023
20,943
2024
21,501
2025
22,068
2026
22,646
2027
23,238
2028
23,849
2029
24,477
2030
25,120

The City’s existing inventory for parks and recreation is
summarized in TABLE 8.2. The city-owned acreage and
estimated total improvement value illustrated below will be
the basis for the LOS analysis discussed later in this
section, and the detailed inventory can be found in
APPENDIX A.

LEVEL OF SERVICE

The specific demand unit used for the Park IFFP and IFA is
population. The population projections are based on several
sources including Census data, Governor’s Office of
Management and Budget (GOMB) estimates, and City data.
The population in the City at the time of the calculation for
LOS was approximately 18,876. This analysis assumes the
population within the planning window will reach 24,477 or
an increase of approximately 5,728 residents from 2020.

TABLE 8.2: EXISTING FACILITY INVENTORY
TOTAL
LOS PER
PARK TYPE
ACREAGE
1,000 CAPITA
Total
220.23
1.45
TABLE 8.3: EXISTING FACILITY INVESTMENT
FY
TOTAL
FY
1992
$58,091
2006
1993
$474
2007
1994
$65,847
2008
1995
$21,844
2009
1996
$12,762
2010
1997
$21,385
2011
1998
$30,075
2012
1999
$203,109
2013
2000
$211,167
2014
2001
$273,628
2015
2002
$345,826
2016
2003
$380,322
2017
2004
$707,623
2019
2005
$408,869
Grand Total

TOTAL
$949,576
$1,069,717
$3,403,940
$4,441,058
$836,218
$147,954
$45,023
$731,464
$157,082
$61,303
$82,245
$121,104
$267,639
$15,055,344

TABLE 8.2 illustrates the total park acreage provided by the
City within the Service Area. Typically, new growth results
in the need to construct additional park facilities to maintain
the existing LOS. However, it is anticipated that the City’s
existing facilities will serve new development activity. The
buy-in calculation is identified in the next section.

EXCESS CAPACITY
The City has one outstanding debt issue that will be
considered in the analysis as buy-in. The interest that is
eligible for the IFA from this bond will be subtracted from the
value of existing assets used for the per capita LOS to
ensure that the value is not being doubled counted. The
Census population estimate was used to calculate the per
capita value.

MANNER OF FINANCING EXISTING PUBLIC
FACILITIES

The City’s existing parks infrastructure has been funded
through a combination of General Fund revenues, grants,
other governmental funds, and donations. General Fund
revenues include a mix of property taxes, sales taxes,
federal and state grants, and any other available General
Fund revenues. The City has received donations to fund
parks and trails facilities, therefore donated park land and

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc.
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improvements are not included in the impact fee calculations. The City issued bonds in 2007 for parks improvements, and the
value of the bonds will be shared equally across the increase in population from the issuance date of the bonds, through 2027.
TABLE 8.4: BUY-IN DETERMINATION
BUY-IN DETERMINATION

BUY-IN COMPONENT

POPULATION SERVED

PER PERSON

Principal Related to Buy-In

$7,315,000

7,738

Interest Related to Buy-In

$3,352,444

7,738

$433.22

$10,667,444

7,738

$1,378.52

Total Buy-In

$945.29

FUTURE CAPITAL FACILITIES ANALYSIS
Typically, new growth results in the need to construct additional park facilities to maintain the existing LOS. However, it is
anticipated that the City’s existing facilities will serve new development activity. The buy-in calculation is identified in this analysis.

PROPOSED PARKS IMPACT FEE
The calculation of impact fees relies upon the information contained in this analysis. The timing of construction for growth-related
park facilities will depend on the rate of development and the availability of funding. For purposes of this analysis, a specific
construction schedule is not required. The construction of park facilities can lag behind development without impeding continued
development activity. This analysis assumes that construction of needed park facilities will proceed on a pay-as-you-go basis.
The calculation of the park impact fee is based on the Growth-Driven Approach, which is based on the increase, or growth, in
residential demand. The growth-driven methodology utilizes the existing LOS and perpetuates that LOS into the future. Impact
fees are then calculated to provide sufficient funds for the entity to expand or provide additional facilities, as growth occurs within
the community. Under this methodology, impact fees are calculated to ensure new development provides sufficient investment to
maintain the current LOS standards in the community. This approach is often used for public facilities that are not governed by
specific capacity limitations and do not need to be built before development occurs (i.e. park facilities).

PARKS AND RECREATION IMPACT FEE CALCULATION
Utilizing the estimated buy-in fee and the cost of professional expenses related to the preparation of the impact fee analysis, the
total fee per capita is shown in TABLE 8.6 below.
TABLE 8.6: ESTIMATE OF IMPACT FEE VALUE PER CAPITA
TYPE OF IMPROVEMENT
Buy-In
Impact Fee Analysis

VALUE PER CAPITA
$1,379
$2

Estimate of Impact Fee Per Capita

$1,381

PARKS AND RECREATION IMPACT FEE BY HOUSEHOLD TYPE

Based on the per capita fee, the proposed impact fee per household is summarized in TABLE 8.7.
TABLE 8.7: PARK IMPACT FEE SCHEDULE
IMPACT FEE PER HH
Single Family
Multi-Family (Including Mobile Homes)

PERSONS PER HH
4.24
3.48

PROPOSED FEE PER
HH
$5,854
$4,804

EXISTING FEE PER HH
$4,378
$4,239

% CHANGE
34%
13%

NON-STANDARD IMPACT FEE
The proposed fees are based upon population growth. The City reserves the right under the Impact Fees Act to assess an adjusted
fee that more closely matches the true impact that the land use will have upon park facilities. 13 This adjustment could result in a
higher impact fee if the City determines that a particular user may create a greater impact than what is standard for its land use.
The City may also decrease the impact fee if the developer can provide documentation, evidence, or other credible analysis that
the proposed impact will be lower than what is proposed in this analysis. The formula for determining a non-standard impact fee is
found below.
FORMULA FOR NON-STANDARD PARK IMPACT FEES:

Estimated Population per Unit x $1,381 = Impact Fee per Unit
13

11-36a-402(1)(c)
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SECTION 9: GENERAL IMPACT FEE CONSIDERATIONS
SYSTEM VS. PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS
System improvements are defined as existing and future public facilities designed to provide services to service areas within the
community at large.14 Project improvements are improvements and facilities that are planned and designed to provide service for
a specific development (resulting from a development activity) and considered necessary for the use and convenience of the
occupants or users of that development.15 To the extent possible, this analysis only includes the costs of system improvements
related to new growth within the proportionate share analysis.

FUNDING OF FUTURE FACILITIES

The IFFP must include a consideration of all revenue sources, including impact fees and the dedication of system improvements,
which may be used to finance system improvements.16 In conjunction with this revenue analysis, there must be a determination
that impact fees are necessary to achieve an equitable allocation of the costs of the new facilities between the new and existing
users.17
In considering the funding of future facilities, the City has determined the portion of future projects that will be funded by impact
fees as growth-related, system improvements. No other revenues from other government agencies, grants or developer
contributions have been identified within the IFFP to help offset future capital costs. If these revenues become available in the
future, the impact fee analysis should be revised. It is anticipated that future project improvements will be funded by the developer.
These costs have not been included in the calculation of the impact fee.
Other revenues such as utility rate revenues will be necessary to fund non growth-related projects and to fund growth related
projects when sufficient impact fee revenues are not available. In the latter case, impact fee revenues will be used to repay utility
rate revenues for growth related projects. A brief description of alternative financing options is included below.
Utility Rate Revenues: Utility rate revenues serve as the primary funding mechanism within enterprise funds. Rates are
established to ensure appropriate coverage of all operations and maintenance expenses, debt service coverage, and
capital project needs. Impact fee revenues are generally considered non-operating revenues and help offset future capital
costs.
Grants, Donations and Other Contributions: Grants and donations are not expected as a future funding source. The
impact fees should be adjusted if grant monies are received. New development may be entitled to a reimbursement for
any grants or donations received for growth related projects, or for developer funded IFFP projects.
Debt Financing: The City does not anticipate the need to utilize debt financing to fund future capital facility projects.
Should the City desire to fund future projects through debt financing, the Impact Fees Act allows for the costs related to
the financing of future capital projects to be included in the impact fee. However, the impact fee analysis should be
updated to reflect this inclusion.

EQUITY OF IMPACT FEES
Impact fees are intended to recover the costs of capital infrastructure that relate to future growth. The impact fee calculations are
structured for impact fees to fund 100 percent of the growth-related facilities identified in the proportionate share analysis of each
impact fee calculation as presented in the impact fee analysis. Even so, there may be years that impact fee revenues cannot cover
the annual growth-related expenses. In those years, other revenues, such as General Fund revenues, will be used to make up
any annual deficits. Any borrowed funds are to be repaid in their entirety through impact fees.

NECESSITY OF IMPACT FEES
An entity may only impose impact fees on development activity if the entity’s plan for financing system improvements establishes
that impact fees are necessary to achieve parity between existing and new development. This analysis has identified the
improvements to public facilities and the funding mechanisms to complete the suggested improvements. Impact fees are identified

11-36a-102(21)
11-36a-102(14)
16 11-36a-302(2)
17 11-36a-302(3)
14
15
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as a necessary funding mechanism to help offset the costs of capital improvements related to new growth. In addition, alternative
funding mechanisms are identified to help offset the cost of future capital improvements.

PROPOSED CREDITS OWED TO DEVELOPMENT

The Impact Fees Act requires a local political subdivision or private entity to ensure that the impact fee enactment allows a
developer, including a school district or a charter school, to receive a credit against or proportionate reimbursement of an impact
fee if the developer: (a) dedicates land for a system improvement; (b) builds and dedicates some or all of a system improvement;
or (c) dedicates a public facility that the local political subdivision or private entity and the developer agree will reduce the need for
a system improvement.18 The facilities must be considered system improvements or be dedicated to the public, and offset the need
for an improvement identified in the IFFP.

CONSIDERATION OF ALL REVENUE SOURCES
The Impact Fees Act requires the proportionate share analysis to demonstrate that impact fees paid by new development are the
most equitable method of funding growth-related infrastructure.

EXPENDITURE OF IMPACT FEES

Legislation requires that impact fees should be spent or encumbered within six years after each impact fee is paid. Impact fees
collected in the next six years should be spent on those projects outlined in the IFFP as growth related costs to maintain the LOS.
Impact fees collected as a buy-in to existing facilities can be allocated to the General Fund to repay the City for historic investment.

GROWTH-DRIVEN EXTRAORDINARY COSTS
The City does not anticipate any extraordinary costs necessary to provide services to future development.

SUMMARY OF TIME PRICE DIFFERENTIAL
The Impact Fees Act allows for the inclusion of a time price differential to ensure that the future value of costs incurred at a later
date are accurately calculated to include the costs of construction inflation. This analysis includes an inflation component to reflect
the future cost of facilities. The impact fee analysis should be updated regularly to account for changes in cost estimates over time.

18

11-36a-402(2)
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APPENDIX A: PARKS AND RECREATION EXISTING INVENTORY
PARK
Argo Circle Park
Canterbury Circle Park
Canterbury North Park
Dry Creek East Park
Heritage Park
Highland Glen Park
Highland Hills Park
Mitchell Hollow Park
Town Center Meadows Park
Town Center Park
Twin Bridges Park
View Pointe Park
Wimbleton North Park
Wimbleton South Park
Windsor Meadows Park
Spring Creek Park
Dry Creek Hollow Park
Beacon Hills
Mountain Ridge
Trails

TYPE
Developed
Developed
Developed
Developed
Developed
Developed
Developed
Developed
Developed
Developed
Developed
Developed
Developed
Developed
Developed
Undeveloped
Undeveloped
Undeveloped
Undeveloped
Developed

Total

TOTAL ACREAGE

PAVILION

RESTROOM

CONCESSIONS

SPLASH PAD

PLAYGROUND

DRINKING FOUNTAIN

BIKE RACK

PICNIC TABLES

GARBAGE CANS

BENCHES

PICKLEBALL COURT

Each

Each

Each

Each

Each

Each

Each

Each

Each

Each

Each

1.18
2.69
3.79
2.75
6.23
75.00
6.81
12.93
5.68
2.03
0.79
3.16
1.90
4.21
4.88
2.32
44.00
22.28
17.60
0.00

0
1
1
0
1
1
0
1
1
1
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
1
1
0
1
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
0
1
1
1
1
1
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
3
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
1
0
0
0
0
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
7
6
0
16
1
0
17
8
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
5
0
5
0
0
3
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2
1
3
3
8
2
4
2
3
0
4
2
0
2
2
0
0
0
0
0

0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

220.23

8

4

1

1

14

3

3

55

13

38

1

PARK

1/2 BASKETBALL

FULL BASKETBALL

SOCCER

BASEBALL

VOLLEYBALL

SWING SET

TETHERBALL

BLEACHERS

PARKING LOT

BARBEQUE

HORSESHOE

TENNIS COURTS

FLAGPOLE

LAKE/POND

Argo Circle Park
Canterbury Circle Park
Canterbury North Park
Dry Creek East Park
Heritage Park
Highland Glen Park
Highland Hills Park
Mitchell Hollow Park
Town Center Meadows Park
Town Center Park
Twin Bridges Park
View Pointe Park
Wimbleton North Park
Wimbleton South Park
Windsor Meadows Park
Spring Creek Park
Dry Creek Hollow Park
Beacon Hills
Mountain Ridge
Trails

Each
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Each
0
1
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
1
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0

Each
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0

Each
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Each
0
0
0
0
1
1
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Each
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Each
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Each
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Each
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Each
0
0
2
0
4
1
5
2
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Each
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Each
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Each
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Each
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

IRRIGATED
OPEN SPACE
Each
1
0
0
0
0
6
0
0
0
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1

5

3

2

3

1

1

0

0

14

1

1

2

1

9

Total
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PAVED TRAILS
LF.
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
77,642
77,642
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TRANSPORTATION AND CULINARY WATER IFA AMENDMENT
HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
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IFA CERTIFICATION
IFA CERTIFICATION

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc. certifies that the Impact Fee Amendment prepared for transportation and culinary
water services:
1. Includes only the costs of public facilities that are:
a. allowed under the Impact Fees Act; and
b. actually incurred; or
c. projected to be incurred or encumbered within six years after the day on which each impact fee is paid;
2. Does not include:
a. costs of operation and maintenance of public facilities;
b. costs for qualifying public facilities that will raise the level of service for the facilities, through impact fees, above
the level of service that is supported by existing residents;
c. an expense for overhead, unless the expense is calculated pursuant to a methodology that is consistent with
generally accepted cost accounting practices and the methodological standards set forth by the federal Office of
Management and Budget for federal grant reimbursement;
d. offsets costs with grants or other alternate sources of payment; and
3. Complies in each and every relevant respect with the Impact Fees Act.
LYRB makes this certification with the following caveats:
1. LYRB has not updated the demand, level of service, or other assumptions from the 2015 and 2016 Impact Fee Analysis,
other than those identified in this amendment.
2. All of recommendations for capital improvements identified in the Impact Fee Facilities Plan (IFFP) are completed by
City staff and elected officials.
3. If all or a portion of the IFA is modified or amended, this certification is no longer valid.
4. All information provided to LYRB is assumed to be correct, complete, and accurate. This includes information provided
by the City as well as outside sources.
LEWIS YOUNG ROBERTSON & BURNINGHAM, INC.
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SECTION I: IFA AMENDMENTS
Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc., (“LYRB”) was retained by Highland City (“City”) to provide an amendment (the
“Amendment”) to the Transportation and Culinary Water Impact Fee Analysis completed in 2016 and 2015 respectively (the
“Analysis”). This Amendment document details the updates that have been made to the Analysis. The City has requested the
Amendment to incorporate changes to the capital projects and timing, and update demand projections. This Amendment does not
replace the previous Analysis.

SUMMARY
The Impact Fees Act requires that this analysis include a summary designed to be understood by a lay person.1 In summary, the
impact fees adopted in 2015 and 2016 are being amended based on changes in capital improvement costs, and demand for future
facilities. The revised impact fee for transportation is $113 per trip end, which is an 81% percent decrease from the current fee.
The revised impact fee for water is $603 per equivalent residential connection (“ERC”), which is a 64% percent decrease from the
current fee.

UPDATES TO THE TRANSPORATION ANALYSIS
TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Listed below are the project cost updates included in this impact fee amendment. The estimated cost to growth for transportation
has decreased from $7,451,154 in 2016 to $1,474,264. The decrease is a result of changes in actual project cost estimates and
inflation, as well as project funding sources. To determine the non-qualifying, 10 year, and beyond 10 year costs a proportional
estimate was used based on the existing distribution from the 2016 analysis.
TABLE 1.1: UPDATED ILLUSTRATION OF 10-YEAR TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT COST TO GROWTH
PROJECT NAME

YEAR TO BE
CONSTRUCTED

CONSTRUCTION
YEAR COST

% CITY
FUNDED

CITY FUNDED
COST

COST TO
EXISTING/NONQUALIFYING

COST TO 10
YR. GROWTH

COST TO
GROWTH
BEYOND 10
YRS.
$21,083

11200 N 2 Lane Collector
2020
$376,590
100%
$376,590
$5,759
$349,748
Madison Ave/9860 N 2 Lane
2020
$1,309,770
100%
$1,309,770
$20,027
$1,216,415
$73,326
Collector
Canal Boulevard 2 Lane
2020
$6,955,644
0%
$0
$0
$0
$0
Collector
Canal Boulevard and SR 74
2020
$347,782
0%
$0
$0
$0
$0
Intersection
Canal Boulevard and 4800
2020
$347,782
0%
$0
$0
$0
$0
West Intersection
Central Service Area Cost
$9,337,569
$1,686,360
$25,786
$1,566,163
$94,409
Source: Highland City, Refer to Table 5 of the 2016 Transportation Impact Fee Facility Plan, p 14, and the 2016 Transportation IFA, p. 10, Figure 3.2

The main changes are in the construction year cost and the percent of the cost to be City funded. The Canal Boulevard projects
are no longer City funded projects. The cost estimates for the two remaining projects have increases in cost mainly due to inflation.
It should also be noted that in this update, debt financing was not considered in the transportation fee as it was in the previous
analysis. Also, some errors were caught in the previous analysis and were rectified, specifically the total cost of existing
infrastructure.

1

See Utah Code 11-36a-502
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UPDATES TO THE CULINARY WATER ANALYSIS
UPDATED DEMAND PROJECTIONS
As a joint effort with this amendment the City has decided to fully update other impact fees. As part of that process more up-todate demand projections were generated and subsequently can be utilized to amend the culinary water fees. The equivalent
residential connection (ERC) demand in the 2015 analysis was 1,160. This has been adjusted to 699 ERCs, which is a decrease
of 40% percent.
TABLE 1.3: UPDATED ILLUSTRATION OF WATER DEMAND
CURRENT
NEW BUILDOUT
ERCs
Source: Highland City, Refer to the 2015 Culinary Water IFA p. 7 Figure 1

699

PREVIOUS BUILDOUT
1,160

%CHANGE
-40%

CULINARY WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

The estimated cost to growth for culinary water has decreased from $1,918,050 in 2015 to $421,325. The decrease is a result of
changes in actual project cost estimates, inflation, and an additional project. The revised Master Plan for culinary water includes
the Knight Avenue 12” Transmission Line project which was not previously included. This project will be for 3,300 feet of 12-inch
DIP through existing Knight Avenue. This new project will cost approximately $408,275 to complete. Project numbers 2 and 4 from
the master plan are also no longer being considered in the analysis.
TABLE 1.4: UPDATED ILLUSTRATION OF 10-YEAR WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT COST TO GROWTH
PROJECT
YEAR TO BE
PROJECT NAME
FY COST
IDENTIFIER
CONSTRUCTED
MP #2
11000 N. 12" Transmission Line
NA
$0
Southeast Area and Lone Peak High
MP #4
NA
$0
School
Revised MP #4
Knight Avenue 12" Transmission Line
2020
$408,275
Impact Fee Facilities Plan
$9,300
Impact Fee Analysis
$3,750

% CITY
FUNDED
100%

ELIGIBLE
COSTS
$0

% TO 10 YR.
GROWTH
100%

IMPACT FEE
QUALIFYING COST
$0

100%

$0

100%

$0

100%
100%
100%

$408,275
$9,300
$3,750

100%
100%
100%

$408,275
$9,300
$3,750

Total IFFP Cost
$421,325
100%
$421,325
Source: Highland City, Refer to Table 3 of the 2015 Culinary Impact Fee Facility Plan, p 4, and the 2015 Culinary Water IFA, p. 10, Figure 3

$421,325
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AMENDED IMPACT FEE CALCULATIONS
Based on the above updates, the impact fee for transportation has been amended as follows:

TRANSPORTATION

TABLE 1.5: UPDATED CALCULATION OF TRANSPORTATION PROPORTIONATE IMPACT FEE
% THAT WILL SERVE
COMPONENT
TOTAL COST
10 YR. DEMAND
Roadway Impact Fee
Future 10 Year Capital Projects
$1,686,360
92.87%
Future Growth-Related Debt - Interest Only
$0
92.87%
Existing Infrastructure
$2,012,962
16.36%
Existing Roads Related Debt - Interest Only
$0
0.00%
Roadway Impact Fee Subtotal
Professional Services/Credits
Unspent Impact Fee Funds
Professional Services/Credits

DOLLAR AMOUNT THAT WILL
SERVE 10 YR. DEMAND

10 YR. DEMAND
(TRIPS)

$1,566,163
$0
$329,365
$0

17,008
17,008
17,008
17,008

$3,699,322

$1,895,528

$0
$40,000

0.00%
100.00%

$92
$0
$19
$0
$111.00

$0
$40,000

Professional Services/Credits Subtotal
$40,000
Total Impact Fee per Trip
$3,739,322
Source: LYRB, See 2016 Transportation IFA p. 13, Figure 4.1

COST PER
TRIP END

17,008
17,008

$40,000
$1,935,528

$0
$2.00
$2.00
$113.00

TABLE 1.6: UPDATED IMPACT FEE BY LAND USE TYPE
LAND USE

CODE

UNIT

DAILY
TRIP RATE
(1/2 ITE
RATE)

PRIMARY
TRIPS

9.52

4.76

100%

$113

5.81

2.91

100%

6.65

3.33

3.44

ITE TRIP
GENERATION
RATE

COST

TOTAL
TRANSPORTATION
IMPACT FEE (PER
UNIT)

CURRENT
FEE

% CHANGE

$538

$2,861

-81%

$113

$328

$1,746

-81%

100%

$113

$376

$1,998

-81%

1.72

100%

$113

$194

$1,034

-81%

42.70
5.63

21.35
2.82

43%
75%

$113
$113

$1,037
$239

$5,517
$1,269

-81%
-81%

11.03
2.66
9.11
74.06
12.44

5.52
1.33
4.56
37.03
6.22

100%
100%
100%
10%
100%

$113
$113
$113
$113
$113

$623
$150
$515
$418
$703

$3,314
$799
$2,737
$2,225
$3,738

-81%
-81%
-81%
-81%
-81%

PER
TRIP

Residential
Single Family

210

Attached 6-8 Units
per Acre

230

Multi-Family >8 Units

220

Dwelling
Unit
Dwelling
Unit
Dwelling
Unit
Dwelling
Unit

Senior Housing251
Attached
Retail/Commercial
General Commercial
820
1,000 sf
Hotel/Motel
230
Rooms
Other
General Office
710
1,000 sf
Assisted Living
254
Beds
Church / Synagogue
560
1,000 sf
Day Care Center
565
1,000 sf
Business Park
770
1,000 sf
Source: See 2016 Transportation IFA p. 13, Figure 4.2
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CULINARY WATER
The culinary water impact fee is amended as follows:
TABLE 1.7: UPDATED CALCULATION OF WATER PROPORTIONATE IMPACT FEE
SOUTH EAST SERVICE AREA
IFFP Projects
Buy In - Existing Assets

% IMPACT FEE
QUALIFYING

COST
$421,325
$0

100%
0%

Total Impact Fee per ERC
$421,325
Source: LYRB, See 2015 Culinary Water IFA p. 20, Appendix 3

IMPACT FEE
QUALIFYING
COST
$421,325
$0

ERCS TO BE
SERVED

COST PER ERC

699
699

$603
0

$421,325

$603

TABLE 1.8: UPDATED FEE BASED ON METER SIZE
METER SIZE (IN)
Displacement Meters
Single Family Residential Equivalent 0.75"
0.75"
1"
1.5"
2"
Class II Turbine Meters - High Velocity
1.5"
2"
3"
4"
6"
8"
10"
12"
METER SIZE (IN)
Compound Meters
2"
3"
4"
6"
8"
10"

OPERATING
FLOW

EQUIVALENCY
RATIOS

PROPOSED
IMPACT FEE

PREVIOUS
IMPACT FEE

% CHANGE

25
25
40
50
100

1.00
1.00
1.60
2.00
4.00

$603
$603
$964
$1,206
$2,411

$1,653
$1,653
$2,646
$3,307
$6,614

-64%
-64%
-64%
-64%
-64%

100
160
350
630
1,400
2,400
3,800
5,000

4.00
6.40
14.00
25.20
56.00
96.00
152.00
200.00

$2,411
$3,858
$8,439
$15,189
$33,754
$57,864
$91,619
$120,551

$6,614
$10,582
$23,149
$41,668
$92,596
$158,735
$251,331
$330,698

-64%
-64%
-64%
-64%
-64%
-64%
-64%
-64%

OPERATING
FLOW
160
320
500
1,000
1,600
2,300

EQUIVALENCY
RATIOS
6.40
12.80
20.00
40.00
64.00
92.00

PROPOSED
IMPACT FEE
$3,858
$7,715
$12,055
$24,110
$38,576
$55,453

PREVIOUS
IMPACT FEE
$10,582
$21,165
$33,070
$66,140
$105,823
$152,121

% CHANGE
-64%
-64%
-64%
-64%
-64%
-64%

Source: 2015 Culinary Water IFA p 4, Figure ES2 and p. 12, Figure 4

Lewis Young Robertson & Burningham, Inc.
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CERTIFICATION OF IMPACT FEE FACILITY PLAN
I certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the attached impact fee facilities plan:
1. includes only the costs of public facilities that are:
a. allowed under the Impact Fees Act; and
b. actually incurred; or
c. projected to be incurred or encumbered within six years after the day on which each
impact fee is paid;
2. does not include:
a. costs of operation and maintenance of public facilities;
b. costs for qualifying public facilities that will raise the level of service for the facilities,
through impact fees, above the level of service that is supported by existing residents;
c. an expense for overhead, unless the expense is calculated pursuant to a methodology
that is consistent with generally accepted cost accounting practices and the
methodological standards set forth by the federal Office of Management and Budget
for federal grant reimbursement; and
3. complies in each and every relevant respect with the Impact Fees Act.

Prepared by:
Tavis B. Timothy, P.E.
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IMPACT FEE FACILITY PLAN
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The purpose of this Impact Fee Facility Plan (IFFP) is to provide direction to Highland City
regarding pressurized irrigation facilities required for future growth within the next ten years.
Highland City provides irrigation water to its residents through a city-wide pressurized irrigation
system. Construction of the system began in 1997. Improvements to the system have been
constructed to accommodate growth over the past seventeen years.
Data from the 2019 Pressurized Irrigation System Master Plan and additional data, provided by
the City, is the basis for the IFFP. The IFFP considers growth over the next ten years and does
not include the facilities required for growth beyond ten years of growth.
During the preparation of the IFFP, existing and proposed levels of service were determined for
distribution, storage and source of the Pressurized Irrigation system (see Table 2) for a single
irrigated acre. In each case, it was determined that the proposed level of service should be the
same as the existing level of service as provided in the Master Plan.
Impact Fees for the Pressurized Irrigation system will be uniform per irrigated acre across the
impact fee area.
PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
The purpose of this Impact Fee Facility Plan (IFFP) is to provide direction to Highland City
regarding pressurized irrigation facilities required for growth within the next ten years.
Highland City is located on a bench near American Fork, Lehi, and Alpine in northern Utah County.
According to City information the Pressurized Irrigation System provides service to a population
of approximately 20,000 residents.

EXISTING SYSTEM DESCRIPTION
Highland City owns, operates, and maintains the Pressurized Irrigation system. The Pressurized
Irrigation system provides outdoor water for irrigating landscaped areas and gardens.
Highland City provides pressurized irrigation water to residents within the City Limits of Highland.
Construction on the Highland Pressurized Irrigation (PI) System began in 1997. The PI system
contains over 80 miles of pipe ranging between 2 and 30 inches in diameter. The Highland City
Secondary Water System relies on 8 different sources for its water.
Hansen Allen & Luce completed a Master Plan Update to the Pressurized Irrigation System
Master Plan for Highland City in 2019 (HAL 2019). Information from the master plan was used in
conjunction with data from Highland City to create this impact fee facility plan.

Highland City
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GROWTH
The 2019 Pressurized Irrigation System Master Plan estimated the build out irrigated acres based
on zoning for anticipated developed areas. For the purpose of this IFFP it was assumed that the
growth in irrigated acres will match the growth in population projections. This assumption allows
irrigated acres per ERC to be calculated. 2020 population was estimated using data provided by
Highland City. Population and projections were provided by the City’s planning department. A
review of typical R-1-40 developments and the 2019 Master Plan provided an average irrigated
acreage per lot of 50%. It is recommended that actual irrigated acreage be calculated during the
Plat Approval Process for non-traditional developments with open space and during building
permit for typical residential developments.
Table 1
Growth Projections
Characteristic
Irrigated Acres

2019
1,391.5

2020
1,430

10 Year
1,807

Build-out
1,865

LEVEL OF SERVICE
The level of service is the “defined performance standard or unit of demand for each capital
component of a public facility within a service area” according to the Utah Impact Fees Act (Utah
Division of Administrative Rules 2011). The service area for the level of service in this plan is the
City Boundary including areas expected to be annexed into the City.
There are three components to Highland City’s secondary water system that were analyzed:
source, distribution, and storage. The existing and proposed levels of service for each component
of the secondary system were determined. The existing level of service matches the proposed
level of service. Impact fees may not be used to pay for any services above the existing level of
service.
The level of service was based on the Pressurized Irrigation System Master Plan (HAL 2019).
Source and Pumping
The existing level of service for the system’s sources and pump stations (that pump into a pond)
was based on the findings of a review of source records during the Master Plan development.
The peak day demand is used to determine the source requirement for a system. The 2019 Master
Plan determined that the level of service for peak day demands is 10.0 gpm per irrigated acre.
This number takes into account conservation and the ability of the system to provide adequately
for maintaining landscaping.
Distribution
The level of service for a distribution system is limited by the peak instantaneous demand. The
required peak instantaneous demand determined in the Master Plan is 20.0 gpm per irrigated
acre. The peak instantaneous demand is also utilized in the capacity determination for pump
stations that do not pump into a pond.
As part of the Mater Planning effort in 2019, a hydraulic model was created to determine the effect
the demands have on the distribution system. The level of service determined for operations was
to maintain pressures between 50 psi and 120 psi.
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Storage
The level of service for storage has been developed to provide the average day use for the
system. The storage requirement is 8,500 gallons per irrigated acre for the entire service area.
Summary
Table 2 shows the determined level of service for existing and future irrigated acres.
Table 2
Level of Service Summary
Attribute
Peak Day Demand
Peak Instantaneous Demand
Minimum Storage
Water Connection Pressure Range
Maximum Connection Pressure Change

LOS
10.0 gpm/irrigated acre
20.0 gpm/irrigated acre
8,500 gallons/irrigated acre
50 psi – 120 psi
30 psi

EXCESS CAPACITY
The existing system has excess capacity within a portion of its storage, and distribution facilities
to provide new growth with pressurized Irrigation. The only storage component that has excess
capacity is the northwest pond. For the purpose of this plan, irrigated acreage for each zone has
been increased relative to the City’s growth and approximates 2020 units. Only costs incurred to
create the existing system, which was paid for by the City, can be included in impact fees. Actual
water rights or shares are provided to the City during the development process and are not
included in the impact fees.
Storage
Highland City currently operates three water storage ponds serving the City. Storage
requirements are determined on a per irrigable acre basis. The total storage capacity is 50.4
acre-feet. All ponds were constructed since 1997 and are in good condition.
The capacity of each pond was analyzed in respect to the zone it serves. The storage was
analyzed as requiring 8,500 gallons per irrigable acre. Table 3 summarizes the storage facility
information and Table 4 summarizes the excess storage capacity by Zone. The Upper/Lower
storage ponds do not have existing capacity, but the northwest pond has sufficient excess
capacity to build out conditions. It must be noted that the northwest pond is in an elevated zone
that does not contribute to the upper/lower ponds storage.

Highland City
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Table 3
Existing Storage Pond Summary
Service Zone

Volume
(Ac-ft)

Pond ID

Upper/Lower

Upper Pond

26

Upper/Lower

Lower Pond

5.4

Northwest

Northwest Pond

19
50.4

Total

Service Zone

Table 4
Excess Storage Summary
Existing
2020
Excess
Storage
Existing
Capacity
Demand
Volume
(Ac-ft)
(Ac-ft)
(Ac-ft)

10-Yr
Storage
Demand
(Ac-ft)

Buildout
Storage
Demand
(Ac-ft)

Upper/Lower

31.4

31.4

0

39.6

40.1

Northwest

19.0

6.8

12.4

8.5

8.5

Total

50.4

38.2

N/A

48.1

48.6

Source Pump Stations and Booster Stations
The system’s secondary water sources are provided by groundwater wells and irrigation shares.
An extensive list is described in the 2019 Master Plan. The City’s Upper & 11800 North booster
stations no longer have excess capacity for growth projected in the next ten years. A table of the
booster station capacities is shown in Table 5.
Table 5
Booster Station Capacity Summary
Pump Station

Upper

11800 North

Pressure Zones
Served

Capacity

Critical Demand

(gpm)

Upper Pressure
Zone

6,000

Existing
Future
gpm
gpm
Peak Instantaneous

Northwest Area

2,500

5,610
Peak Day
2,502

Hog Hollow

Highland City

Hog Hollow
above Northwest
Zone

690

3,274

Peak Instantaneous
508

4

6,615

508
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The Master Plan and recent planning for drought conditions has determined that during the late
season of the year the City hasn’t excess source capacity when the American Fork River System
has diminished. The water source deficit was defined in the Master Plan as approximately 17 cfs
including drought conditions and to maintain the same level of redundancy provided in the existing
system. The Master Plan identified overcoming the source deficit by way of pumping more water
from the Murdock Canal and increasing the capacity of the 11800 Well. The future facility table
lists source/pumping projects to inject source water into the system.

Distribution System
Pipe diameters range from 4-inches to 30-inches, with the majority being 8 inches within the
individual subdivision developments. The larger pipes in the system were provided as
transmission lines to deliver water from storage ponds during peak scenarios and to deliver water
from sources. All pipes are in good condition as they have been constructed since 1997. The
Master Plan provided that there is excess capacity in the Distribution System for new growth
through build out conditions in all but the upper zone. Two lines have been added to maintain the
level of service in the zone.
FUTURE FACILITIES
Data for the proposed distribution projects and their associated costs were provided within the
2019 Master Plan and recent storage planning efforts. Storage projects were determined by the
City to meet the LOS. The projects were estimated to be completed in the next ten years. The
distribution projects are those required to increase the capacity of the distribution system in order
to serve the future growth. Table 3 provides a summary of the recommended facilities.
Table 6
Recommended Future Facilities
TYPE & MASTER
PLAN ID

PROJECTED
YEAR

RECOMMENDED PROJECT

TOTAL
COST EST.

YEAR 1-3

11800 Well Pump Replacement - This project is a
portion of a larger project already initiated in 2020.
Wherein the well was redeveloped to increase flow
and decrease drawdown. The excess capacity now $54,000
in the well can be utilized by future growth. It is
anticipated that the pump upsize will increase the
capacity by 1 cfs.

YEAR 1-3

11800 Booster Station - This project is required to
provide additional water to the Northwest Pond and
$120,960
will include installation of a new pump at the existing
booster station site.

MP #8 Distribution –
Growth Project

YEAR 7-10

5250 W Pipeline - This project is required to provide
$58,320
additional pressure due to growth.

Rev MP #12 Storage
– Growth Project

YEAR 1-3

Upper Pond Expansion – Expand the existing pond
$1,708,000
by 8.7 Ac*ft for future growth.

YEAR 7-10

Upper Booster Station - This project is required to
provide additional water to the Upper Zone for new
growth and will include installation of a new pump at $145,800
the existing booster station site to meet future
demands.

MP #2 Source –
Growth Project

MP #3 Pumping –
Growth Project

MP #13 Pumping –
Growth Project

Highland City
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TYPE & MASTER
PLAN ID

PROJECTED
YEAR

RECOMMENDED PROJECT

TOTAL
COST EST.

YEAR 1-3

Murdock Canal PS @ State Property - This project
will provide 4 cfs in the location of future growth of
the developed State Property. The pump station will
$1,115,640
provide source water from the Murdock Canal. The
project includes a new pump station and a new
meter vault.

MP #15 Source –
Growth Project

YEAR 4-6

New Pump Station in Lower Zone adjacent to the
Murdock Canal – This pump station will provide new
source from the Murdock Canal of approximately 12 $1,823,040
cfs. It is anticipated that a new turnout, meter vault
and pump station will be required.

MP #16 Distribution –
Growth Project

YEAR 7-10

Highland Glen Pipeline - This project is required to
$167,400
provide additional capacity for pressure due to
growth.

MP #14 Source –
Growth Project

TOTAL

$5,193,160

IMPACT FEE FACILITY PLAN
Impact Fees for the City Pressurized Irrigation system will be uniform per each irrigable acre
across the service area. Table 7 contains the City’s 10 Year Impact Fee Facility Plan. Each
project is listed with the estimated cost in 2020 dollars inflated from the Master Plans 2019
estimates. All of the projects are planned only for the ERCs in the service area. The impact fee
facility plan projects total $5,193,160. Also included in the IFFP is the IFFP/IFA actual cost. The fee is
presented in the IFA.

Table 7
Impact Fee Facility Plan
Cost Attributed
to System
Deficiencies

Cost Attributed
to Growth for
Next 10 Yrs

Cost Attributed
to Buildout
Growth

IFFP/IFA -

$39,272.73
$$$$$$$$-

$12,792.27
$105,067.20
$50,657.40
$1,483,587.72
$126,643.49
$969,057.26
$1,583,512.74
$145,405.49
$13,029.17

$1,935.00
$15,892.80
$7,662.60
$224,412.28
$19,156.51
$146,582.74
$239,527.26
$21,994.51
$1,970.83

Overall Total

$39,272.73

$4,476,723.57

$677,163.70

Project
Master Plan Project #2 Source –
Master Plan Project #3 Pumping –
Master Plan Project #8 Distribution –
Master Plan Project Rev #12 Storage –
Master Plan Project #13 Pumping –
Master Plan Project #14 Source –
Master Plan Project #15 Source –
Master Plan Project #16 Distribution -
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REVENUE OPTIONS
Revenue options for the recommended projects, in addition to use fees, could include the
following options: general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, State/Federal grants and loans, and
impact fees. In reality, the City may need to consider a combination of these funding options.
The following discussion describes each of these options.
General Obligation Bonds through Property Taxes
This form of debt enables the City to issue general obligation bonds for capital improvements and
replacement. General Obligation (G.O.) Bonds would be used for items not typically financed
through the Water Revenue Bonds (for example, the purchase of water source to ensure a
sufficient water supply for the City in the future). G.O. bonds are debt instruments backed by the
full faith and credit of the City which would be secured by an unconditional pledge of the City to
levy assessments, charges or ad valorem taxes necessary to retire the bonds. G.O. bonds are
the lowest-cost form of debt financing available to local governments and can be combined with
other revenue sources such as specific fees, or special assessment charges to form a dual
security through the City’s revenue generating authority. These bonds are supported by the City
as a whole, so the amount of debt issued for the water system is limited to a fixed percentage of
the real market value for taxable property within the City. For growth related projects this type of
revenue places an unfair burden on existing residents as they had previously paid for their level
of service.
Revenue Bonds
This form of debt financing is also available to the City for utility related capital improvements.
Unlike G.O. bonds, revenue bonds are not backed by the City as a whole, but constitute a lien
against the water service charge revenues of a Water Utility. Revenue bonds present a greater
risk to the investor than do G.O. bonds, since repayment of debt depends on an adequate revenue
stream, legally defensible rate structure /and sound fiscal management by the issuing jurisdiction.
Due to this increased risk, revenue bonds generally require a higher interest rate than G.O. bonds,
although currently interest rates are at historic lows. This type of debt also has very specific
coverage requirements in the form of a reserve fund specifying an amount, usually expressed in
terms of average or maximum debt service due in any future year. This debt service is required
to be held as a cash reserve for annual debt service payment to the benefit of bondholders.
Typically, voter approval is not required when issuing revenue bonds. For growth related projects
this type of revenue places an unfair burden on existing residents as they had previously paid for
their level of service.
State/Federal Grants and Loans
Historically, both local and county governments have experienced significant infrastructure
funding support from state and federal government agencies in the form of block grants, direct
grants in aid, interagency loans, and general revenue sharing. Federal expenditure pressures
and virtual elimination of federal revenue sharing dollars are clear indicators that local government
may be left to its own devices regarding infrastructure finance in general. However, state/federal
grants and loans should be further investigated as a possible funding source for needed water
system improvements.
It is also important to assess likely trends regarding federal / state assistance in infrastructure
financing. Future trends indicate that grants will be replaced by loans through a public works
revolving fund. Local governments can expect to access these revolving funds or public works
trust funds by demonstrating both the need for and the ability to repay the borrowed monies, with
Highland City
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interest. As with the revenue bonds discussed earlier, the ability of infrastructure programs to
wisely manage their own finances will be a key element in evaluating whether many secondary
funding sources, such as federal/state loans, will be available to the City.
Impact Fees
An impact fee is a one-time charge to a new development for the purpose of raising funds for the
construction of improvements required by the new growth and to maintain the current level of
service. Impact fees in Utah are regulated by the Impact Fee Statute and substantial case law.
Impact fees are a form of a development exaction that requires a fee to offset the burdens created
by the development on existing municipal services. Funding the future improvements required
by growth through impact fees does not place the burden on existing residents to provide funding
of these new improvements.
User Fees
Similar to property taxes on existing residents, User Fees to pay for improvements related to new
growth related projects places an unfair burden on existing residents as they had previously paid
for their level of service.
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CERTIFICATION OF IMPACT FEE FACILITY PLAN
I certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the attached impact fee facilities plan:
1. includes only the costs of public facilities that are:
a. allowed under the Impact Fees Act; and
b. actually incurred; or
c. projected to be incurred or encumbered within six years after the day on which each
impact fee is paid;
2. does not include:
a. costs of operation and maintenance of public facilities;
b. costs for qualifying public facilities that will raise the level of service for the facilities,
through impact fees, above the level of service that is supported by existing residents;
c. an expense for overhead, unless the expense is calculated pursuant to a methodology
that is consistent with generally accepted cost accounting practices and the
methodological standards set forth by the federal Office of Management and Budget
for federal grant reimbursement; and
3. complies in each and every relevant respect with the Impact Fees Act.

Prepared by:
Tavis B. Timothy, P.E.
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CHAPTER 1 – EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
The purpose of this Impact Fee Facility Plan (IFFP) is to provide Highland City direction for the
impact of future growth on the wastewater system within the next ten years.
Highland City was incorporated in 1977 with one of the purposes of incorporation being “To
provide for and assure adequate sewage disposal is available for future use” (LeBaron & Luntz,
2007). Highland City provides wastewater collection services for the residents of the City.
Wastewater collected by the City is conveyed to pipes owned and managed by the Timpanogos
Special Service District (TSSD). TSSD also implements impact fees to pay for future facilities
separate from those fees collected by the City.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This IFFP is an update to the IFFP adopted in 2015. The level of service has not changed. Data
from the City’s 2007 Wastewater Collection System Master Plan, updated modeling, system data
and additional information provided by the City provide the basis for the IFFP. Growth projections
were provided by the City. The IFFP considers growth over the next ten years and does not
include the facilities required for growth beyond.
During the preparation of the IFFP, existing and proposed levels of service were evaluated for
collection of the waste water collection system. In each case, it was determined that the proposed
level of service should be the same as the existing level of service. The average flow level of
service was 350 gallons per day (gpd) / Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC).
Existing excess capacity was also reviewed so that costs incurred to construct the existing system
could be factored into the impact fees. The computer model was utilized to assess the capacity
of the pipelines and pump stations. Costs for remaining capacity in existing pipelines and pump
stations, constructed by the City, were included in the Impact Fee Analysis.
The proposed impact fee facilities were grouped into collection system and pump station facility
classifications. The capacity of each project was provided in ERCs.
Impact Fees for the wastewater system will be split between the Central Service area of Highland
and the Southeast Service area. The identified facility projects for the collection system and
pumping facilities provide a total cost of $2,854,000. The ten year growth component total cost for
the projects is $900,040.
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CHAPTER 2 – IMPACT FEE FACILITY PLAN
EXISTING SYSTEM DESCRIPTION
Highland City provides wastewater collection services to approximately 8.6 square miles and
approximately 20,000 residents in northeastern Utah County, Utah. The wastewater collection
system contains over 60 miles of wastewater pipe ranging between 8 and 15 inches in diameter,
and over 1,600 manholes. Highland City has 5 wastewater pumping stations that help convey all
the wastewater collected by the system to the Timpanogos Special Service District (TSSD) trunk
lines and to the TSSD treatment plant.
Hansen, Allen, & Luce Inc. completed the initial Wastewater Collection System Master Plan for
Highland City in 2007. An addendum to the Master Plan was completed in 2020 that reviewed
current growth projections and system capacity. Information from these planning documents were
used in conjunction with data from Highland City to create this impact fee facility plan.
GROWTH
Growth rates were provided by the City of Highland. The current population, of approximately
20,000, was estimated using the vacancy rate, and the average household size and provided by
Highland City. Table 2-1 shows the growth projections for Highland City. This IFFP accounts for
growth over the next ten years. Growth beyond ten years is considered part of the build-out
growth. Growth for the Central Service Area is anticipated to grow by 511 ERCs in 10 years. It is
estimated that for the Southeast Service Area 700 ERCs will be added in 10 years.

Year
2020
Year 10
Build-out

Table 2-1
Growth Projection
Southeast
Central (ERCs)
(ERCs)
4,374
242
4,885
942
5,500
997

Total (ERCs)
4,616
5,827
6,497

LEVEL OF SERVICE
The level of service is the “defined performance standard or unit of demand for each capital
component of a public facility within a service area” according to the Utah Impact Fees Act (Utah
Division of Administrative Rules, 2011). The Highland City Wastewater Collection System was
split into two service areas to reflect growth expected over the majority of the City (Central Service
Area) and to account for an area in the southeast part of the City expected to see more rapid
development (Southeast Service Area). The two service areas can be seen on Figure 2-1.
Most individual features of a wastewater collection system only have a direct effect on a limited
area. For example a pump station generally benefits connections that flow to the pump station.
However, it is assumed that the overall system benefits the entire service area to collect and
convey wastewater.
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Highland City’s wastewater system is comprised of only the collection of wastewater flows. The
existing and proposed levels of service for the wastewater system were determined. The existing
level of service matches the proposed level of service. Impact fees may not be used to pay for
any services above the existing level of service.
The level of service was based on the Wastewater Collection System Master Plan (Hansen, Allen,
& Luce, Inc., 2007). Although the master plan was completed in 2007, the existing level of service
has not changed. A 2020 Wastewater Master Plan Addendum verified flow data, modeling and
the level of service.
Collection
The collection system relies on pump stations and sewer piping to convey all the wastewater
generated in the system to TSSD facilities. The level of service based on the actual average flow
data, as reported in the Master Plan, is 350 gallons per day (gpd) per ERC (Equivalent Residential
Connection). It is proposed that the level of service for future connections be equal to the existing
average flow level of service of 350 gpd per ERC.
Flows were metered at 6 different locations for the original Master Plan. The metered flow was
used to determine the peaking factor at each location and to create an equation to estimate the
peaking factor based on the number of ERCs tributary to the location. The equation to estimate
peaking in the system is:
𝑃𝑒𝑎𝑘𝑖𝑛𝑔 𝐹𝑎𝑐𝑡𝑜𝑟

2.1517 ∗ 𝐸𝑅𝐶𝑠 ∗

350
1,000,000

.

For comparison, the State of Utah Administrative Code requires new sewer systems be designed
on the basis of an annual average daily rate of flow of 100 gallons per capita per day unless other
data are available. The per capita flow rate includes infiltration and inflow. Using 4.37 persons per
household, would have required an average day flow of 437 gpd/ERC if reliable data had not
been available from the City.
The capacity of a wastewater pipe network is determined by the depth ratio in each pipe (depth
of flow divided by diameter of pipe). Because pressurized gravity flow in wastewater systems is
highly undesirable, Highland City determined that a depth ratio of 70% for their sewers 15 inches
in diameter and larger is acceptable and a depth ratio of 50% for all pipes less than 15 inches in
diameter is acceptable. These depth ratios are considered the level of service for the pipe
network.
In order to prevent settling of solids, Highland City has also determined that in accordance with
state law no pipe should be designed to carry loads with velocities less than 2 feet per second.
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Summary
Table 2-2 provides a summary of the proposed level of service for existing and future ERCs.
Table 2-2
Level of Service Summary
LOS
Average Day Flow
Peak Day Flow
Maximum Depth Ratio
Minimum Velocity

2020

Build Out
(2064)
2.27 MGD

2029

350 gpd/ERC
1.62 MGD
2.04 MGD
Ave. Day Flow x 2.1517 x (ERCs x 350 / 1,000,000)-0.156
70% for 15+” pipes, 50% for pipes smaller than 15”
2 fps

EXCESS CAPACITY
In 2020 the Wastewater Collection System planning evaluated the capacity of the existing
wastewater collection system using Autodesk Storm and Sewer Analysis software. The model
utilized criteria identical to the level of service listed in Table 2-1. Individual capacities of trunk
lines and pump stations were determined and projects were recommended based on build-out
loading. Projects identified in the previous IFFP were identified to still be required.
The capacity of the existing system was compared to the loading of the existing system based on
the level of service summarized above. In cases where the existing system’s capacity is capable
of handling future connections, costs incurred to create the existing system can be factored into
the impact fees. In cases where the existing system does not have excess capacity, only costs
for the future projects can be included in the impact fees.
Specific projects recommended in the Master Plan and planned for the next ten years were
analyzed to determine how much of the future project will be utilized by existing connections
versus future connections. The existing vs future utilization was determined by the percentage of
existing connections and future connections for each facility.
The majority of the lift stations in the system were determined to have excess capacity. The
Master Plan analyzed average flow rates to each pump station and compared the flows to the
peak flow rates. The build out peak flow rate was then compared to the pump station capacity.
However, only the Dry Creek Bench Pump Station has excess capacity and was constructed by
the City. The Pheasant Hollow Lift Station services the southeast zone and was found to not
have sufficient capacity for the expected growth. The other lift stations were built/contributed by
developers and can not be included in the IFFP. Table 2-3 shows the pump station capacity,
excess capacity, and the contributions of flow from existing ERCs, future ERCs over the next 10
years, and ERCs beyond for the Dry Creek Lift Station.

Table 2-3
Pump Station Capacity
Pump Station

Capacity

Build Out
Peak Flow

Dry Creek Bench

850 gpm

850 gpm
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Existing 2020

10-yr Growth

Growth
Beyond 2024

ERC
871

ERC
102

ERC
116

%
80%

%
9.4%

%
10.6%
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FUTURE FACILITIES
Data for the proposed wastewater system projects and their associated costs were provided in
the 2020 Master Plan Addendum. Highland City determined which projects they anticipate
completing or starting before the ten year horizon.
Many future projects will benefit existing residents. Therefore, costs for each project were split
into the ratio between existing and future ERCs. This method avoids burdening future
connections with the entire cost of projects that will also benefit existing connections.
The projects required for future growth in the next 10-years are listed in Table 2-4, with the Master
Plan ID in parenthesis.
Table 2-4
Future Facility Projects
ID

Project Description
12” Pipe Replacement in 10480
North (MP#1)
12” Pipe Replacement in
Country Club Drive (MP#2)
12” Pipe Replacement in Dry
Creek Circle (MP#3)
Pheasant Hollow LS (MP#4)

1
2
3
4

Service
Area

2020
ERCs

10 Yr ERCs

Build Out
ERCs

Central

508

598

708

Central

424

478

544

Central

520

610

719

Southeast

242

942

997

IMPACT FEE FACILITY PLAN
Impact Fees for the Highland Wastewater Collection System will be split into the two service areas
mentioned earlier. Table 2-5 contains the Highland Impact Fee Facility Plan for each service
area. The projects in the IFFP can also be seen on Figure 2-1. The IFFP also includes the actual
cost of the IFFP and IFA preparation fee. The fee is presented in the IFA.
Table 2-5
Impact Fee Facility Plan
ID

Anticipated
Year

Project Cost

ERC Utilization
Existing

10-Year

Buildout

Cost due to
10 yr Growth

15.5%
12.1%
15.2%

$53,263
$104,228
$49,570

Central Service Area
1
2
3

2025
2022
2022
Central Area Cost

$419,000
$1,050,000
$398,000

71.8%
77.9%
72.3%

$1,867,000

12.7%
9.9%
12.5%

Central Area 10 yr Growth Cost

$207,061

Southeast Service Area
4

2022

$987,000

24.0%

70.0%

6.0%

$692,979

Southeast Area Cost

$987,000

Southeast Area 10 yr Growth Cost

$692,979

Highland Total Cost

$2,854,000

Highland Total 10 yr Growth Cost

$900,040
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REVENUE OPTIONS
Revenue options for the recommended projects, in addition to use fees, could include the
following options: general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, State/Federal grants and loans, and
impact fees. In reality, the City may need to consider a combination of these funding options.
The following discussion describes each of these options.
General Obligation Bonds through Property Taxes
This form of debt enables the City to issue general obligation bonds for capital improvements and
replacement. General Obligation (G.O.) Bonds would be used for items not typically financed
through the Water Revenue Bonds (for example, the purchase of water source to ensure a
sufficient water supply for the City in the future). G.O. bonds are debt instruments backed by the
full faith and credit of the City which would be secured by an unconditional pledge of the City to
levy assessments, charges or ad valorem taxes necessary to retire the bonds. G.O. bonds are
the lowest-cost form of debt financing available to local governments and can be combined with
other revenue sources such as specific fees, or special assessment charges to form a dual
security through the City’s revenue generating authority. These bonds are supported by the City
as a whole, so the amount of debt issued for the water system is limited to a fixed percentage of
the real market value for taxable property within the City. For growth related projects this type of
revenue places an unfair burden on existing residents as they had previously paid for their level
of service.

Revenue Bonds
This form of debt financing is also available to the City for utility related capital improvements.
Unlike G.O. bonds, revenue bonds are not backed by the City as a whole, but constitute a lien
against the water service charge revenues of a Water Utility. Revenue bonds present a greater
risk to the investor than do G.O. bonds, since repayment of debt depends on an adequate revenue
stream, legally defensible rate structure /and sound fiscal management by the issuing jurisdiction.
Due to this increased risk, revenue bonds generally require a higher interest rate than G.O. bonds,
although currently interest rates are at historic lows. This type of debt also has very specific
coverage requirements in the form of a reserve fund specifying an amount, usually expressed in
terms of average or maximum debt service due in any future year. This debt service is required
to be held as a cash reserve for annual debt service payment to the benefit of bondholders.
Typically, voter approval is not required when issuing revenue bonds. For growth related projects
this type of revenue places an unfair burden on existing residents as they had previously paid for
their level of service.
State/Federal Grants and Loans
Historically, both local and county governments have experienced significant infrastructure
funding support from state and federal government agencies in the form of block grants, direct
grants in aid, interagency loans, and general revenue sharing. Federal expenditure pressures
and virtual elimination of federal revenue sharing dollars are clear indicators that local government
may be left to its own devices regarding infrastructure finance in general. However, state/federal
grants and loans should be further investigated as a possible funding source for needed water
system improvements.
It is also important to assess likely trends regarding federal / state assistance in infrastructure
financing. Future trends indicate that grants will be replaced by loans through a public works
Highland City
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revolving fund. Local governments can expect to access these revolving funds or public works
trust funds by demonstrating both the need for and the ability to repay the borrowed monies, with
interest. As with the revenue bonds discussed earlier, the ability of infrastructure programs to
wisely manage their own finances will be a key element in evaluating whether many secondary
funding sources, such as federal/state loans, will be available to the City.
Impact Fees
An impact fee is a one-time charge to a new development for the purpose of raising funds for the
construction of improvements required by the new growth and to maintain the current level of
service. Impact fees in Utah are regulated by the Impact Fee Statute and substantial case law.
Impact fees are a form of a development exaction that requires a fee to offset the burdens created
by the development on existing municipal services. Funding the future improvements required
by growth through impact fees does not place the burden on existing residents to provide funding
of these new improvements.
User Fees
Similar to property taxes on existing residents, User Fees to pay for improvements related to new
growth related projects places an unfair burden on existing residents as they had previously paid
for their level of service.
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AGENDA

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT
ITEM #6

DATE:

January 19, 2021

TO:

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM:

Tyler Bahr, CSM, DLSSBB, Finance Director

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING & RESOLUTION: Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Mid-Year
Budget Adjustments. Legislative
PURPOSE:
The City Council will consider the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Mid-Year Budget Adjustments.
The Council will take appropriate action.
BACKGROUND:
The City is required to keep expenditures within the budget approved by the City Council.
Budget amendments are necessary to adjust for various unanticipated expenditures or
changes in revenue and to comply with State requirements. Typically, the City completes
two budget amendments, one mid-year and one at the end of the fiscal year. All
expenditures that were not included in the budget received Council approval prior to the
expenditure.
The proposed adjustments to revenue and expenditures bring the fiscal year 2020-2021
(FY2021) General Fund revenues to $10,466,054 and expenses to $10,364,631, which gives
the General Fund a projected surplus of $101,424. A discussion regarding the potential
use of these funds will be held during a future Council meeting.
PROPOSED ADJUSTMENTS:
General Fund
•

Sales tax revenue (10-31-30) has outpaced budgeted estimates since the onset of the
COVID-19 pandemic and it is anticipated that the City will receive a total of
$2,938,000, $500,000 more than previously budgeted. Based on the annual rate of
increase in sales tax revenue over the past decade, it is anticipated that
approximately $226,000 of the proposed increase will recur in future years. The
remaining $274,000 is considered to be one-time windfall due to COVID impacts
and should thus be limited to one-time expenses (as opposed to those that will
require ongoing funding each year). Staff will continue to monitor and analyze
revenue trends to determine if this assumption is correct.

•

Due to allocation of CARES funding to public safety, the City will recognize savings
in assessments due to Lone Peak Public Safety District (10-57-31) of $902,374,
reducing this budget to $899,421 (Please note that these savings do not apply to

next fiscal year). COVID-19 expenses (10-43-50) previously budgeted at $0 will be
increased to $1,000,000 to include park restrooms, three vehicles assigned to Public
Works, renovation of the front counter at City Hall, ventilating windows at three
facilities, PPE and other COVID-related expenses.
•

City events (10-38-92) and Highland Fling (10-38-95) revenue are being reduced
from $50,000 by $36,500 to $13,500 as smaller events have been held due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Highland Fling expense (10-72-55) is being reduced by
$48,500, from $66,000 to $17,500, with smaller events being held due to COVID-19.
Community enrichment (10-72-63) is being increased by $12,000, from $4,300 to
$16,300, for Christmas light displays. The net impact of adjustments to these
budgets is $0.

•

Capital equipment purchases (10-60-59) is being increased from $0 to $137,750 for a
front-end loader and backhoe.

•

Various salary allocations are being increased by a total of $60,289 for leave
payouts due to two employees who will be retiring and salaries for their
replacements during training.

•

Various salary allocations are being increased by $42,000 for staff salary increases
of 1%, in addition to the 2% previously approved.

•

Council appropriations (10-41-62) is increasing by $16,000 from $7,000 to $23,000
for traffic counters.

•

Parks equipment move (10-70-49) is increasing from $0 to $7,000 for storage of
parks equipment.

•

Part-time transcriptionist (10-47-14) is increasing $3,000 from $5,000 to $8,000 to
facilitate an anticipated heavier load of public meetings.

•

Sidewalk repair and maintenance (10-60-37) is increasing $19,000 from $55,000 to
$74,000 to compensate for work anticipated in FY20, but completed at the
beginning of FY21.

•

Software licenses and maintenance (10-47-28) is increasing from $0 to $1,000 for
meeting recording system support.

•

Website (10-43-29) is increasing $650 from $6,100 to $6,750 for increase in web
hosting and domain renewal.

Parks (General Fund/Open Space Fund)
•

Seasonal employees in the Parks Department (10-70-14) is increasing by $15,0000
from $55,000 to $70,000 to improve park maintenance; this is coupled with an
increase of $20,000 from $110,000 to $130,000 in Open Space seasonal employees
(20-43-14) for a total increase of $35,000.

Library Fund
Staff proposes using $36,743 in previous year money (22-39-90) for one-time or
unanticipated expenses this year.
•

Equipment (22-43-21) has increased by $15,000 to $20,000 for a book drop, public
access computers, and shelving.

•

Books and Materials (22-43-23) has increased by $5,000 to $30,000 due increased
demand for e-books.

•

IT Software (22-43-28) has increased $1,700 to $17,700 for software on public access
computers.

•

Printing (22-43-29) has increased $800 to $1,500 to account for printing costs that
were previously paid through other non-Library funds.

•

Programming (22-43-30) has increased $2,000 to $10,500 for additional winter
programming to address COVID impacts.

•

Continuing education (22-43-33) has decreased $2,000 to $1,000 as travel is not
advisable at this time.

•

Grant expenditures (22-43-50) have increased due to receipt of additional COVIDrelated grants.

•

Indirect overhead (22-43-61) has increased by $2,165 to $8,000 for additional
telephone equipment to avoid sharing phones during the pandemic.

•

IT Service IT Expense (22-43-75) is increasing by $2,530 to $5,000 to add public
access computers to the device replacement plan.

Capital Funds
•

Spring Creek Park Construction (GL 40-40-73) is being increased by $65,000 to pay
for final expenses on the Spring Creek project.

Enterprise Funds
•

Culinary Water, Capital Expenses (GL 55-40-50) increased by $110,000 address
urgent repairs at two wells. Engineering & professional services in this fund (55-4031) increased by $15,000 for associated engineering expenses.

•

Internal Services Expenses, IT Fund (57-40-25) increased by $2,000 for Microsoft
subscription fees and increased cloud storage.

•

Sewer engineering/professional services (52-40-32) increased by $10,000 for design
of Victor View Lift Station bypass & Sewer Master Plan update.

•

Storm Sewer:
o System reconstruction (54-40-25) increased by $120,000 for Broadleaf Hollow
reconstruction.
o NCRS Viewpoint flood control (54-40-81) increased by $42,000 due to
increased material costs; the adjusted budget is net of anticipated
reimbursement from the federal government.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The fiscal impact is summarized as follows:
•

Increase of $500,000 in sales tax revenue.

•

Use of approximately $902,000 in savings related to CARES funding for COVIDrelated expenses.

•

Use of $36,743 of previous years’ revenue in the Library Fund.

•

Use of revenue collected from utility fees for capital projects. Each enterprise fund
has the necessary funds to cover the project costs.

PROPOSED MOTION:
I move that the City Council ADOPT the proposed Resolution approving the Fiscal Year
2020-2021 Mid-Year Budget Adjustments.
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution
2. Proposed Mid-Year Budget Adjustments Fiscal Year 2020-2021

A RESOLUTION OF THE HIGHLAND CITY COUNCIL, HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH,
AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 MID-YEAR CITY BUDGET

WHEREAS, Utah Law allows for the amendment of the budgets of municipalities
to reflect changes in revenues and expenditures and to make transfers between
departments to meet the best interests of the municipality; and
WHEREAS, Highland City has complied with the notice and public hearing
requirements of the Utah Law in considering an amendment of its 2020-2021 fiscal year
budgets; and
WHEREAS, the City Council of Highland City has determined that an amendment
to its fiscal year 2020-2021 budget is in the best interest of Highland City and its residents
and in order for the budget to match the actual revenues and expenditures of the City.
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the amended Highland
City Budgets as attached hereto, for the 2020-2021 fiscal year mid-year budget
adjustments of Highland City, Utah are hereby adopted.
19th

ADOPTED AND RESOLVED by the City Council of Highland City, Utah, this
day of January, 2021.
HIGHLAND CITY, UTAH
__________________________
Rodney W. Mann
Mayor

ATTEST:
______________________________
Stephannie Cottle
City Recorder

COUNCILMEMBER
Timothy A. Ball
Brittney P. Bills
Kurt Ostler
Kim Rodela
Scott L. Smith

YES

NO













Highland City
Mid‐Year Budget Adjustments
Fiscal Year 2020‐2021

Account
Number
10‐38‐92
10‐38‐95
10‐31‐30
10‐31‐30
22‐39‐90
55‐40‐50
55‐40‐31
40‐40‐73
10‐72‐63
10‐72‐55
10‐43‐29
10‐41‐62
10‐70‐49
10‐47‐14
10‐47‐28
10‐60‐59
10‐60‐37
10‐57‐31
10‐43‐50

10‐70‐14
57‐40‐25
22‐43‐21
22‐43‐23
22‐43‐28
22‐43‐29
22‐43‐30
22‐43‐33
22‐43‐50
22‐43‐61
22‐43‐75
20‐43‐14
52‐40‐32
54‐40‐81
54‐40‐25

Account Name
City Events Revenue
Highland Fling Revenue
General Sales and Use Taxes
General Sales and Use Taxes
PY Carryover Budget
Capital Expenses Projects
Engineering & Professional Ser
Spring Creek Park Construction
Community Enrichment
Highland Fling Expense
Website
Council Appropriations
Parks Equipment Move
Part‐time Transcriptionist
Software Licenses and Maint.
Capital Equipment Purchases
Sidewalk Repair & Maint
Lone Peak Public Safety Dist
Covid‐19 Expenses
Various Salary Allocations
Various Salary Allocations
Various Salary Allocations
Various Salary Allocations
Seasonal Employees
Internal Service Expenses
Equipment
Books & Materials
IT Software
Printing
Programming
Continuing Education
Grant Expenditures
Indirect Overhead
Internal Service IT Expense
Seasonal Employees
Engineering/Prof Services
NCRS Viewpoint Flood Control
System Reconstruction

Prepared by Finance Department, Highland City

Fund
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
Library Fund
CULINARY WATER FUND
CULINARY WATER FUND
Exaction Fee Roads
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
INTERNAL SERVICE IT FUND
Library Fund
Library Fund
Library Fund
Library Fund
Library Fund
Library Fund
Library Fund
Library Fund
Library Fund
OTHER REVENUE
SEWER FUND
STORM SEWER FUND
STORM SEWER FUND

Revenue or
Expense?
Revenue
Revenue
Revenue
Revenue
Revenue
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense

Recommended
Approved Budget Change
$0
$500
$50,000
‐$37,000
$2,438,000
$225,638
$2,438,000
$274,362
$0
$36,743
$369,000
$110,000
$32,000
$15,000
$0
$65,000
$4,300
$12,000
$66,000
‐$48,500
$6,100
$650
$7,000
$16,000
$0
$7,000
$5,000
$3,000
$0
$1,000
$0
$137,750
$55,000
$19,000
$1,801,795
‐$902,374
$0
$1,000,000
$13,741
$15,229
$31,319
$42,000
$55,000
$15,000
$20,000
$2,000
$5,000
$15,000
$25,000
$5,000
$16,000
$1,700
$700
$800
$8,500
$2,000
$3,000
‐$2,000
$4,800
$1,600
$5,835
$2,165
$2,470
$2,530
$110,000
$20,000
$20,000
$10,000
$0
$42,000
$100,000
$120,000

Proposed
Adjusted
Budget

Description
$500 Smaller events due to COVID‐19; net of event revenue & expense adjustments are zero
$13,000 Smaller events due to COVID‐19; net of event revenue & expense adjustments are zero
Sales tax revenue anticipated above approved budget, attributable to ongoing trend
Sales tax revenue anticipated above approved budget, attributable to one‐time COVID impact
$36,743 Library carryover from previous year
$479,000 Urgent culinary well repairs
$47,000 Unforeseen system failures, engineering costs associated with multiple projects
$65,000 Wrapping up Spring Creek
$16,300 Christmas Lights; smaller events due to COVID‐19; net of event revenue & expense adjustments are zero
$17,500 Smaller events due to COVID‐19; net of event revenue & expense adjustments are zero
$6,750 Increase of website hosting; website domain renewal.
$23,000 Radar traffic counters
$7,000 Storage units ‐ parks equipment
$8,000 Anticipating heavier load of work sessions, longer meetings for budget
$1,000 JCG technologies ‐ Liberty meeting recording system support
$137,750 Front end loader & backhoe
$74,000 Expenses planned for the end of FY20 booked at the beginning of FY21
$899,421 Savings due to CARES funding allocated to public safety
$1,000,000 CARES Expenses (YTD actual expenses = $219k; FY20 = $10k
Laurie Adams retirement payouts
Jone Varney retirement payouts
Laurie Adams & Jone Varney replacements' salaries/benefits during training
Supplemental salary increases (1%)
$70,000 Increase necessary to improve Park maintenance; split between Parks/Open space
$22,000 Microsoft subscription fee & increase in cloud backup costs
$20,000 Book drop, public access computers, book shelves
$30,000 Increased ebook purchases to meet COVID‐influenced demand
$17,700 Software for public access computers
$1,500 Printing expense previously attributed to other funds
$10,500 Increase winter programming to address COVID impact
$1,000 Travel not advisable
$6,400 Additional COVID‐related grant funding
$8,000 Additional phone ‐ avoid sharing phones due to COVID
$5,000 Addition of Public Access Computers to IT Rotation
$130,000 Increase necessary to improve Park maintenance; split between Parks/Open space
$30,000 Additional Engineering costs for design of Victor View Lift Station bypass & Sewer Master Plan update
$42,000 Actual material costs increased since bid; adjustment is net of anticipated reimbursement
$220,000 Broadleaf Hollow Reconstruction

January 13, 2021

